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We Value
Having regard for yourself, the organisation and others within the community, accepting the rights
of others to hold differing views

Sensitive to the circumstances and needs of both the people we care for and those that we work with

Acknowledging the inherent value and worth of each individual person, regardless of circumstance

Collaboration
Working together to support common values and vision for shared goals

Responsiveness
Tailoring our services to meet the needs of our community amidst a changing health environment

Excellence
Achieving the highest standard of care and service in all that we do

Financial Report
If the financial report is not attached and you would like a copy, please contact MDHS on
5461 0333 or alternatively visit our website www.mdhs.vic.gov.au to download a copy.
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Report of Operations
Establishment of the Health Service
Maryborough District Health Service (MDHS) was established 20 years ago in 1993, under
the Health Services Act 1988. It is one of the most dynamic small rural health services
in Victoria, providing innovative, integrated and comprehensive health care to a diverse
community that has been identified in the Department of Health’s Burden of Disease
as having a higher percentage of people diagnosed with chronic conditions. The Burden
of Disease study was undertaken in 2001 by the Department of Health as part of the
Global Burden of Disease study. It provides comprehensive information on health issues in
communities across Victoria and the underlying risk factors.
The three campuses of MDHS are Avoca, Dunolly and Maryborough. The strong clinical
and social links that have been developed and nurtured between the three campuses
ensure that the community is cared for by trained staff who are committed to high
standards of person centred care.

The Annual Report
The Annual Report is a legal document prepared in accordance with the Health Services
Reporting Guidelines 2013 – 2014 under the Financial Management Act 1994.
The Annual Report 2013 - 14 includes the Report of Operations, Quality of Care Report
and the Financial Report. Appendices report on the five year statistical information and
performance data.

Our Services
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Acute Care

Aged Care

• Acute Medical & Surgical Care Adult and Paediatric
• Allied Health support
for inpatient care e.g.
Physiotherapy, Occupational
Therapy, Social Work, Dietician,
Pharmacy, Infection Control
• Central Sterilising Supply
Department (CSSD)
• Dialysis
• District Nursing
• Drug and Alcohol Detoxification
• Maternity Services
• Palliative Care - Merrin Suite
• Operating Theatre - same day
and overnight surgery
- General Surgery
- Urology
- Orthopaedic
- Gynaecology
- Dental
- Ear, Nose and Throat
• Post Acute Care (PAC)
• Pre-admission Clinic
• Urgent Care Centre

• Residential
- Maryborough Nursing Home
- Dunolly Nursing Home
- Avoca Nursing Home & Hostel
• Respite Care
• Transition Care Program (TCP)

Maryborough District Health Service

Diagnostic Services
• Medical Imaging
• Pathology (contracted through
Dorevitch Pathology)

Professional Development
• Research / Projects
• Staff Development Unit
• Student Management

Community Services
•
•
•
•
•

Alcohol and Other Drugs
Best Start
Chronic Disease Management
Community Development
Community Health Nursing

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Dental Service
Diabetes Educator
Dietetics
Exercise Physiology
Generalist Counselling
Health Promotion
Hospital Admission Risk
Program (HARP)
Housing
Mental Health Services
(Provided by Bendigo Health)
Needle Syringe Program
Occupational Therapy
Physiotherapy
Planned Activity Group (PAG)
QUiT Smoking Cessation
Program
Rural Primary Health Services
Smiles 4 Miles
Social Work
Speech Pathology
Youth Connections

Corporate and Support
Services
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Building and Services
Emergency Management
Finance
Fundraising
Health Information Services
Hotel Services
Human Resources
Information Technology
Media and Public Relations
Occupational Health & Safety
Quality and Risk Management
Special Projects
Supply

Medical Services
• Medical Appointments and
Credentialing
• Medical Staff

Range of
Services and
Programs
Acute, Allied Health and Community
Nursing, Community Services and
Diagnostic Services are located at
Maryborough, with four additional acute
beds at the Dunolly campus. Community
programs are delivered throughout the
region managed by MDHS. Aged Care
services are delivered at all three campuses
along with Planned Activity Groups at
Maryborough and Dunolly. Programs and
services are continually monitored and
reviewed to ensure they meet expectations
and reflect the health care needs of the
changing community demographics.

Avoca

Dunolly

Maryborough

Inpatient Beds

0

4

28

Residential High Care Beds

19

15

43

Residential Low Care Beds

10

4

0

Respite Beds

1		

0

Urgent Care Trolleys

0

4

0

Haemodialysis Chairs
0
0
6
			
(12 clients per day)
Day Surgery Trolleys

0

0

4

Day Surgery Chairs

0

0

6

Transition Care Beds

MDHS provides 2 bed based transition
care beds situated at either Dunolly
or Maryborough and 2 community based
places = total of 4 Transition Car beds
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MDHS’ Strategic Priorities

The Victorian Government’s priorities and policy directions are outlined in the Victorian Health Priorities
Framework 2012-2022.

PRIORITY

ACTION

DELIVERABLE

ACHIEVEMENTS

•

•

•
•

Part B: Performance priorities
Part C: Activity Funding
Part B and C will be found as an appendix in the Financial Report
Five year statistical information will also appear as an appendix

Work with Grampians Medicare Local to develop nursing
workforce in the Urgent Care
Centre to support the retention of General Practitioners

•
•

PRIORITY

ACTION

DELIVERABLE

ACHIEVEMENTS

•

Developing a system that is
responsive to people’s needs

•

Implement formal
advance care
planning structures
and processes that
provide patients
with opportunities
to develop, review
and have their expressed preferences
for future treatment
and care enacted.

•

•
•

•

Contribute to area
based planning initiatives that consider
health care across
the care continuum.

•

•

•
•

Improving every Victorian’s
health status and experiences

•

In partnership with
other local providers
apply existing
service capability
frameworks to
maximise the
use of available
resources across
the catchment.

•

Improve thirty-day
unplanned readmission rates

•

Maryborough District Health Service

Provide education for key
senior staff to develop
advanced care planning
capabilities and support
implementation strategies by
September 2013.

By June 2014 expand
Rural Patient Flow & Nursing
Collaborative in partnership
with Ballarat Health Service,
Stawell Regional Health and
other Grampians Region
health services, to include:
- Weekly videoconference bed
meeting to facilitate earlier
transfers.
Development of Service
Capability Framework.

•
•

Continue to strengthen
Regional Clinical Pathways
to support early transfer of
patients back to MDHS to
deliver care closer to home.

•
•

•

•

•

•
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Collaborate with
key partners
such as Medicare
Locals, community
health services and
other providers
to support local
implementation of
the Victorian Health
and Wellbeing Plan
2011–2015.

Establish mechanisms to
monitor and respond to 30
day unplanned re-admissions by December 2013.
Incorporate Productive Ward
Series activities to improve
discharge planning/prevent
unplanned readmission.

•
•
•

Achieved.
Standardised tools for use across all
clinical settings (acute, community &
residential aged care) developed to
support identification of Advanced Care
Planning, Medical Power of Attorney
and Statement of Wishes developed.

Achieved.
Hepburn Health & Ballan Health joined
RPFAN (Feb 2014).
RPFAN successful incorporated into a
funded activity within the Grampians
Region Health Innovation Collaborative
Plan. Development of governance,
clinical and operational framework underway for VC bed meetings to support
patient transfers.
88 transfers from BHS to MDHS as a
result of the RPFAN.
90% Achieved.
Regional Organisational Service Capability Framework under development as
part of the Grampians Region Health
Innovation Collaborative Plan.
Maternity Service Capability Framework
completed for MDHS.

Achieved.
Review of Discharge Planning for
complex patients & those at risk of
readmission completed.
At June ’14 data demonstrates that
HARP contacts increased from 921 in
2012/13 to 1735 in 2013/14.

•

•

•

Partnerships strengthened
with local indigenous
community and strategies
developed to improve access
to MDHS programs and
services by June 2014.

•
•

By December 2013, review
Hospital Admission Risk
Program to improve service
model & expand service
delivery (Rural Patient Flow
and Nursing Capability)

•
•

•

Achieved.
Rural Isolated Practice Endorsed Registered Nurse (RIPERN) appointed – 1st
trainee completed course June ’14.
Nurse Practitioner (NP) Candidate appointed. Masters studies for completion
Dec 2014.
RIPERN & NP model of care, Position
Descriptions and Scope of Practice
developed & endorsed by relevant committees and stakeholders.
RIPERN and NP roles operating from
Urgent Care Centre.
Ongoing monitoring & auditing processes developed to capture reduction on
GP workloads.
Achieved.
Established links with Indigenous community accessing the ‘Meeting Place’ in
Castlemaine. Oral health initiatives with
children attending the Meeting Place.
The children will receive their oral health
screening sessions in August 2014.
This will be followed by treatment as
required.

Use existing
service capability
frameworks, patient
pathways and
clinical guidelines
to support better
health outcomes.

•

Contribute to the
provision of additional dental services to achieve the
targets, milestones
and objectives of
the National Partnership on Treating
More Public Dental
Patients

•

By June 2014 undertake
preliminary tasks to support
Fluoridation implementation
plan for Central Goldfields
Shire Council.

•
•
•

Achieved.
Various health service forums facilitated.
Fluoridation commencement on track
for Sept 2014.

•

Undertake review of Dental
services to improve efficiency
and productivity by October
2013.

•
•

Achieved.
Patient scheduling and other changes
has achieved additional appointment
places within the appointment book over
a full 12 month period

•

Establish referral processes
to local private dental services where MDHS is unable
to achieve new targets by
September 2013.

•
•

Achieved.
All patients waiting for dentures offered
care in August and September 2013.
General Dental Care patients waiting
time reduced from 54 months to 37
months.

•

•

Achieved
HARP staff now attend daily acute ward
bed meeting to identify appropriate
referrals
Systems for HARP referral for regular
presenters to Urgent Care Centre developed.

2014 Annual Report
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MDHS’ Strategic Priorities

PRIORITY

ACTION

DELIVERABLE

ACHIEVEMENTS

PRIORITY

ACTION

DELIVERABLE

ACHIEVEMENTS

Expanding service, workforce
and system capacity

•

Build workforce
capability and
sustainability by
supporting formal
and informal
clinical education
and training
for staff and
health students,
in particular
inter-professional
learning.

•

•
•

Implementing
continuous
improvements
and innovation

•

•

By December 2013
participate in the
Productive Series to
release Allied Health
staff to deliver services
in the primary care
environment.

•
•

•
•

Support excellence
in clinical training
through productive
engagement in
clinical training
networks and
developing
health education
partnerships across
the continuum of
learning.

•

Review of Preadmission
Service to improve
patient outcomes and
improve efficiency of
service by March 2014.

Optimise workforce
productivity
through
identification and
implementation of
workforce models
that enhance
individual and
team capacity and
support flexibility.

•

Implement the
Credentialing
and Scope of
Practice policy
and ‘Partnering
for Performance’
framework for
senior clinicians.

•

•

•

•

Through partnerships
with Grampians Medicare
Local & Ballarat Health
Service provide Simulation
Training opportunities for
multidisciplinary teams and
undergraduates by June
2014

•

•

•
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Reduce variation
in health service
administrative
costs.
Identify
opportunities for
efficiency and
better value service
delivery.

Support change and innovation
in practice where it is proven
to deliver more effective and
efficient health care

•

Participate in
Multidisciplinary
undergraduate placements
using Whole of System
Student Placement (WOSSP)
through Clinical Placement
Network. Four (4) student
placements established by
March 2014

•
•

•
•
•

Introduction of e-learning
to improve workforce
productivity, and reduce
costs of mandatory training
and ongoing education.
e-learning platform
established by May 2014

•
•

•

By March 2014 develop
Nurse Practitioner, Rural
Isolated Practice Endorsed
Registered Nurse and
Endorsed Enrolled Nurse
roles in expanded settings,
and develop Allied Health
Assistant roles.

•
•
•
•
•

Increasing the system’s
financial sustainability and
productivity

Achieved.
Total of 75 staff attended SIM training
sessions (including 3 Doctors).
Bi-monthly sessions cover acute and
midwifery
scenarios.

•
•

Investigate and implement
information technology (IT)
shared service options.
Investigate and implement
shared service options (eg
supply / logistics) to improve
productivity across sites by
June 2014.

•
•

•

Achieved.
WOSSP Program completed at MDHS
with 10 participants (1 Occupational
Therapist, 2 Physiotherapists, 5
Nursing and 2 Medical students).
2nd semester program to include
social work student.
Plans confirmed for 2015
participation.
Feedback from students and staff
overwhelmingly positive.

•
•

Increasing
accountability &
transparency

Achieved.
Comprehensive suite of e-learning
programs developed & provided to
support new staff orientation, annual
mandatory training and ongoing staff
development program introduced in
November 2013.
Improved compliance with attendance
and completion of training and
competency assessment as follows:
92% in 2012; 96% in 2013
Achieved.
Rural Isolated Practice Endorsed
Registered Nurse (RIPERN) and
Nurse Practitioner (NP) Candidate
achievements as noted above.
Ongoing monitoring & auditing
processes developed to capture
reduction on GP workloads.
Expanded role of Allied Health
Assistants now includes Planned
Activity Group.

80% Achieved.
MDHS actively involved in
Strengthening Health Services Hume
and Loddon Mallee region activities
including corporate shared services
discussions.
Internal productivity enhanced
through shared administrative
services.

•

Implementing
continuous
improvements
and innovation

•

Prepare for the National Safety
and Quality Health Service
Standards, as applicable.

Achieved.
Streamlined approach to handover and
referral through Acute and Allied Health team
collaboration.
The Productive Series has fully implemented
in Acute and Community Services.

90% Achieved.
‘Lean’ methodology used to review elective
surgical episode of care documentation
including evaluation of pre-admission risk
assessment and patient preparation. Project
scheduled to conclude September 2014.
Departments involved in ‘Lean’ include Health
Information, Amherst, Theatre, and Day
Surgery.
Lean projects commenced in October 2013
involving Nursing Home and Kitchen/Food
Services staff, and in May 2014 with Front
Admin and Executive Admin.

•

By December 2013
provide education and
resources for all staff
regarding transition to
EQuIPNational.

•
•

Achieved.
Program of essential education related to
each of the 15 EQuIP National Standards
developed and delivered according to
governance framework for each
Standard.

•

By December 2013
Gap Analysis conducted
against the national
standards and action
plans developed to
address identified gaps.

•
•

Achieved.
Organisational systems developed
for governance Action Plan to ensure
organisational readiness for Accreditation
October 2014.

•

With the support of
Government, develop board
capability to ensure all board
members are well equipped
to effectively discharge their
responsibilities and deliver
against the outcomes
articulated in the Victorian
Health Priorities Framework.

•

Revise Board of
Management induction
program by September
2013 and education
program by April 2014.

•
•

Achieved.
Internal and external program of education
developed incorporating opportunities for
interaction with Board members of other
health services.

•

Prepare for, and respond
to changes in policy and
regulation, for example,
with regard to proposed
amendments to Aged Care
legislation

•

Undertake situation
analysis of residential
aged care services across
all sites to Board of
Management by June
2014.

•
•

Achieved.
Solid understanding of critical factors related
to Aged Care sustainability.

•

Throughout 2013/14
develop key staff
knowledge of Residential
Aged Care Finances
through training in
legislation changes.

•
•

Achieved.
VHA Aged Care Readiness tools and education
opportunities accessed.
Director of Residential Aged Care role
establishedto respond to legislative changes in
aged care.

Explore IT opportunities
and work with regional
partners to access and
deliver services by May
2014.

•
•

•

Work with partners to better
connect service providers and
deliver appropriate and timely
services to rural and regional
Victorians.

•

•

•

Achieved.
Telehealth (Video Conferencing) solutions for
specialist geriatrician consultation.
Exploring other opportunities for Surgical,
Aged Care Assessment and Transition Care.

2014 Annual Report
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Wendy McIvor
President

President’s Report
The Board of Management (BOM) at Maryborough
District Health Service (MDHS) consists of ten
community members, with a broad range of professional
skills and interests and a demonstrated commitment to
the health and wellbeing of our community.
The role of the BOM is to work within the framework
of the Health Services Act to establish policies for
governance and deliver strategic direction for the
management of MDHS. The BOM delegates the
operational day-to-day management of the Health
Service to the Chief Executive.
The BOM is accountable to the Minister of Health and
the community MDHS serves and works judiciously to
meet both Government and community expectations.
Within the Department of Health’s (DoH) framework for
BOM, there are four key areas, which the MDHS BOM
focuses on throughout the year:
• Effective and efficient management of the Health
Service
• Provision of high quality care and service delivery
• Meeting the needs of the community
• Meeting financial and non-financial performance
targets.
The theme of this year’s Annual report is ‘Achieving
through Partnerships’. More than ever partnerships
and true collaboration are the key to the success of
our Health Service in delivering the range and type of
services to meet growing community need.
While collaboration has been a core feature in Health
in the past, it is now vital to elevate these endeavours
to really shape services around the complexity of client
needs, to reduce duplicated effort and avoid gaps in
service delivery. Our programs are often determined
by the funder’s parameters and targets, these ‘siloed’
approaches to services can inadvertently mean gaps or
shortfalls to the client.
Partnership is often represented by the interconnecting
pieces of a jigsaw puzzle. It is only when the pieces all
fit together that we see the bigger picture.So too, with
partnerships. When we seek partners and work well
together, we achieve the best outcomes.

10
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MDHS is committed to a client-centred approach to
our work. Our community is not only growing but also
ageing and there are increased demands on our services
with these changing demographics. On occasions
this has meant looking at other options to provide the
required supports. Throughout the MDHS 2014 Annual
Report there are instances of well established and new
partnering arrangements e.g. Go Goldfields and Best
Start, Regional Hospitals, Medicare Locals and Private
Dentists.

Peter has taken a lead role in infrastructure development
for this organisation and was instrumental in
development of the Clarendon Medical Centre. As a
member of the Murray to Moyne Fundraising team’s
activities he has supported MDHS annually with
amounts raised between $10-12,000 per year. These
funds have been used to purchase medical aids and
equipment, install an automatic door to the Medical
Imaging department and replace vital signs monitoring
equipment in the Theatre and Day Procedure Unit.

I would like to acknowledge staff throughout the Health
Service who have made a real commitment to delivering
a service that is in line with our MDHS Vision of Growing
a healthy community.

The role of the BOM is to establish policies and set
pathways for the Health Service to work towards. I believe
we have achieved this for our community. The BOM
works as a team, and I thank them for their trust, cooperation and good humour. I offer my heartfelt thanks
to the Executive Team and staff for your commitment
to MDHS’ values and the way in which you all translate
them into practical daily tasks to achieve the best results
for our community. And to our community, thank you
for putting your trust in us to deliver the very best quality
health care.

In helping to achieve our strategic vision staff have
implemented our Values of:
Respect Integrity Compassion Dignity
Collaboration Responsiveness Excellence.
From the greeting at reception, to the reassurance
on entering Theatre, staff demonstrate their pride in
working at MDHS. This is also reflected in our volunteers,
auxiliary members and supporters of our Organisation.
Combined, this makes a powerful group of people
working together to make real changes to the wellbeing
of the community.
This year the Board of Management has welcomed two
new Board members, Bernie Ward and Peter McAllister.
Both bring additional skills, different knowledge and
‘fresh eyes’ to an established Health Service Board. Their
induction process has been augmented by the existing
Board member’s health service and health industry
knowledge and expertise.
I would in particular like to extend my sincere thanks to
retiring board members Peter Silver and Jean Anderson,
and to acknowledge their collective 24 years of service
to the community through the MDHS Board. Both have
served as past BOM presidents, and as active committee
members on Audit, Quality Care and the Health Service
Reference Group.
As a founding member, Jean has shaped the role and
functions of several working groups which are capturing
the ‘MDHS story’, the Historical Archives Committee,
the Showcase of Innovations and Achievements, and the
Cancer Care project group.

The Board operates effectively because of the excellent
relationship we have established with the Executive Team.
I particularly want to acknowledge Chief Executive Glenis
Beaumont and past Executive Director of Nursing Fiona
Brew. Together with the other members of the Executive
Team of Bill James, Karen Laing, Tracey Wilson, Michael
Coleman and Nickola Allan, they are an impressive team,
experienced in health management who understand the
importance of honest engagement with their community.
We work well together and have achieved some
remarkable outcomes this year.

“

I would like to
acknowledge staff
throughout the
Health Service who
have made a real
commitment to
delivering a service
that is in line with
our MDHS Vision
of Growing a
healthy community.

”

In conclusion, I would like to acknowledge that this has
been another remarkable year for MDHS as we work
together to grow a healthy community.

Wendy McIvor
President, Board of Management
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Glenis Beaumont
Chief Executive

Responsible Ministers

Chief Executive’s Report
The MDHS Vision Growing a Healthy Community was
created to inspire us all to work towards improving the
wellbeing of our community. Our staff have certainly
embraced this concept through innovative programs and
work practices. MDHS Vision also helps our community
understand that we want to encourage them to share in
the responsibility of looking after their own health.
This year we have delivered on our Vision and while this
is an evolutionary process, I want to acknowledge the
support of the Executive Team and their staff in working
with me to achieve positive outcomes for our community.
In April this year Executive Director of Nursing (EDON)
Fiona Brew accepted a brilliant promotion at Goulburn
Valley Health. Fiona was part of MDHS for five years, and
has been an amazing contributor to the development
of our Clinical Services and the Nursing Profession.
Her expertise was recognised throughout industry and
government resulting in many opportunities to represent
rural health and nursing on State wide committees, and
to present at international conferences. All at MDHS wish
Fiona well as she progresses in her career.

Tracey, Bill and Karen join Eric Kennelly (Medical
Services), Nickola Allan(ADON/Quality & Risk Manager),
Sharnie Digby (Human Resources), Michael Coleman
(Executive Projects) and Leanne Winning (Residential
Aged Care) and myself as the Executive Team at MDHS.
I thank President Wendy McIvor for her encouragement
during the year, the support of the Board of
Management and my colleagues in the Executive Team
and the enthusiasm and willingness of all staff to
participate in the life of MDHS.
MDHS is Achieving through our Partnerships, and
the most important partnership we have is with our
community. This is strong and healthy through the
common link of our staff who are innovative, loyal, skilled
and hard working. They believe in MDHS’ Vision and are
willing to accept new challenges, to undertake training
and development to ensure they are ready for change.

Bill James as Director of Finance. Bill commenced in
April returning to public health after several years working
in the not for profit sector in Central Australia. His broad
and wide ranging background in metropolitan and urban
hospitals, and in the corporate sector are positively
contributing to MDHS business operations.
Karen Laing as EDON. Seeking to gain career experiences
in an integrated rural health service, Karen moved from
her role of nine years at St John of God Bendigo to join
MDHS initially as Corporate Project Officer in November
2013, and since then as EDON. Karen’s various
metropolitan, regional, public and private experiences will
support the progression of clinical services and nursing
professional development.
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Federal
Minister for Health and Minister for Sport
Hon Peter Dutton MP
Federal Member for Dickson
State
Minister for Health and Ageing
Hon David Davis MLC
Member for Southern Metropolitan
Minister for Mental Health and Community Services, Women’s
Affairs and Disability Services and Reform.
Hon Mary Wooldridge MLA
Member for Doncaster
Minister for Housing, Children & Early Childhood Development
Hon Wendy Lovell MLC
Member for Northern Victoria
Department of Health
Secretary, Department of Health
Dr Pradeep Philip
Director, Health and Aged Care, Loddon Mallee Region
Ann-Maree Conner

We have welcomed new Executives this year Tracey Wilson as Director Community Services. Tracey
commenced in August after seven years with Ballarat
Health Services (BHS). Her most recent role at BHS
involved Population Health and Strategic Planning
Manager. Tracey has a strong grounding in rural health
issues and in management of public dental services. In
the time that Tracey has been with MDHS, her team have
grown as a direct result of her strong leadership and
inclusiveness.

Responsible Ministers for the reporting period
1 July 2013 – 30 June 2014:

Glenis Beaumont
Chief Executive

“

MDHS is Achieving
through our
Partnerships, and
the most important
partnership we
have is with our
community.

”

Responsible Bodies’ Declaration
as at 30 June 2014

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present the Report of
Operations for Maryborough District Health Service for the year ending 30 June 2014.

Wendy McIvor
President, Board of Management
Maryborough District Health Service
15 July 2014
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Corporate Governance
Board of Management

The Board of Management (BOM) administers
Maryborough District Health Service according to
established Corporate Governance practices and
procedures, which are reviewed regularly. The BOM is
responsible for governance and legislative compliance
and works within the framework of the Health Services
Act to establish policies and deliver, within its financial
limitations, a strategic direction for the management of
Maryborough District Health Service.

Committee Reporting Structure

Members of the Board of Management are appointed
by the Governor-in-Council on the recommendation of
the Minister for Health. The usual term of office is three
years, with members able to seek re-appointment.
Members receive no remuneration for activities
associated with the Health Service BOM.

Board of Management

Leadership &
Management

Pecuniary and Conflict of Interest
At the commencement of each Board meeting,
members are asked to declare any pecuniary and/or
conflict of interests. None were recorded for the year.

Quality
Audit

Nursing
Leadership

Nursing
Directorate
staff meetings

Community
Services
Leadership

Community
Services staff
meetings

Visiting Medical
Officers

Residential
Care

Department
Heads
Management
Systems
(Corporate)

General
Staff

Board of Management as at 30 June 2014
Absent - Lyn Symons

President
Wendy McIvor
AdDipM, TSPTC
Business Leader
Appointed: 2003
Term of Office: 01.07.12 - 30.06.15
Vice President:
Darren Murrell
First Class Fitter and Machinist, Cert Tech
and Man
Production Assistant
Appointed: 2010
Term of Office: 01.07.13 – 30.06.16
Treasurer
Ray Hannan
BAppSc, DipAppChem, DipEd(Sec)
Retired Principal
Appointed: 2010
Term of Office: 01.07.13 – 30.06.16

14
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Member
Lynette Symons
DipComServices (FinPlanning),
DipComWelfareWork}Rural Financial
Counsellor
Appointed: 2009
Term of Office: 01.07.12 – 30.06.15
Member
Jean Anderson
MEd, GradDipEdAdmin, BEd(Post Grad),
BA, Dip Ed, DipArts, Cert Gen Nsg, FCoN
Retired
Appointed: 2002
Term of Office: 01.07.11– 30.06.14
Member
Fiona Lindsay
BA(LaTrobe), GradDipSocWork(Melb)
Small Business Owner, member Mental
Health Review Board
Appointed: 2008
Term of Office: 01.07.13 - 30.06.16

Member
Robert Osborne OBE
DipAppChem, TTTC
Retired Technical Teacher, Civil Celebrant
Appointed: 2008
Term of Office: 01.07.12 – 30.06.15
Member
Peter Silver
Retired Business Manager		
Appointed: 2002
Term of Office: 01.07.11– 30.06.14

National
Standards
Working Groups

Hotel Services
Steering

1,2, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15

Staff Meetings
• Buildings & Services
• Finance/Admin
(inc. Payroll & Supply)
• Medical Imaging
• Hotel Services

Care
Standards
(Clinical)

Medical Credentialling
& Scope of Practice
updates

Resi Care
Sub Committee

Medical Credentialling
& Privileging

Health Service
Reference Group

Medication
Advisory

Occupational Health
& Safety

CancerCare
Steering

Environmental
Sustainability

Historical
Archives
Maternity
Services
Clinical
Forms

BoM Working Group
MDHS Showcase of
Innovations & Achievements

Health Professionals
Credentialling & Scope
of Practice updates

Member
Bernadette Ward
PhD, GradCertEd, BNsg,
MPublicHlth&TropicalMed,
MHlthSci(Public Health Practice)
Senior Research Fellow		
Appointed: 2013
Term of Office: 01.07.13– 30.06.16
Member
Peter McAllister
General Manager
Appointed: 2013
Term of Office: 01.07.13– 30.06.16

Audit

National
Standards
Working Groups
2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10

KEY
Corporate
Committees

Quality
Committees

Clinical reporting
to Quality

Corporate reporting
to Quality

Community
Consultation
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Corporate Governance
Committees of the Board of Management
*Denotes alternative member

Audit

Committee Members

The Audit committee is responsible for the operation of the
financial and risk management framework of MDHS, the
performance and independence of internal auditors and the
effectiveness of management and other systems of internal
control. The committee also monitors compliance with laws
and regulations and its own Code of Conduct and Code of
Financial Practice. Crowe Horwath has been the appointed
Internal Auditor for 2013-14.

Fiona Lindsay (Chair)
Peter Silver
Marg Pilgrim
Martin Saul (retired in June 2014)
Dawn Musgrove
Ian Kemp (retired in March 2014)
Tania Barcham
Denise Greenwood

Committee Members
John Dellavedova
(Independent Chair – retired in October 2013)
Mark Johnson (Independent member)
Peter Egan (Independent member)
Lyn Symons

Peter McAllister*
Bernadette Ward*
Chief Executive
Executive Director of Nursing
Director of Community Services
Campus Director of Nursing

Ray Hannan
Peter Silver
Robert Osborne*
In attendance
Crowe Horwath (appointed Internal Auditor)
McLean Delmo Bentleys (Appointed VAGO auditors)
Chief Executive

Medical Credentialing
and Privileging
Meets on a regular basis to review registration and scope
of practice of all medical staff. Operates credentialing
and scope of practice systems in keeping with industry
standards.

Quality Audit
The Quality Audit committee is responsible for ensuring
that client services are provided within an organisational
wide quality program and culture. This is assured through
monitoring, reporting, evaluation and improvement. It
ensures that MDHS is compliant with all legal, regulatory
and government standards and provides advice on clinical
risk management planning processes and progress.

Director of Finance

Committee Members
Health Services Reference Group
The Health Service Reference Group, comprising community
representatives, advises the BOM on major strategic issues
and initiatives relevant to the health of the community.
Members participate in broad strategic planning, policy
development processes and act as a conduit with the
community, all of which contribute to the advancement of
MDHS’ services in the community.

Maryborough District Health Service

BOM sub committees
CancerCare Steering Committee
Historical Archives Committee
MDHS Showcase of Innovations & Achievements

Organisational committees
Care Standards
Clinical Forms

Fiona Lindsay (Chair)

Environmental Sustainability

Director of Medical Services, Eric Kennelly (Chair)

Wendy McIvor

Hotel Services Steering

Peter Silver

Darren Murrell

Leadership and Management

Lyn Symons

Ray Hannan

Management Systems

Robert Osborne

Chief Executive

Maternity Services

VMO representative/s

Executive Director of Nursing

Medication Advisory

Bernadette Ward*

Director of Community Services

Nursing Leadership

Chief Executive

Associate Director of Nursing/Quality and Risk Manager

Occupational Health and Safety

Executive Director of Nursing

Peter McAllister*

Residential Care

Associate Director of Nursing/Quality and Risk Manager

16
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Organisational Structure

Corporate Governance
Executive Management As at 30 June 2014

Board of Management
Chief Executive

Chief Executive
Glenis Beaumont

Director of
Medical
Services

• Medical Credentialling
• Medical Staff
• Medical Reports

Executive
Director of
Nursing

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Visiting Medical
Officers

Quality &
Risk Manager

Acute
CSSD
Day Procedure Unit
Dialysis
Health Information
Management
Infection Control
Maternity Services
Operating Suite
Pharmacy
Post Acute Care
Pre Admission
Residential Care
Staff Development
Unit
Urgent Car Centre

Associate
Director of
Nursing

• District Nursing
• Paliative Care

Director of
Community
Services

Human
Resources
Manager

• Allied Health
• Best Start
• Communithy
Nursing
• Counselling
• Dental
• Drug & Alcohol
• Health Promotion
• Housing
• HARP
• Planned Activity
Groups
• Social Work
• Speech Therapy
• Wellness & Support
Centre

• Human Resources
• Employee Relations
• Payroll

Community
Services
Manager
Dentist

After Hours
Coordinators

Health Information
Manager

Director of
Finance

• Finance
• Administration
• Supply

Executive
Project Officer

• E-Health
• Executive Projects
• Information
Technology
• Wellness &
Support Centre

Karen Laing

MHA, DipAppSci (Nursing), CCRN, RN, GAICD, AFACHSE, MRCNA
Appointed: 2014

The Executive Director of Nursing (EDON) has overall responsibility for the management of nursing staff in acute,
residential and sub-acute, performance indicators, waiting lists and budgetary responsibility for all clinical areas. The EDON
has line management for nursing services across the three campuses – Avoca, Dunolly and Maryborough – Dialysis, Health
Information, Infection Control, Pharmacy, Staff Development and Theatre.

Volunteer
Coordinator

OH&S Manager/
Hotel Services
Project Officer

Pharmacist
Building &
Services Manager
SDU Coordinator
• Transition Care

Director of Nursing
Avoca Campus

• Hotel Services
Avoca Campus

With a strong commitment to rural health and an understanding of the challenges experienced by rural communities, Ms
Beaumont is leading the Executive Team to work with Government, other services and the communities of the MDHS
catchment to build partnerships that develop and deliver high quality, sustainable health and wellbeing outcomes. The
Chief Executive has line management for Building & Services, Fundraising, Hotel Services, Human Resources, Media/PR,
Medical Imaging and OH&S.

Executive Director of Nursing

• OH&S
• Emergency
Management
• Hotel Services
• Waste Management

Director of Medical Services
Eric Kennelly

Medical Imaging
Manager

Director of Residential
Aged Care / Director
of Nursing Dunolly
Campus

MBA, RM, RN, GAICD, MACoN
Appointed: 2011

BSc, MBBS, DipRACOG
Appointed: 2011
• Maintenance
infrastructure &
grounds
• Fleet
• Energy & Resource
Efficiency
• Security

Public Relations
Coordinator

• Hotel Services
Dunolly Campus

The Director of Medical Services (DMS) is responsible for credentialing, appointments and scope of practice for Visiting
Medical Officers. The Director of Medical Services has a medical leadership role within the health service and contributes
to the quality service provision. The Director of Medical Services has played a vital role in initiating an intern placement
program, to be implemented in the year ahead.

Director of Community Services

Fundraiser
Manager

Tracey Wilson

MPHAA, MAICD, MBA, DipAppSci (Dental Therapy)
Appointed: 2013

Nurse Unit
Managers

KEY
Medical Services
Directororate
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Nursing
Directororate

Quality & Risk
Reporting Lines

Community Services
Directorate

Corporate Services
Directorate

The Director of Community Services has responsibility for Allied Health, Community Health, Alcohol and Other Drugs,
District Nursing, Dental, Health Promotion and Planned Activity Group. The Director of Community Services provides
leadership that strengthens and improves primary care services that reflect health reform in the rural sector. The Director
of Community Services has a key role in building partnerships in the local community as the Lead Agency representative
responsible for Best Start and as a member of the Executive of the Go Goldfields Health Alliance.

2014 Annual Report

19

Achieving through Partnering

Corporate Governance

Directorate Reports
Achieving through Partnering in NURSING AND CLINICAL SERVICES

Director of Finance
Bill James

The Nursing and Clinical Services
Directorate continues to be reviewed and
develop. I appreciate and support the
collaboration and commitment of staff
to furthering their skills and providing the
highest possible quality of person centred
care for our patients. Notwithstanding

BA, MProjMangt, CPA, F Fin
Appointed: 2014

The Director of Finance provides strategic financial advice and manages MDHS’ finances within agreed parameters and
legislative requirements. Responsibilities include Budget and Finance, and Supply. The Director supports the development
of finance management skills of MDHS managers.

Assoc. Director of Nursing / Quality and Risk Manager
Nickola Allan

RN, GradDipFrontlineMgt
Appointed: 2012

The primary focus of the Associate Director of Nursing/Quality and Risk Manager is to support the Executive Director of
Nursing in the management of the nursing division, integrate Risk Management across the three campuses and to ensure
that the Health Service meets all Compliance Standards for Accreditation. The ADON / Quality and Risk Manager has
responsibility for District Nursing and Avoca Nurse Led Clinic and works closely with staff to enhance the knowledge of
quality and risk processes and systems.

Director Residential Aged Care / Director of Nursing – Dunolly
Leanne Winning
RN, DipMgt
Appointed: 2013

Responsible for the management of quality for of Residential Aged Care, maintaining standards and quality improvement,
providing support, leadership and collaboration to residential care managers, responsible for Avoca, Maryborough and
Dunolly.

Human Resource Manager
Sharnie Digby
ProfDipHR
Appointed 2012

The Human Resource Manager is responsible for maintaining overall employment and employee management systems,
processes and compliance. Key lead and senior advisor on employment matters, industrial relations, workplace change
processes, volunteer management, work experience and workcover.

Executive Project Officer
Michael Coleman
Appointed: 2011

The Executive Project Officer has strategic responsibility for developing a range of operational and infrastructure projects,
overall management of Information and Communication Technology, development of e-Health strategies together with a
range of other corporate initiatives and the establishment of the Wellness and Support Centre.
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Karen Laing

Executive Director of Nursing I MHA, DipAppSci (Nursing), CCRN, RN, GAICD, AFACHSE, MRCNA

Nursing Directorate
– Senior Staff
As at 30 June 2014
Associate Director of Nursing /
Quality and Risk Manager
Nickola Allan
RN, PGDipFrontline Mgmnt
Director of Residential Aged Care /
Director of Nursing - Dunolly
Leanne Winning
RN, DipMgt

After Hours Co-ordinators
Kerry Egan
RN, RM,RIPERN, PGDAcuteCare,
Accredited Nurse Immuniser
Maree Gale
RN, RM, Accredited Nurse Immuniser
Helen McAuley
RN, RM, BNsg, PGCOncPallCare,
PGCertInfectionCtl
Karina Ottery
RN, RM, BNsg, GradDipPeriOpNsg

Director of Nursing - Avoca
Trevor Miles RN

Cherie Mill
RN, Grad Cert EmNursing,
Cert Intensive Care, TAA

Nurse Unit Managers
Perioperative / Urgent Care Centre
Heather Blazko
RN, NPC, BHSc(Nsg), PGCertEmNsg

Gail Price
RN, RM, Accredited Nurse Immuniser,
PGCertSexual & Reprod Health, PGCert
Prostrate Care, PGCert Breast Care

Amherst Ward
Cathryn Egan
RN, RM, Bree Cain RN

Jill Harris
RN

Maryborough Nursing Home
Wendy Rogasch
RN, RM, PGCertAdvAcuteCare,
PGDipCritCare, DipBusMgt,
PGCertHlthPrfsnlEd
Dunolly
Donna Bell
RN
Avoca
Geraldine Pietsch
RN
District Nursing
Robyn Simpson
RN, RM

the newness of my appointment,
I am cognisant of the attitude and
commitment of staff to continually be
positive in the face of change. In the
year ahead, as we approach National
Standards Accreditation, I am confident
the preceding hard work by staff will be
rewarded with successful outcomes.

Infection Control Co-ordinator
Helen McAuley
RN, RM, BNsg, PGCOncPallCare,
PGCertInfectionCtl
Pharmacist
Dayo Ayorinde
BPharm, Grad Dip Clinical Pharmacy
Health Information Manager
Faye Rae
BAppSci(HIM)
Staff Development Unit Co-ordinator
Denise Richards
MProfEd&Trng(WVET), RN,
PGDipEmergNsg, TNCC

Achievements
Patient Care
Our overriding focus remains on ‘patientcentred care’ so that we endeavour to provide
health services for our patients as close to their
home as possible and in line with their wishes
and goals.
We have continued to build on the solid
foundation laid in the last 2 years, with the aim
of consolidating current services in line with
changes to funding, and diversifying where able
to meet the demand for new services. To this
end, we have seen:
• Further growth in surgery, with new surgeons
operating at MDHS including Mr Matt Oliver
and Mr Michael Ng (both General Surgeons).
Along with the other dedicated surgeons who
visit regularly, these additional surgical lists
have helped increase procedure numbers
to more than 1500 per annum, and enable
more patients to undergo elective surgery in
Maryborough, without the need to travel to
Ballarat, Bendigo or Melbourne.
• Significant progress for the Rural Patient
Flow and Access Network, which has
overseen the development of a system to
monitor patients in hospitals outside their
home town. With the support of $50,000
funding from the Sustainable Hospitals’
Program, this initiative has enabled
the earlier transfer of patients back to
Maryborough from (for example) Ballarat
to continue their care closer to home, where
family and friends can visit and support
them in their recuperation.
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Directorate Reports

Taking part in the BPCLE quality framework assessment are: Back Row: Tracey Wilson – Director Community Services, Cathy Egan – Nurse
Unit Manager Amherst, Denise Richards – Staff Development Unit Coordinator, Sherree Fisher – Administration Assistant, Sylvia Putman
– Registered Nurse, Glen Wallace – Coordinator Loddon Mallee Clinical Training Network, Front Row: Chantal Pratt – Dental, Anne Watson –
Community Services Manager, Maree Cooper – Clinical Support Nurse, and Sue Koenders – Clinical Support Nurse.

Achieving through Partnering in NURSING AND CLINICAL SERVICES

• An increase in the use of tele-health solutions, such
as Video-Conferencing, to support assessment and
consultation with specialists. This has meant many
patients have not needed to leave the hospital or wait
for an appointment or the next scheduled visit for a
specialist consultation.

• a 13% reduction in falls and/or reduced harm
occurring from falls; with no falls with fractures since
implementing the program,

• Tremendous progress in the planning and
development of our Cancer Services, with Day
Chemotherapy scheduled to commence in
Maryborough in September 2014, and at the same
time the Wellness and Support Centre will open its
doors. The planning and preparation for these final 2
stages of the CancerCare project means we are ahead
of schedule due in no small part to the generosity of
the local community in donating funds for equipment
and scholarships to assist training for nurses in the
Oncology specialty.

• a reduced length of stay for cases where we regularly
exceeded the State average length of stay.

• This year MDHS District Nursing Service has assisted
60 palliative care clients in the community, providing
over 1000 visits to these clients. In the Merrin Suite,
we have cared for 31 patients and their families during
the final stages of their lives. We are extremely proud
to have achieved outstanding results in the state-wide
Patient Satisfaction Survey relating to the palliative care
service. MDHS Community Palliative Care service was
rated highest of all regional services and exceeded
the State average in many of the aspects of service
surveyed.
Improving Practice
Staff have been actively engaged in several innovative
projects designed to review work practices and improve
efficiency, so we can maximize the time available for staff
to provide patient care.
The Productive Ward project, funded by a grant from
the Department of Health as part of the Redesigning
Hospital Care Program, has been extremely successful in
achieving:
• an increase in regular patient observations being
undertaken and earlier identification of those at risk of
clinical deterioration,
• a 19% reduction in medication errors with the
introduction of the National Inpatient Medication
Chart and the communication of specific medication
information at handover between nurses,
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• enhanced systems for referral to Allied Health when
required and reduced delays in patient discharge, and

Challenges
In October 2014, MDHS will undergo Hospital
Accreditation for the first time under the new
EQuIPNational program. We will be surveyed for the first
time against the 10 National Safety and Quality Health
Standards as well as the 5 EQuIPNational standards
which are derived from key elements of the former EQuIP
program, covering our performance relating to service
delivery processes, provision of care and non-clinical
systems.

The Future
• Oncology Day Chemotherapy unit is scheduled to
commence in September 2014.

Partnership highlights in Nursing and Clinical Services
include:
- Two significant nursing roles introduced to MDHS
The introduction of two advanced nursing roles have
progressed nursing services at MDHS. The ‘Nurse
Practitioner’ (NP) role and the ‘Rural and Isolated
Practice Endorsed Registered Nurse’ (RIPERN) role are
intended to add value to the Organisation and enhance
the delivery of health care services.

• Review of our Nursing Graduate Program – to ensure
it continues to support recruitment and development
of RNs and ENs to provide care across the variety of
settings associated with a Regional Health Service. We
recognize that we currently have an ageing nursing
workforce with a diverse skill set, who need to be
supported and gradually replaced as they reduce
their work commitments and approach retirement.
We want to draw on the skills and experience of
these professionals as much as we can to assist in
developing the nurses of our future.

Heather Blazko has been appointed as the NP candidate,
with Kerry Egan appointed for RIPERN.

• Build on the work completed to date and improve
Palliative Care and End of Life Care, with the
implementation of formal advanced care structures
and processes. We will develop standardized tools for
use across all clinical settings (acute, community and
residential aged care) to support the identification
of Advanced Care Plans, Medical Power of Attorney,
Statements of Wishes etc that will provide patients
with opportunities to have their expressed preferences
for treatment and care enacted.

Under this model of care there will be a reduction in the
need for certain patients to be seen by a GP. However,
if a patient’s condition is critical and/or requiring
management by a GP or other health care professional,
these roles are designed to work collaboratively with other
clinicians to ensure the best outcome for patients.

Although relatively new to healthcare in Australia,
Advanced Nursing Practice roles have provided
healthcare in other countries since the 1960s.
The focus of the roles is to perform advanced health
assessments to initiate treatment, investigations,
medication and referral for patients presenting to
the Urgent Care Centre with needs that are non-life
threatening.

It also allows greater opportunity for health promotion
and patient education to be integrated into the provision
of non-emergency care and promotes earlier referral to
other healthcare providers.
MDHS anticipates outcomes will include:
• Increased collaboration between the Urgent Care
Centre medical and nursing staff;
• Expanded professional development pathways for
Registered Nurses;
• Retention of expert Nurses in rural and regional areas;
• A reduction of GPs’ workload by decreasing the
number of interruptions to their clinics during the day;
• Increased opportunity to develop collaborative
agreements with outlying health services for the
provision of Nurse Practitioner services where there are
limited medical services available.
Congratulations to Kerry and Heather for completing
these studies.

The introduction of these two positions means that our
community has timely access to non-emergency care (i.e.
reduce the time taken to be seen).
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Achieving through Partnering in NURSING AND CLINICAL SERVICES

Achieving through Partnering in STAFF DEVELOPMENT

- Best Practice Clinical Learning Environment (BPCLE)
quality framework assessment
MDHS was one of the first throughout Victoria to
participate in the Best Practice Clinical Learning
Environment (BPCLE) quality framework assessment.

WoSSP Program

The framework assesses the strengths and opportunities
for improvement that exist within the Organisation’s
clinical learning environment. It is the start of a
continuous improvement program we have committed
to. It will ensure clinical staff and students who work and
train at MDHS’ facilities continue to deliver the very best
health care outcomes to patients who use the service.
MDHS’ commitment to a best practice clinical learning
environment is a part of the organisation’s longer term
strategy to continually attract and retain clinicians with
the skills necessary to deliver the full variety of services
required by the community.

MDHS leading Regional
Patient Flow & Access Nursing
Collaboration
In collaboration with Ballarat Health Services, Stawell
Regional Health and East Grampians Health Service,
MDHS is bringing key health services together to
plan how shared acute and sub-acute health system
goals can be achieved. MDHS has taken a lead role in
developing and implementing the Regional Patient Flow
& Access Nursing Collaborative. This initiative is fostering
even closer relationship with our colleagues in both
regional and rural health services within the Grampians
region, and creates a direct interface with the Victorian
Government’s Health Priorities Framework 2012-2022.

As a small rural health service MDHS understands
the challenges of providing a comprehensive health
service, within budgetary constraints. However, we are
in the fortunate position to offer larger regional health
organisations, services that will assist them with surgical
waiting lists, and reduce bed pressure on regional
hospitals. This is a great outcome for the community, and
health services.
Together we are strengthening our clinical services and
delivery of appropriate programs to meet the needs
of our communities. Over the past two years using
video conferencing we have come a long way in sharing
resources, understanding clinical capability of rural
health services, utilising skills, and making effective
use of latent capacity in our facilities and generally
supporting each other. This is what we have to do to
enhance our overall service delivery to the community.

In partnership with North West Rural Medical Education
Unit, School of Rural Health at Monash University’s
Prof. Natalie Radomski and WoSSP Educator from
Castlemaine Health Jenny Oxley, MDHS introduced a new
clinical placement program for medical, nursing and allied
health students aimed at giving them a whole-of-system
view of local health services.
The Whole-of-System Student Placement (WoSSP)
program brings medical, nursing and allied health
students into small teams for an inter-professional
learning program that enables them to better appreciate
the lived experience of people with chronic or complex
health care needs.
In small teams, students worked closely with patients as
they made their way through the local health and welfare
system in the MDHS Catchment. Students undertake
structured inter-professional learning activities, attend
patient appointments, conduct home visits (with the
patient’s permission) and visit local health and welfare
agencies. The patients themselves play an important
teaching role during the program.

The WoSSP program team were a nominee in the ‘People in Health’
Awards, pictured with Minister for Health, David Davis.

The one-day-per-week program was embedded within
existing clinical placements so it formed a component
of the overall student placement experience. All work
undertaken counted towards the students’ required
clinical placement hours.
Eleven students participated in the inaugural program, all
successfully completing their placements.

The main outcome of this initiative is to support health
service access for rural patients, so they will not be
disadvantaged by where they have chosen to live.
Health service administrators understand the imperative
to create more efficient and streamlined operations. The
Regional Patient Flow and Access Nursing Collaborative
will support health services’ self-sufficiency while
delivering quality person centred care closer to home.
There is a real possibility to progress these processes into
a hub and spoke model that will fundamentally change
the way in which hospitals cluster clinical activity.
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Eleven students successfully completed the inaugural WoSSP program
pictured here with MDHS staff.

Prof. Natalie Radomski of the North West Rural Medical Education Unit,
Monash University School of Rural Health explaining the Whole System
Approach at the WoSSP graduation
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Achieving through Partnering in STAFF DEVELOPMENT

Diploma of Nursing
MDHS has been leading the way in developing and
delivering accredited Nurse training programs, designed
specifically for rural health services.
Initial discussions to conduct accredited nurse training
programs at MDHS commenced in 2008, with the first
program launched in 2009. MDHS has established an
ongoing partnership with Federation University Australia,
previously University of Ballarat, which has greatly
enhanced the viability of our Health Service as well as
strengthened prospects for future employment for people
living in the district.
Rural health care providers across Australia are
experiencing ongoing difficulties to recruit suitably
qualified staff. Research indicates that the average age of
nurses is in the late forties. As it has become increasingly
difficult to recruit and retain qualified staff, this accredited
training program reflects the importance of investing in
our future through education and training to provide the
community real opportunities to work and live where they
choose.
The program developed at MDHS has been able to be
used by other health services in the region in order to
recruit from within their locale.
This year, eight graduates successfully completed the
two and a half year part time course for the Diploma of
Nursing at MDHS and were recognised at a graduation
ceremony in December 2013. This was the third Diploma
of Nursing course to be conducted at MDHS.

This year, eight graduates successfully completed the two and a half year part time
course for the Diploma of Nursing at MDHS and were recognised at a graduation
ceremony in December 2013.

Having graduated, the students have chosen either
employment or to continue with further study to become
Registered Nurses.
The fourth Diploma of Nursing is currently underway.
Twenty-six students are enrolled in the course; three are
internal applicants who have taken up the challenge to
expand their skills basis to enhance their personal and
professional ambitions. They are:
• Marita Stewart: Supply Department
• Ridge Ashcroft: Hotel Services
• Talia Trudgeon: Dental Services
MDHS supports their efforts and wishes them every
success with their studies.

Golden Key - April 2014
MDHS Enrolled Nurses Tiffinee McNabb and Mandy
Driscoll were recognised for their academic achievements
in nursing at Federation University Australia, and were
invited to join The Golden Key International Honour
Society. With over 400 Chapters around the world. The
Golden Key works on behalf of its members to promote
and reward them for their diligence. Only those students
whose performance over the past 12 months places
them in the top 15% of their university studies are invited
to join.
Tiffinee and Mandy completed the Diploma of Nursing
in 2013. This 18-month program conducted at MDHS
provides students with the qualification of Enrolled
Nurse. On completion, the two students immediately

enrolled into the Bachelor of Nursing at Federation
University Australia, which they will gain at the end of
2014.
MDHS is delighted that Tiffinee and Mandy have received
this recognition. Membership to Golden Key opens up an
exciting future, with contacts established worldwide.

Showcase of Innovations and
Achievements
At our 2013 Annual General Meeting Leigh Kinsman,
Associate Professor at the Centre of Research Excellence
in Rural and Remote Primary Health Care at Monash
University and Director of the Office of Research at
the School of Rural Health Bendigo, gave a passionate
presentation on the importance of collecting information
and storing it for future users.
Leigh‘s strong interest in closing the gap between
research and practice measured the enthusiasm shared
by MDHS Board Member Jean Anderson to build up a
knowledge base of projects undertaken by MDHS staff.
In July 2013, interested staff were invited to join a
committee to investigate ways in which MDHS could
start to contribute to a repository that is both a real and
virtual storeroom.
Over the past few years there have been many examples
of MDHS staff achieving some extraordinary results.
From Dr Rob Carson’s life saving procedure on a young
local boy – using a domestic drill, to Raylene Liddicoat’s
Early Intervention of Chronic Conditions using the
Flinders Model of Person Centred Care, to EDON Fiona
Brew’s presentations in Hong Kong and Chicago on
Technological Challenges and Advancements in Rural
Health.
MDHS has also been responsible for initiating the first
rural training program for Enrolled Nurses, the model
of which has been taken up by other health services.
We have redeveloped The Manse into contemporary
short term student and family accommodation, while
maintaining its heritage integrity. We have purchased and
redeveloped the Maryborough Medical Centre to provide
enhanced medical rooms, training space and community
consultation rooms.
These initiatives are made possible by the commitment
of staff to want to make a difference within our
community. The Showcase of Innovations and
Achievements committee has commenced collating and
cataloguing the details in a central database that can be
readily accessed into the future for research and learning
purposes.
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Proud new parents Kylie Glidden and Luke Keating with midwives Cathy Egan (all seated)
Julie Seirer, Helen Galloway and baby Imogen – born on International Midwives Day.

International Midwives and
International Nurses Days
International Midwives Day is recognised each
year worldwide on May 5, highlighting the work
of midwives. This year the theme for International
Midwives Day was “Midwives - Changing the
world one family at a time”.
At MDHS’ Maternity Department, midwives
celebrated with the birth of a new baby. In very
timely fashion, Kylie Glidden gave birth to her
second child, Imogen, on May 5th International
Midwives Day. Kylie, who is from St Arnaud, said
that MDHS was her choice for her son Kayden’s
delivery, and she returned to have little Imogen.
MDHS also conducts an Antenatal Clinic, in
preparation for birth, providing care to all women
from 13 weeks of pregnancy to full term. The
facilities are modern and designed for the
comfort of the women who attend the clinic.
Midwives provide mums with care and support
before, during and after the birthing process.
Nurse Unit Manager Cathy Egan said that
assisting to bring a new baby into the world and
sharing the experience is always very special.
This year 60 babies have been born at MDHS.

2014 Annual Report

27

Achieving through Partnering

Directorate Reports
Achieving through Partnering in MEDICAL SERVICES
Medical Services works in partnership
with local GPs and specialists and the
clinical teams throughout MDHS. I would
like to extensively thank the medical
and clinical staff for their ongoing
achievements in improving the health
and wellbeing of our local community. In
welcoming new Doctors to Maryborough,

Rauf Soomro
MBBS
Suman Tennakoon
MBBS, LRCP London,
MRCP, AMC, FACRRM

Urology

Michael Bardsley
MBBS, FRANZCOG

Robert Forsyth
MBBS, FRACS

Russell Dalton
MBBS, FRANZCOG
Natasha Frawley
MBBS
Katrina Guerin
MBBS, MRANZCOG
Chantelle Stubna
MBBS

Dental
Pauline Mwangi
BDS
John Hazledine
BDS
Mark Holcroft
BDS
Gaurav Maheshwari
ADC

Oncology

Puneeta Maheshwari
BDS

John Sycamnias
MBBS, B Pharm, FRACP

Andrew McKay
BDS

General Surgery

Orthopaedic

Simon Sheed
BDS, LDS

Michael Condous
MBBS, FRACS

John Nelson
MBBS, FRACS(Orth)

Andrew Lowe
MBBS, FRACS

Palliative

Michael Ng
BMMS, FRACS

Rebecca Chapman
MB BChir, DIP TM&H

David Tynan
MBBS, Dip RACOG, FRACG
Adele van der Merwe
BSc (Hons), MBBS, JCCA

Renal Medicine and
Dialysis
John Richmond
MBBS, FRACP

• Preliminary work to plan (and receive
accreditation) for a new rural Intern program
within Grampians region.
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• Maintaining strong professional relationships
with our two regional health services to ensure
supports to our clinicians and our community
when next level care is required.
• Balancing service expansion, professional
stimulation and work life balance for medical
staff is challenging in smaller communities.
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OPG 13/14

The leadership and commitment of Nick Bush, CEO of
EGHS has been pivotal in the success of the submission
for funding.
Supported by our local experienced GPs and a Visiting
Surgeon MDHS will provide rotations in Surgical and
General Practice for the interns.
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The potential opportunity to do part of their internship
in a rural setting has proven to be very popular with new
doctors. There are five internship placements available
and there have been 120 applicants.
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Medical Internships at MDHS

Working with St John of God, Ballarat (SJOG) and East
Grampians Health Service (EGHS) MDHS is a partner
in the successful application for funds from State and
Federal Governments. The Rural Community Intern
Training (RCIT) Program will commence in 2015.

Challenges
• Our rural location will always challenge
recruitment and retention of medical and
other specialist staff.

Radiographer David Singe and staff in his department
demonstrate enthusiasm and commitment to ensure an
efficient, customer focused service.

MDHS worked as one of three rural hospitals working
together to develop a program to provide rural training for
medical interns.

150

Ju
ne

Hwee Chin Siew
MBBS

Obstetrics and
Gynaecology

• Succession planning through recruitment of
Dunolly GP Rauf Soomro to replace Peter
Brady, support to the Avoca community
in their success in recruiting Martin Lee to
Avoca, and the extension of Jamie Sharples
practice to now also include Obstetrics.

CT 13/14

Ju
ne

Tamjida Siddque
MBBS, AMC

(contract reporting service)

Lake Imaging

Michael Carter
MBBS

• Support to Castlemaine Health through
the provision of theatre sessions during 10
months of Theatre refurbishments.

M
ay

Jamie Sharples
MSc(Hon), MBBS, JCCA

Radiology

The C.T. (computerised tomography) scan uses a
computer to take data from several X-ray images of
structures inside a human body and converts them into
pictures on a monitor. Tomography is the process of
generating a 2-dimensional image of a slice or section
through a 3-dimensional object. Similar to looking at one
slice of bread within the whole loaf.

M
ay

Stephen Smith
MBBS (until May 2014)

David Clift
MBBS, FRCPA

• Increased Surgical Services with new general
surgeons Matthew Oliver, Michael Ng, and
ENT surgeon Mark Gurguis. General surgeon,
Manny Cao also operated at MDHS prior to
commencing in Echuca.

Ap
ril

Claire Hepper
MBBS

Lihua Ruan
MB

(contract reporting service)

Dorevitch
Ear, Nose and Throat
Mark Guirguis
MBBS

Martin Lee
MB

Pathology

Achievements

Ap
ril

Daniel Wong
MBBS, FRACS

Gajaharan Gangasuthan
MB

Keiran Lalor
BSc, MBBCh, FRACGP

Our partnership with Lake Imaging continues to provide
and support us with the latest in technology, information
and trends in the field of Radiology.

M
ar
ch

Bruce Stewart
MBBS, FRACS

Tiffany Shaw
FACPM, RCP, MBBS,
FRACGP

M
ar
ch

Danie de Villiers
BSc, HED, MBChB, MMED,
FRACGP

Matthew Oliver
MB CHB, MBBS

Ju
ly

Gavin Cuff
MBChB

The OPG (Orthopantomogram) machine is specifically
designed to produce panoramic tomographic X-rays
of the teeth, jaws and temperomandibular joints. Also
known as the “Dental XRay”

2013/14

Director of Medical Services I BSc, MBBS, DipRACOG
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Robert Carson
MBBS, FRACGP

X-ray		
5788
6294
OPG		
849
916
Ultrasound		
2957
3325
C.T.		
1410
1549

MDHS Medical Imaging has a strong partnership with
Lake Imaging, Ballarat and this has enabled us to achieve
a significant increase in our service to clients. Networking
and sharing information technology provided by Lake
Imaging has improved the turnaround of our report
times. The result has been better patient outcomes as
quicker and more accurate reporting enables improved
treatment.

Modality		 2012/13
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General Practitioners

Throughout the year, Medical Imaging has worked
collaboratively and effectively with other departments
within MDHS, particularly Urgent Care Centre and
Amherst Ward.

Medical Imaging is a diagnostic service that has
experienced strong growth in the number of
examinations performed over the past year.

Ju
ly

Eric Kennelly

Medical Imaging

Avoca and Dunolly, we are also farewelling
Peter Brady and Stephen Smith. Peter
has been a GP stalwart for the Dunolly
community, and Stephen for many years
provided our only local ENT service. My
thanks and best wishes are extended to
Peter and Stephen and their respective
families.

MDHS knows that positive experiences for interns on
rural placement result in significant increases in their
return to work as doctors in rural locations. The Rural
Community Intern Training Program is an important and
proactive initiative for the future of medical services in our
community.
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Directorate Reports
Achieving through Partnering in MEDICAL SERVICES

Achieving through Partnering in CORPORATE AND SUPPORT SERVICES
Corporate and Support Services works
in partnership with a wide variety of
departments across the organisation
and the community. The past year has
been significant as MDHS progresses
many areas of improvements. The

Retirement of Dr Peter Brady,
a passionate advocate for
rural health
A strong advocate for retaining rural health
services Dr Peter Brady moved to Dunolly in
1974, where he began as the town’s 26th
Medical Officer. In 1991 he joined what was to
become Maryborough District Health Service
(MDHS) and served the community for a further
22 years in his capacity as Medical Practitioner,
caring for the general community as well as
residents in the Dunolly Nursing Home.
Running the Medical Practice was very much a
partnership with his wife, Sue. As the Practice
Manager, Sue knew that life with a country
Doctor was a 24-hour a day, seven day a week
business. Dr Brady rarely took leave. After a
well-deserved holiday, Dr Brady and Sue plan to
make Dunolly their home. MDHS appreciates
their dedication and service to the community
and wishes them both an enjoyable and fulfilling
retirement.

Glenis Beaumont

Sue Brady, Dr Brady and Urgent Care Centre Nurse Unit Manager
Heather Blazko at a farewell afternoon tea given by MDHS to thank
Dr Brady for his years of service to the community.

There has been no break in medical service delivery for the Dunolly
community. Dr Rauf Soomro has been appointed and commenced
his Medical Practice.

Medical Microscope
Ear Nose and Throat Specialist Mark Guirguis and GP Anaesthetist Jim Sharples with
the new medical microscope purchased with funds from the Collier Charitable Trust

Chief Executive I RN, RM, MBA, GAICD, MACoN

Corporate and Support
Services - Senior Staff
as at 30 June 2014

Medical Imaging Radiographers
David Singe
DipAppSci(MedRad), MIR, ASAR
Val Hall
DipAppSci(MedRad), MIR
Human Resources
Sharnie Digby
ProfDipHR
Occupational, Health
& Safety Manager / Hotel Services Project Officer
Heidi Hine
BBus(HRM&Marketing), GradCert AppSc(OH&S)
Occupational, Health & Safety Manager
Gary Wagstaff
(maternity leave relief from April 2014)
Building and Services Manager
Daryl Stewart
Media and PR Manager
Fiona Watson
GradDipM (until May 2014)
PR/Volunteer Coordinator
Lee Duffin
DipComServ(ComDev)
Executive Project Officer
Michael Coleman
Fundraising Manager
Gloria Turner
DipMarketing, MFIA
Finance
Director of Finance
Bill James
BA, MProjMangt, CPA, F Fin
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Corporate Services team have again
shown their dedication, skill and expertise
in supporting all areas of MDHS. Well
done to all and my sincere thanks for
the continuing endeavours of all the
Corporate teams.

Achievements
• Conclusion of Hotel Services’ 18 month service improvement work
plan.
• No time lost due to industrial action or disputes.
• Local response to benchmarking across health to better align
MDHS Administrative support levels.
• Production of a contemporary and progressive MDHS Workforce
Plan.
• Local partnering achieved through a shared OH&S manager
appointment between MDHS and Opus Group (McPhersons).
• MDHS first Volunteer Coordinator appointment
• MDHS website refresh.
• Establishment of the Blue Ribbon Foundation Maryborough
Chapter
• IT enhancements have included the extension of Laptops
and iPads to department heads to assist MDHS in achieving
environmental goals and to support the transition to Windows 7.
WiFi availability to the Nursing Homes to support social connection
and assist in telehealth initiatives.
• Fluoridation works underway with completion planned September
2014.
• MDHS participation in the Councils local road works planning has
supported additional car parking throughout the health precinct.
• Extensive review of MDHS Emergency Management Plans.
• Refurbishment of the Dunolly Kitchen, with funding received to
replace the Maryborough dishwasher and air conditioning unit, and
install an automatic door.
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Achieving through Partnering in CORPORATE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

Challenges
• Range of system, funding and business changes to
come into effect July 1 for Residential Aged Care,
known to many as the ‘Living Longer Living Better’
reforms.
• Managing growth in IT infrastructure to support
functionality and business processes within limited
available funds.
• Progression of e-health initiatives.
• Ageing infrastructure across all three sites.
• Providing sufficient services to the community within
altered funding arrangements.
• Increasing costs of utilities.

The Future
• Ongoing workforce enhancements with further ‘Grow
your Own’ workforce activities including MDHS’ first
medical interns.
• Upgrade to MDHS Maryborough infrastructure
focussing on a new main entrance and infrastructure
linkages that will improve care coordination, access
and connectivity of services.
• Refurbishing the Wellness & Support Centre to be fit
for its new purpose of supporting those with cancer
and chronic disease to access information and services
that promote self-management.
• Working with the regional telehealth Consultant on
service enhancements with the progression from
telehealth to e-health services and activities including
aged care assessments, pre- and post-operative
consultations, and allied health supports.
Partnership highlights in Corporate and Support
Services include:
Local Goldfields and Pyrenees Councils, local and
regional businesses, and specialist services – Mary
Whelan (Food Consultant), AASB (Financial Services),
Crowe Horwarth (Auditing Services).
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Video Conferencing for Meetings
With two of the organisation’s campuses half an hour
away, facilitating inclusive meetings can be problematic.

MDHS’ Inaugural Service of Remembrance
During the year four well-respected, current staff
members at Maryborough District Health Service, died.

The introduction of regular video conferencing has
accelerated a new level of interaction and instantaneous
communication between campuses that MDHS did
not have previously. The outcome is increased levels of
direct participation and input, contributing to improved
coordination and integration between our three MDHS
campuses – Avoca, Dunolly and Maryborough.

Yvonne Greymans, Carina Lacey, Wendy Queripel and
Marcus Xavier were more than just work colleagues. They
were friends who shared personal moments, supported
others and contributed to the energy of the Health
Service.

Refurbishment of Dunolly Kitchen
This year one of the most impressive demonstrations
of the ability of our staff to work together was the refit
of our Dunolly Campus kitchen. The project aimed
to achieve a safer working environment and improve
efficiencies with minimal disruption to residents.
Staff from a number of departments across the
organisation planned and executed an intricate logistical
exercise to completely strip and refit the kitchen within a
three week timeframe.
Refurbishment to the kitchen included a new oven,
shelving, flooring and an additional freezer.
Prior to the Dunolly kitchen closing down for the
renovations, dry runs took place. Meals were prepared
and cooked at the Maryborough kitchen and transported
to Dunolly. Timing was of the essence to ensure that
residents were able to have their meals at the usual time.

Taking up the suggestions of staff, MDHS held a Service
of Remembrance to celebrate the lives and acknowledge
the importance of Yvonne, Carina, Wendy and Marcus in
the life of our organisation.
Local celebrant Reverend Sandra Field led a sensitive
and moving ecumenical service, with input from staff
members. It was a time to remember and celebrate four
people who will be missed in the MDHS community.
The Remembrance Service was the first of its kind at
MDHS. It gave staff who were unable to attend funerals
due to work commitments, a much needed opportunity
to support each other and say farewell. With over 65
family members, friends and colleagues attending
the service, it was also a time for celebration as we
remembered the fun times shared.
Whilst we hope we don’t need to hold such a service next
year, we certainly will if the occasion arises.

Career Horizons project – Work Experience Positions
On-line
Career Horizons was a six month project from October
2013 to April 2014 led by Central Goldfields Shire and
managed by a Bendigo based project team, together
with major employers and secondary schools in our
catchment. As a major employer, MDHS Human
Resource and Staff Development Unit were involved in
the partnership.
The project aimed to implement an ‘on-line’
program for students seeking work experience
by publishing work experience opportunities.
This gave students a central point of access and
information to make an informed decision about
the opportunities and options available.
Inclusion of all local major employers to
implement a common program whilst being
mindful of different industries and resources
available was a major challenge.
For MDHS, the program is an opportunity to
promote our organisation to local community
members as having a range of work experience
prospects which could lead to potential
employment. The system also supports work
experience processes that may increase the work
experience placements available at MDHS.

While the renovations were in progresses, a false floor
was created in a nearby room to relocate dried goods
storage, a portable cool room and sink facilities. This
room was also used to prepare breakfasts, snacks and
light evening meals.
The renovations affected not only the Dunolly campus,
but also the operations of our Maryborough kitchen.
Cooperation between the campuses ensured a seamless
process of delivering meals to Dunolly. The maintenance
staff and contractors pulled out all stops to deliver the
completed kitchen on time.
The Victorian Government funded the refurbishment with
a grant of $53,540 with MDHS contributing $10,000.
Ann-Maree Conners, Director of Health and Aged Care,
Loddon Mallee Region Department of Health, officially
opened the refurbished kitchen and said that the kitchen
now met all the standards necessary for Food Safety
Accreditation and responds to the recent Hotel Services
Review.

The memory table with photos of staff who have died
and candles of remembrance placed by families,
friends and colleagues
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Partnership highlights in COMMUNITY SERVICES include:

The Community Services team works in partnership on a daily basis. This occurs with
our clients and their families and carers, with other service providers and with funding and
regulatory bodies.

MDHS and Go Goldfields Alliance

Tracey Wilson

Director of Community Services I MPHAA, MAICD, MBA, Dip App Sci (Dental Therapy)

Community
Services Directorate
– Senior Staff
As at 30 June 2014

Community Services Manager
Anne Watson
RN, GradCertDiabEd & Mgt
Dentist
Pauline Mwangi
BDS (until May 2014)

Achievements

Challenges

• Staff positive approach to the changes
that have occurred this year, including
a new Director, the introduction and
embedding of the IPM system and
changes in the reporting requirements
to ensure the activity undertaken is
captured and reported.

• Changing landscape of funding
in the areas within Community
Services including the Alcohol and
Drug recommissioning and some
uncertainty with Rural Primary Health
Services (RPHS) funding.

• Reinvigoration of a team culture
within Community Services following
a significant period of change and
review.
• Significant improvement in the waiting
time for care in the community dental
program. This has occurred due to
the take up of vouchers though the
private sector. The result has been
an elimination of the waiting time for
people requiring dentures and a two
year reduction in the waiting time for
people seeking routine dental care.
• Progress and developments for the
Wellness & Support Centre will enable
this to open later in 2014 beginning
with limited services.
• Implementation and embedding of
the Productive Leader Program across
Community Services areas including
regular staff rounding sessions.
• The development of a staff meeting
area that has been utilised by all staff
within MDHS as needed. This area
has also been utilised by external
groups when required. This outcome
was achieved following a significant
team clean up of the Community
Services area and reallocation of staff
working areas.
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• Ability to recruit and retain staff into
positions at MDHS has impacted
on our ability to provide continuity in
some services, particularly in the allied
health area.
• Implementation of the IPM system
and ensuring that it was capturing
all of the activity correctly for funding
requirements.

The Future
• Implement services into the Wellness
& Support Centre to enable people
to access care, advice and programs
within Maryborough to assist in their
cancer and chronic disease journey.
• Continue to develop and embed the
delivery of services that are required
by the community responding where
and when they are needed.
• Achieve the targets and requirements
of our funding bodies and identify and
secure future funding to enable the
work to continue with our community.
• Active support and endorsement of
the introduction of water fluoridation
to Maryborough’s water supply by the
Department of Health which will result
in significant improvement to the oral
health of the community.

‘Go Goldfields’ is an innovative alliance of organisations
within the Central Goldfields Shire, created to deliver
locally relevant responses to social issues that are too
complex or long term for individual agencies to manage
in isolation. It is anticipated that the combined effort will
develop place based approaches to manage the issues
resulting in a large scale social change across the Central
Goldfields community.
MDHS has been a key partner in the Go Goldfields
alliance from the outset with the Director of Community
Services chairing the Best Start Stronger Families
executive network and attending the Executive meetings
of the alliance. Several other key staff within MDHS
are also involved in other working groups and initiatives
linked with the Go Goldfields strategies and work across
the community.
Despite the difficulties in clearly attributing outcomes to
specific work due to the collective effort from a variety
of partners and strategies, there is agreement that
the effort collectively is having a positive impact on the
community. One of the key achievements that MDHS
has played a major role in involves the Community
Speech Pathology work, which is building the capacity of
parents and early year service providers to detect issues
early and to collaboratively manage these issues ideally
prior to commencing school.
We are also involved in the employment network and
are actively seeking opportunities for VCAL students
to undertake projects as well as identify employment
opportunities within the health service.

BEST START

In September 2013, Best Start Stronger Families hosted
a Symposium on Vulnerable Children with guest speaker
Bernie Geary AM Independent Commissioner for
Children and Young People.
MDHS is the Lead Agency of the Best Start Stronger
Families Project with Community Services Director
Tracey Wilson a member of the Best Start Stronger
Families Executive.
The symposium invited health care agencies and local
government councils and agencies. All participating
agencies within the consortium were committed to
ensuring that young people and their families in the

Maryborough district were given every opportunity to feel
secure and supported as they started off in life.
Mr Geary has been working with vulnerable children,
young people and their families in a variety of
appointments for the last 35 years. He is currently
Victoria’s Independent Commissioner for Children and
Young People and as such he has the authority to initiate
his own enquiries and report directly to Parliament.
The symposium in Maryborough was an opportunity for
inter-agency co-operation to work together to ensure that
children have access to a one stop health and education
system, so that they are not moving from one agency
to another. Meeting together in an honest, open forum
guided by such a respected practitioner, was a great
opportunity for our community.

‘Best Practice’ Implementation for
HARP nurses

The Hospital Admission Risk Program (HARP) team
is community based, working with people who have
chronic complex medical and psychosocial issues. The
aim of the program is to educate clients to self-manage
their condition and prevent the need for multiple hospital
admissions.
Local GP practices and HARP team members noticed
that they sometimes saw the same clients and were
duplicating services. Both groups identified a need for
improved communication regarding the care being
provided to mutual clients.
In a partnership involving MDHS’ Executive Director of
Nursing and Director of Community Services, together
with GP practice managers, GP practice nurses and
Grampians Medicare Local, the HARP team worked
with both GP clinics in Maryborough to build stronger
collaboration to provide more effective service delivery
and, ultimately, the best health outcomes for clients.
Utilisation of a single, common computer system
‘Best Practice’ (already used by the clinics) allowed
the GPs, practice nurses and HARP nurses to enter,
access and share information about mutual clients and
communicate more effectively with each other .
“Best Practice” was installed on the HARP team
computers and practice nurses provided the HARP
nurses with instruction in the use of the program.
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Partnership highlights in COMMUNITY SERVICES include:

In addition, practice nurses and HARP nurses have a
regular monthly meeting to discuss mutual clients,
enabling the provision of more collaborative and
comprehensive health advice and outcomes.
The system has worked exceptionally well, with all
parties having access to the client’s care plan and other
pertinent information. Notes can be sent to GPs to
update information or ask questions without the former
inconvenience and delay of repeated telephone calls
to and from a busy practice. It is a “win” all the way
around with clients benefiting from a more effective, well
informed and seamless service.
The partnership is now looking further afield to other
GP’s in the MDHS catchment (Dunolly and Avoca) hoping
they will also allow HARP nurses access to share client
information through the Best Practice program.

True Foods
Community Health Nurse, Ali Cossar delivered a
Workplace Health Program conducting Health Checks
with over 300 employees at local food manufacturer, True
Foods. 44% of participants required referrals to MDHS
for exercise, weight loss and healthy eating advice.
The State Government Health Promotion project,
‘Healthy Together Victoria’ is currently operating in
Central Goldfields Shire. One of the project’s priority
areas is ‘Healthy Eating’ focusing on community, schools
and workplaces. In partnership with MDHS and two
Dietetic Students on placement from Deakin University,
together with the full support of management at True
Foods, a place base project was initiated to improve
eating habits and choices in the workplace focusing on
the canteen menu.
The Dietetic Students together with Ali Cossar at MDHS
collected data through emailed surveys, ‘face to face’
‘graffiti walls’ in the canteen, consulting with canteen
staff and attending meetings. The data revealed
employees consumed 90% Red Foods, well above the
recommended 20% according to the Healthy Choices
Hospital Guidelines.
A variety of actions were implemented in response
including an audit of the canteen, assistance to draft
a Healthy Eating policy, consultation and education
with canteen staff and employees, strategies in food
presentation moving the ‘healthier food’ to the front of
the bain marie, monitoring sales of healthy items and
offering a healthy or ‘green’ menu special each day of the
week.
For employees a ‘colour coded’ menu board was
developed with food options in green, amber or red
according to their nutritional status. Employees received
educational literature regarding the traffic light system
through payslips, posters, and noticeboards.

Robyn Jordan – Team Leader of the HARP team

The campaign used the slogan “Choose well. Feel
great”. True Foods employees are showing marked
improvements in making healthy choices and report they
are reaping the benefits in their health and wellbeing.

Our Community
MDHS gratefully acknowledges the support we receive from our volunteers, fundraisers, local businesses and donors.
Their contributions come in a variety of forms – funds, goods and services, information and advice, a broad range of skills
and experience, and in kind personal time. These generous contributions enhance the breadth and quality of our services,
enabling us to be responsive to the health and well-being needs of our community.

Friends of MDHS
(Maryborough Hospital Auxiliary)
The origins of the Maryborough Hospital Auxiliary
stretch back to the 1930s. One member has memories
of splitting hospital sheets in half, turning them over
and sewing them back together to extend their life and
use. Fundraising was often donated to provide items
like curtains, vases and carpets – essentially the soft
furnishings for various wards and rooms.
In more recent times, the 15 member Auxiliary have
donated a medical refrigerator, physiotherapy rails, a
patient transporter, a LED phototherapy device and
Friends of MDHS (Maryborough Hospital Auxiliary) members conducting
Dialysis chairs. During the past 25 years, this dedicated
a cake stall and Mother’s Day raffle.
group of volunteers has raised over $114,000 from cake
and produce stalls, special efforts and raffles for Mothers
Day, Fathers Day and Christmas. The group also stocks a cabinet in our front foyer with knitted items – baby booties,
mittens, hats, jumpers, outfits and rugs – all lovingly hand crafted. Proceeds from the sale of knitted items have also
contributed to this remarkable total, made possible by the generous donations of the group’s ‘knitting friends’.

Avoca Ladies Auxiliary

Records from the 1930’s show that the Avoca Ladies Auxiliary were approached to assist with payment of the cleaner’s
wages of 32 shillings a week. Interestingly, they declined. However they did raise funds for much needed items in the then
Avoca Bush Nursing Hospital, and have been doing so ever since. In the 1970’s, the Avoca Auxiliary raised funds by holding
annual balls, regular dances, card nights, garden parties and coffee mornings – contributing enormously to the social life
of the community. Current activities focus on raffles and catering for local funerals and community events. This is made
possible by the generous contributions from the groups’ extensive ‘baking tree’. This year funds raised have purchased new
drapes, laptop computer, a TV and a split system air conditioner/heater for the kitchen. A small group of active members
but a huge result with over $135,750 raised over the last 25 years.

Donations
Whilst we are unable to list them all here, Maryborough District Health Service sincerely appreciates the generous gifts of
goods, services and equipment regularly donated to the organisation by the local community.
Donations of goods, services and equipment help reduce organisational running costs, provide raffle prizes, contribute
towards a new health project or provide items that otherwise would not funded through normal budgetary channels.
Whether the donation is a discount for the embroidery of a volunteer polo shirt, a photo for the wall of the Palliative Care
suite, concrete paving in the courtyard garden or one of the many other items generously and selflessly contributed, we
thank you sincerely for your kindness and generosity.
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Donations

$500 and over (cont.)

Waste Not Feeders
Caterworx Hospitality

Spotlight
2013-2014
Donations
Name

Avoca Auxiliary

$7,710.91

Avoca Op Shop

$5,679.82

Phelan’s Funerals
Tranter Cloke Pty Ltd

Amount

Auxiliaries

$100 and over

Junction Motel

CancerCare (including Charity Golf Day)

Maryborough & District Girrahween Trefoil Guild

Global Wealth Centre

Maryborough Breast Cancer Support Group

Mitre 10 Maryborough

Bendigo Bank

Maryborough Masonic Lodge No. 22

Lohmann & Bond

Avoca Uniting Church

Johnson Auto & Marine Centre

$55,000

CWA Ballarat District

Friends of MDHS
(Maryborough Hospital Auxiliary)

$1,203.60

Rheola Charity Carnival Inc

$8921.75

Bequests
Estate of Edith Constance Dance

$0,965.94

Estate of Coral Punshon

$5,000.00

General Donations (over $100)
Collier Charitable Fund

Southern Cross Fair Freight Consultants

Ballarat Oncology & Haematology Services

$6,000 and over

ANZ Trustees

$6,412.62

Maryborough Country Music Club

$2,000.00

Martin School of Dance

$1,800.00

Staff Donations

Ken & Frank Smith
Central Goldfields Masonic Group

CancerCare Car donations

$2,000 and over

Murray to Moyne Cycle Relay

Julie-Anne Webster

Lynda Briggs
Kerry Egan

Pyrenees Magic Cycle Team

Christine Gillfillian

Maree Gale
Karen Grant

$2,000 and over

Rotary of Maryborough

Rotary Club of Maryborough

Central Powers
True Foods

Glenis Beaumont
$420.00

$3,000 and over

Redpath Tyre & Battery Services

ASQ

$100 and over

Jennifer Clark

Maryborough Toyota

$1,000 and over
$19,935.00

Nathan Kennedy

Margaret Gunther
Jillian Harris
Joan Hartley
Elaine Holland

$700 and over

Kathleen Humphrey
Sarah Jenes

Aaron Maffescioni Homes & Design

Graham Jacka Holden

$200.00

Manildra Group

Central Power

Cathryn Virgona

$175.00

Barkers Trailers

Chandler Auto Electrician

CWA Havilah Branch

$150.00

True Foods

Central Victorian Transport

Bendigo Bank

Eureka Concrete

PS & SF Doyle

$130.00

Graincorp

Ian Cain Electrical

Robert Osborne

$100.00

Lake Imaging

H & R Transport

$500 and over

$250 and over

Dawn Stewart

Jazz Club Reunion

Lions Club of Maryborough

Tracey Wilson

Small Project Assitance network

Haymes Paint

Richard & Bridget Gurdler

Freemantle Stockfeeds

Avoca Hospice Care Inc

Integrating Technology

Maffescioni Motors

Wattle Office Supplies

Maryborough & District
Girrahween Trefoil Guild

Ann Jones
Meryn Lawry
Geraldine Pietsch
Heather Potter
Glenda Rowland
David Singe
Christine Skinner
Danielle Soule

Donations in memory of
Edward Clayton
Linda Anderson
Bill Morrow
Rev. Malcom Hay
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Avoca Op Shop

Every dollar donated by the Op Shop purchases items for
the residents of MDHS Avoca Campus with a focus on
their personal comfort. Items donated have included: a
fully automated RJ Shower Chair ($11,000), hi-low beds,
wheel chairs, a hands-free phone and a TV.

exceptional team relay event with all the proceeds being
donated to hospitals and health services across the
State. A dedicated team of riders have been participating
in the Murray to Moyne Bike Ride to raise funds for
MDHS for 22 years. Teams usually consist of 12 riders
with an additional support crew of 4 or 5 people – all
volunteers. Some of our riders have been involved from
the very beginning. All report that they come back for
the camaraderie and the sense that it is a worthy cause.
The amounts raised each year have varied between
$7000 to $15,000, with an overall total of a phenomenal
$155,500.

The Avoca Op shop is currently manned by seven
volunteers and opens 5 days a week plus Saturday
mornings.

The items purchased have included: a bladder scanner,
an Arthroscope, a baby monitor and furniture for the
Palliative Care Suite.

Dunolly and District Hospital
Auxiliary

The Blue Ribbon Foundation

The Avoca Op Shop has been manned and operated by
a small group of dedicated volunteers since the early
1990s. It first opened in a location next to the Avoca
Police Station and is now located in High St. Funds raised
by the Op Shop total over $150,000.

The Dunolly and District Hospital Auxiliary has been
operating in one form or another for the 152 year life of
the hospital. In its early days, the Dunolly Hospital was
heavily reliant on funds and support from the community
and the Auxiliary was a major contributor. A group of
dedicated volunteers continue in this tradition, today.
Over the past 10 years the Auxiliary has raised $30,000.
Each year the Auxiliary awards a nurse or nursing student
a scholarship of $1000 to help further their studies. This
year’s recipient was Sandi Harris. One of the Auxiliary’s
recent projects is the refurbishment of the Planned
Activity Group (PAG) Room, including repainting, curtains,
floor coverings and pin-boards.

Rheola Charity Carnival

In April this year, the Rheola Charity Carnival committee
staged the 144th Rheola Charity Carnival. This small
community have organised and conducted a country
carnival on Easter Monday each year since 1871. Each
year a portion of the funds have been donated to the
Dunolly Hospital. Since 2000, the Rheola Carnival
Committee has donated an amazing $110,915 for a
variety of items that the residents of Dunolly Nursing
Home would not have otherwise.

Murray to Moyne Bike Ride}

At first glance, it may seem that bike riding is one
of the more unusual activities to undertake to raise
funds. However, the Murray to Moyne Bike Ride is an
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The Victoria Police Blue Ribbon Foundation perpetuates
the memory of members of the Victoria Police
Force killed in the line of duty through the support
of worthwhile community project within Victoria.
Established in July 2013, the new Maryborough Chapter
of the Blue Ribbon Foundation commemorates the
service of Senior Contestable Maurie Moore. The
Maryborough Chapter have started to fundraise and the
money raised will accumulate until they are sufficient to
commence building a new Urgent Care Centre.

CancerCare Project Fundraising
Committee

The CancerCare Fundraising Committee is an
enthusiastic and dedicated team of 11 volunteers,
assisted and supported by staff. In March 2013,
the Committee initiated a Charity Golf Day securing
sponsorships from local businesses. The initial golf day
raised over $18,000 for the CancerCare Project. This
year was followed by another successful Golf Day event,
with a total of $15,870. Members of the committee also
partnered and assisted the Central Goldfields Masonic
Lodge to organise and conduct a Bowls Day and manned
a fundraising BBQ at Maryborough Woolworths. We
sincerely appreciate their commitment to the CancerCare
project and look forward with anticipation to working with
them on their next activity.

CancerCare Transport Program
Volunteer Drivers
Launched in December 2011, MDHS trained and inducted 10
volunteer drivers and an additional volunteer to coordinate the
program. The CancerCare Transport Program currently has
19 volunteer drivers and the volunteer driver/coordinator. They
provide door to door transport for people who have cancer and
who have difficulty securing transport to their ongoing cancer
related medical appointments and treatment. The commitment
of the CancerCare Transport Program volunteers is both clearly
and proudly demonstrated by their volunteer hours, with a total of
over 1190 driving hours this year. They have assisted 132 clients
to complete 295 trips across more than 46,260 kilometers. They
volunteer additional time to attend induction as MDHS volunteers,
training and information sessions, and to assist and participate in
program promotion and fundraising events. Feedback indicates
clients appreciate these volunteers and the program. They are
highly regarded and sincerely appreciated by the organisation and
community members alike.

Volunteers

At MDHS we have over 250 unpaid community members
including registered volunteers, auxiliary members,
fundraising groups and committee members supporting,
advising and assisting us across a broad range of
activities in the provision of quality health services. We
sincerely appreciate these generous contributions. The
inclusion of community members in the development
and delivery of MDHS services helps ensure our efforts
are relevant and responsive to the health and wellbeing
needs of our community.

International Volunteers Day

MDHS held its annual celebration to acknowledge the
value, commitment and diversity of our volunteers.
Volunteers offer skills and enthusiasm to enrich the
lives of our residents and clients. Without the level of
commitment shown by our volunteers it really would
be much harder to provide such a varied program for
residents and clients.
The roles of volunteers across the three campuses
of MDHS are diverse. Volunteer roles can match the
community member’s areas of knowledge and interest.
For example, in developing the Wellness & Support
Centre, volunteers are having input into the design, layout

and function of the centre. The CancerCare patient
transport service is managed and run by volunteers.
Community members participate on steering
committees, providing broad perspectives to assist the
Board of Management with future strategic planning of
the Health Service.
This year’s theme for International Volunteers Day on
December 5 was “Young. Global. Active”, with young
volunteers seen as agents of change. MDHS played
its part by engaging with young VCAL students from
Maryborough Education Centre in the development of
the garden next to Amherst Ward. The three students
demonstrated a real commitment to embracing the
concept of change through helping the community.
In all aspects of volunteering, MDHS affords volunteers
the same rights and responsibilities and duty of care as
to paid staff.
Volunteers receive on the job orientation, are encouraged
to participate in team meetings and planning of services,
are provided with training and, in line with MDHS’
strategic policy of “grow your own”, develop within the
job.
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The celebrations also include the opportunity to thank
and acknowledge the auxiliaries and Op Shop associated
with each campus. The auxiliaries raise many thousands
of dollars to enable the Health Service to purchase
equipment, furniture and other items to improve the
personal comfort of residents.			

Minister for Health Volunteer
Awards

This year there were two MDHS nominations for the
Minister for Health Volunteer Awards. Dunolly Campus
Volunteer John Hynd was nominated in the Outstanding
Individual Achievement – Rural Health Services category,
and our CancerCare Transport Program Drivers in the
Outstanding Team Achievement – Rural Health Services
category. MDHS staff, clients and patients appreciate
their commitment and contribution to the provision of
the best possible services and care for members of our
community.

Wellness & Support Centre
Progress

MDHS Wellness & Support Centre was available for
community members to view across a series of open
days. People affected by chronic disease and cancer
as well as the general public, existing donors and
supporters of the CancerCare project, were invited to
visit the proposed venue for the Centre. Many interested
community members took advantage of the opportunity
to ask questions about its progress and to examine the old
medical centre which is the location for the new Wellness
& Support Centre.

MDHS staff and trained volunteers will provide a new
level of professional support, with access to information,
medical, nursing and complementary therapies.
Community input is vital to the success of this project
from providing trained volunteers to facilitating a
successful fundraising program. This ground-breaking
work is not usually undertaken by a small rural
community and is unique in a rural setting.

MDHS CancerCare Project

This project has been both figuratively and literally
‘driven by the community” who are passionate about the
outcomes. Originally planned and intended to take five
years, the project goals are being achieved much sooner.
The community has fully supported the CancerCare Plan
with remarkable fundraising efforts. Over $80,000 was
raised for Merrin Palliative Care Suite, and 18 volunteer
drivers participate in the CancerCare Patient Transport
Program. The MDHS Board of Management recognised
the importance of listening to and working with our
community to design the future Wellness & Support
Centre, which is the next stage in the CancerCare Project.
The three project committees, the Project Steering
Committee, the Fundraising Committee and the Wellness
Centre Building Committee, all include community
representation and provide opportunities for members of
the community to be directly involved.

Wendy McIvor, Stuart McGibbonof Bendigo Bank and Fiona Brew
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The Wellness Centre Building Committee is made up
of community members and MDHS staff who are
committed to the development of the Wellness & Support
Centre, led by Fundraising Manager Gloria Turner. The
members are excited to have input into the design of the
space. Each person on the committee has had experience
of or been affected by cancer or chronic illness. Their
opinion and engagement in the development of the centre
has been important.
At time of writing, initial renovations, choice and purchase
of furniture and soft furnishings are well underway. The
opening is anticipated in late July or August.
The Wellness & Support Centre is designed to provide
services and information focusing on improving the quality
of life for patients, their carers and family who have been
diagnosed with a chronic disease, including cancer.

Wellness and Support Centre

The Wellness & Support Centre received a tremendous
boost with a $100,000 donation from the Maryborough
branch of the Bendigo Community Bank, which kickstarted the fundraising campaign.
MDHS has not been able to attract Government support,
as yet. However we are confident that when both State
and Federal Government understand the community’s
passion to see the project completed, they too will come
on board. Community support has been crucial to the
success of the project and MDHS is very grateful for this
commitment.

Amherst Garden
The students Liam Rogers, Peter Redding and Nancy
Granger together with MDHS Apprentice Gardener
Cameron Gale consulted with patients and their families
from Amherst Ward then planned and designed a garden
to meet their needs.
The student’s ideas and planning activity broadened the
project to include partnerships and support from local
businesses and community groups. The Maryborough
Men’s Shed constructed a sandpit and blackboard
for children, and a bridge. Maryborough Community
House provided a crash course in mosaic tiling. Dunolly
Kindergarten made wind chimes. Local businesses
donated a range of materials.
At the launch of the garden, VCAL Co-ordinator at MEC
Damien Cameron said that MEC’s involvement with the
MDHS project had far reaching benefits.
The students held a competition for the naming of
the garden and chose “Cooinda” an Aboriginal word
meaning “happy place”.

Maryborough Education Centre
(MEC) students

In 2012, the first group of VCAL students to work with
staff from MDHS transformed an infrequently used
area into the contemplative Palliative Care Garden. At
the completion of the project, and their schooling, the
students gained confidence in finding employment.

Reminiscence – Life Stories with Aged Care Residents
The second group of students, Maddie Hovey,
Ashley Austin and Kaija Deffent, spent time visiting
residents, listening to and collecting their recollections
in Maryborough Nursing Home. These important
memories were written and illustrated and handed
back to the residents and their families at a celebratory
afternoon tea.

This year six new students from Maryborough Education
Centre (MEC) made a commitment to rejuvenate
another much neglected garden and to work on the Life
Stories of residents in our Nursing Home. Both projects
were integrated into the Victorian Certificate of Applied
Learning (VCAL) program for Years 10 and 11.

Dunolly Primary School visits to Dunolly PAG
A number of Grade One students from Dunolly Primary
School have been buddying up with clients from MDHS’
Dunolly Campus Planned Activity Group (PAG). For the
second year, MDHS Lifestyle Co-ordinator for PAG Nita Fish
has continued a relationship with Dunolly Primary School.
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For the whole year, Grade One students have become
buddies with the PAG clients.
Carla Scholes, Grade One and Two teacher at the Primary
School, said that the children visit every six weeks and
formed a special relationship with the clients and looking
forward to their visits. As soon as the visit is over, the young
ones want to return. It’s a great link between the school
and the community and while the age group is vast, the
common interests are closer than you might think.

Quality of Care Report
“Our clients absolutely love the time with the students. I’m
not sure who benefits most but it really is a very happy
time,” she said.

Teddy Bears make it Bearable

• Safe – avoiding injuries to patients from the care that is
supposed to help them.
• Effective – providing services based on scientific
knowledge (evidence based) to all who could benefit and
refraining from providing services to those not likely to
benefit (avoiding under-use and overuse).

The first intake of Grade One students who visited last
year came for a reunion at the beginning of December.
Now in Grade Two, the students wanted to come and see
their buddies and tell them what they had been up to.
Nita Fish said that the Grade Two students really missed
the contact with their buddies.
“Many of the children don’t have relatives in the same age
group of our clients. Their grandparents are often much
younger. They have developed such a great bond with our
clients. As soon as the young students arrive the chatter
never stops!” Nita said.

MDHS aims to deliver a high standard of safety and care
to each and every person who accesses our services. To
ensure we are doing this, we collect and analyse data,
measure and monitor our activities against Quality
and Safety standards. The quality of care we provide is
determined by our performance in the following areas:

Here at MDHS we know that first time in hospital can be
a little overwhelming for young people. The thoughtful
generosity of the local Red Cross Society has made
hospital visits a little easier with their generous donation
of about 20 colourful handmade teddy bears. At the end
of the time spent in hospital, teddy goes home with the
patient.

• Person-centred – providing care that is respectful of
and responsive to individual patient preferences, needs,
and values and ensuring that patient values guide all
clinical decisions.
• Timely – reducing waiting times and sometimes
harmful delays for both those who receive and those
who give care.
• Efficient – avoiding waste, in particular waste of
equipment, supplies, ideas and energy.

A lifetime of donating through dance

MDHS is again the recipient of the generosity of the Martin
School of Dancing.
Mrs Myra Martin is in her 97th year and has been donating to
local charities for 72 years! Mrs Martin said that every dollar
raised from her performances goes to charity.
It seemed appropriate that the MDHS representative to
receive the cheque for $1,000 should herself be a past pupil
of the dance school. Jacque Durbridge works in the Finance
Department at MDHS and has very fond memories of her
weekly dance classes.
“Mrs Martin was a wonderful teacher. She was very patient
and a group of young girls could be very naughty! But we
all looked forward to our classes. Dressing up was such fun!
Friendships made have lasted through the years,” Jacque
said.

• Equitable – providing care that does not vary in quality
because of personal characteristics, such as gender,
ethnicity, geographic location and socio-economic
status.

This report is one means of communicating the results of
our performance in the delivery of safe, high quality care,
to our community.
Comprehensive monitoring and management of our
standard of care requires information from a variety
of measurements. At MDHS we use a variety of
measurement types and mechanisms for data collection
and for reporting. Those found in this report include:
Measurement of

Example in this QoC Report

Processes

Hand hygiene
Medication Incidents
Pressure Injuries

Patient /Client Satisfaction
Outcomes

Patient Satisfaction
survey results

Falls
Risk Management
External Quality Audit Reviews

Accreditation processes and outcomes are a further
major measure of the levels of care we provide. Current
Accreditation – ACSAA (Maryborough Dunolly and Avoca
Nursing Homes), NATA – Medical Imaging, QUIKSA Housing Accreditation. Acute and HACC are working
towards accreditation in October 2014.
Collection and analysis from a variety of measurement
areas and mechanisms ensures quality care is delivered
across the entirety of a person’s experience at MDHS. This
includes physical environment, processes and procedures,
how and what information is provided and emotional
support. Person Centred Care, where one of the key
principles is to involve patients in decisions in a way that is
consistent with their preferences, is of chief importance at
MDHS. Great care involves the patient in safety and quality
in every step of their journey through the health system.

Although no relation, the current dance teacher Jane Martin
is seen presenting Jacque with the donation during rehearsal
with her young dancers.
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Quality of Care Report
Consumer and community
participation

Where do our consumers come from?

In developing this year’s Quality of Care Report we invited
input from people most affected and in the best position
to comment on the way we deliver health care: our
consumers, the broader community and our staff. Each
group has a different perspective on how they receive or
deliver care. All opinions are valid and help to shape future
service delivery.

Our volunteers and auxiliary members enrich the
lives of our residents and clients through their diligent
participation in a range of activities that support the
principles of our Health Service. This includes involvement
in socialisation activities and raising many thousands of
dollars to enable us to purchase much needed equipment.
We particularly acknowledge the following:

Each year we encourage feedback about our Quality of
Care Report, as this too assists us to review the way that
we communicate with our community. Both formal and
informal feedback is sought to improve our services. The
results are published in our community newsletter, Health
Happenings. Our Board Of Management is also kept
informed of community views.

• Socialisation volunteers at Avoca, Dunolly and
Maryborough nursing homes, hostels and Planned
Activity Groups

In addition the information for the Quality of Care Report
is assessed alongside the Department of Health’s
comments from last year’ s report and its reporting
requirements.

• Avoca OP Shop Auxiliary

This year we have worked diligently to develop improved
mechanisms of engagement with our community. Our
Health Service Reference Group (HSRG) is currently under
review to ensure it continues to provide feedback and
advice to MDHS and is an opportunity for us to hare our
achievements and progress with our communities. This
group operates with links to the BOM, providing direct
communication between the BOM and the community.

MDHS provides services to a diverse catchment area including the townships of Dunolly, Avoca, Timor, Daisy
Hill, Carisbrook, Havelock, Bet Bet, Bowenvale, Natte Yallock, Amherst, Lamplough, Goldsborough, Bealiba,
Laanecoorie, Eddington, Tarnagulla, Talbot, Amphitheatre, Moliagul, Warrenmang, Majorca and Rathscar. The
catchment is spread across three Shires: Central Goldfields Shire which makes up 84% of the catchment, the
remaining 16% from the Pyrenees Shire and Loddon Shire. Maryborough is the main population centre and
the town is approximately 70 kilometres from the major referral centres of Bendigo and Ballarat.

• The Friends of Maryborough District Health Service
(Maryborough Auxiliary)
• Avoca Hospital Auxiliary

• Dunolly Hospital Auxiliary
• The Pyrenees Magic - Murray to Moyne cyclists
• CancerCare Transport Program volunteers
• Rheola Carnival Committee

Community Conversations sessions have provided
opportunities to engage our community in dialogue.
Held at each campus on a regular basis, they are an
opportunity to listen, address concerns and respond
transparently, acknowledging and deliberately seeking
feedback about areas of service delivery that need
improvement. We appreciate the contributions of all the
community members who participated and thank you
for your involvement and time. Community feedback is
captured and utilised by the BOM to analyse trends and
inform their decisions.
Every aspect of service delivery is about human
relationships. All personnel at MDHS, both paid and
unpaid, endeavour to work well together in a common
undertaking to deliver quality health services.
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WiFi in Residential Aged Care
In February 2014 residents of Avoca, Maryborough and Dunolly Nursing Homes took a technological leap into the 21st
century. WiFi was installed, enabling residents’ to access the global communication revolution. Across all three campuses,
residents have taken up the challenge and are using a variety of devices to skype, email and Facebook friends and family
members.
WiFi allows the computers, smartphones, or other devices to connect to the Internet or communicate with one another
wirelessly within a particular area. The WiFi capability in all three MDHS Nursing Homes across the campuses of
Maryborough, Dunolly and Avoca was funded by a grant from the Victorian Department of Health.

Evelyn’s Story

Wendy Rogasch

“Come in. Come in. I am keen to show you this. It’s my
tablet. Look at what it can do. All my family photos are
on here, and I only have to brush across and tap them.
They are here for me to see anytime. My family send
them to me. That’s my granddaughter, and that’s my
family at my daughter’s house, this was Christmas and
this is the little kangaroo that came to visit us here the
other day.....” But then she pauses.

The installation of WiFi in Maryborough Nursing Home has
been a positive experience. Two residents have their own
device - one tablet and one laptop. They both enjoy instant
communication with their families and loved ones using
email and social media to keep in touch. For these residents,
the sense of isolation from their families has been markedly
reduced. It is a delight to observe their family members
involving them in the normal activities of family life by
sending photos of the new baby, the garden in flower, or
video footage of the wedding that the resident was unable to
attend.

Nursing Home Resident

(Evelyn has a multitude of lovely photos, not just of her
family, but of her life with the other residents).
“But do you know, the best part is this. Wait just a
second and it will come up. This part is wonderful. I can
send messages to my family! Look at all the messages
they send back to me. They tell me what they are doing
and let me know what is happening. It is lovely to know
that they are thinking of me.”

Key demographic information;
>

>

>
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Central Goldfields ranks as the highest
disadvantaged community with the poorest
health indicators in comparison to other
Local Government Areas within Victoria.
An ageing population. Persons aged
55 years and over are the only group
to increase their population share with
12.3% between the age of 65 and 74
years.
Significantly below average life
expectancy for females.

>

A higher prevalence of Heart Disease,
Diabetes and Asthma.

>

Greater levels of Obesity.

Maryborough District Health Service

>

Low level of Cultural Diversity. 87% of
catchment area born in Australia.

>

1.3% of catchment area for Central
Victoria is of Aboriginal or Torres Strait
Islander origin.

>

High levels of social inequality and
poverty.
High level of youth disengagement and
unemployment.

>

High levels of psychological distress.

>

High levels of alcohol intake and
smoking.
(Department of Health 2010)

(Her eyes are sparkling and her smile is a mile wide)
“Isn’t it wonderful? “
Yes, Evelyn, yes it is.

Nurse Unit Manager – Maryborough Nursing Home

The installation of WiFi access has also enabled the use of
Skype. Skype is a computer software program that facilitates
our residents to make free video and audio phone calls and
exchange messages through the Internet. Using a laptop
set up in a resident’s room, our residents are able to have
a face to face consultation with their specialist geriatrician.
Family members are encouraged to participate in the video
meeting and can join the resident for their virtual medical
appointment with the opportunity to be involved first hand.
WiFi also has benefits for our staff. Staff have more flexibility
and are more informed and responsive when providing
care. Staff are using laptops at the bedside which gives
them immediate access to clinical and administrative
documentation through the ‘Management Advantage’
program. This enhances the accuracy and timeliness of
documentation, whilst additionally has some time saving
benefits.
WiFi also gives staff and residents portable access to a range
of resources such as games, old time music and videos and
simple puzzles. I see these being of particular benefit to our
residents with dementia.
Future plans for the use of these technologies include
improving and streamlining the process to access specialist
services, and provision of additional devices that residents
can access for their intellectual and social interactions.
We are looking into how hand held devices for staff can
further increase efficiencies and further improve effective
communication for staff to staff and resident to staff
communications.
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ICAP responses – Addressing the needs of Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander People who access care through MDHS.

Cultural Diversity
Culturally and Linguistically Diverse (CALD) and
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander (ATSI)
Our current Cultural Diversity Plan allows our staff to help
consumers from a CALD background negotiate access to
our Health Service and arrange for interpreter services, if
required. However, we are committed to providing access
for all and our management team has received education
and had input into the Cultural Diversity Plan. Appropriate
identification of ATSI patients has involved staff training.
Further training for our staff is scheduled for the
forthcoming year. Interpreter Services are available
as required at all areas where there is initial client
contact. The interpreter symbol indicates where
these can be accessed from. The Cultural Diversity
Plan, developed in 2010/11, has been reviewed
May 2014, which ensures equitable access to
services for culturally and linguistically diverse
members of our community.
Demographics indicate that MDHS’
catchment area has 1.3% Aboriginal or
Torres Strait Islander population. While only
a small number of ATSI patients access
our services, we make every effort to
ensure that their experience is part of the
Improving Care for Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Island Patients (ICAP) program.
We rely on the services provided to the
region by the Koori Liaison Service
in Bendigo or Ballarat and thank
them for assistance to help us in
providing the most appropriate
care. Every effort is made to
provide services that are sensitive
to the needs of patients, clients
and residents with culturally
diverse needs. MDHS has
liaison staff available to assist
with any issues as they arise.
These posters were
developed to enable the
Oral Health Network
of the Loddon Mallee
region to present the
achievements of an
oral health initiative
currently
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underway in the Castlemaine and Maryborough area.
The Aboriginal children attending The Meeting Place in
Castlemaine are learning about their Aboriginal Heritage
and how to maintain their health and well-being. The
MDHS Dental Clinic are partnering with the group to
provide health promotion and education and encourage
the children, and their families, to receive dental
care in a culturally safe and supportive
environment.

KRA 1: Engagement and partnerships

KRA 3: Workforce development

In the past 12 months a focus has been to establish
and develop a relationship with ‘The Meeting Place’ in
Castlemaine. This facility supports and educates young
indigenous people to understand their heritage in a
suppotive environment whilst also providing them with
skills to ensure they are aware of the importance of their
health and well being. MDHS Dental Clinic is working
closely to provide information, eduation and eventually
dental assessments and treatment for the children and
their families.

Members of the MDHS staff teams are encouraged to
attend cultural awareness training to ensure the data
captured by MDHS accurately reflects the attendance
of Indigenous community members through the Health
Service. The MDHS Leadership Development Program
and the work in the Acute and Community Services areas
of the Health Service ensures the spiritual and cultural
needs of patients, clients and residents are respected.

For the first time MDHS is planning to acknowledge
and celebrate NAIDOC week and arrangements are well
underway for this event in July. An Aboriginal Elder has
agreed to conduct the Welcome to Country for this event.
It is hoped this will re-establish connections with the small
Indigenous population within our catchment.

KRA 4: Systems of care

KRA 2: Organisational development
Aboriginal health needs are captured and considered in
MDHS’ health plans and strategic documents.

MDHS continually reviews and audits data to inform
service delivery and planning across the service. Due
to the small population of Indigenous people within our
catchment the numbers of Aboriginal people presenting
is small. However we endeavour to ensure that they are
linked into appropriate services within and external to
MDHS to achieve their health outcomes. A number of
programs have been reviewed to ensure they are inclusive
for Indigenous people and that the method of service
delivery is inclusive of all members of the community.

The promotion of services and improved access through
the establishment of a relationship with the families
accessing ‘The Meeting Place’ will ensure all staff and
Indigenous community members understand our focus
on Closing the Gap for this community. The development
of the Palliative Care Suite and garden was constructed
with the Indigenous heritage of the area in mind and was
named Merrin with the assistance of the local Aboriginal
Elder and with respect to the traditional owners of the
land.
Framed copies of the Apology Speech are displayed at
all locations across MDHS to reflect our respect for the
traditional owners. In addition we intend to display with
pride the signed Statement of Intent document further
reflecting our commitment to improving the health and
wellbeing status of the Indigenous community.
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Dental reporting
The dental program has implemented a number of new
programs in the past 12 months to ensure it is meeting
the needs of the community.
These have included the implementation of a program
visiting Supported Residential Services (SRS) facilities to
provide residents with diet and oral health tips to ensure
they can maintain good health. In addition, initial dental
screenings were provided on site followed by treatment
delivered from the Dental Clinic.
The dental clinic has been working in partnership with
‘The Meeting Place’ in Castlemaine to implement a
program to improve the health and wellbeing of the
primary school aged children attending this program.
This will include tips and information to improve their
knowledge of healthy foods and drinks and how to look
after their teeth. Initial screening of their teeth will occur
at The Meeting Place and will be followed by visits to the
dental clinic for more detailed check ups and treatment.
This has been very well received and has been promoted
at conferences to highlight the innovation that is involved
with this group.
In addition the dental team have implemented a
number of strategies to improve the waiting time for
general dental care and access to denture resulting
from additional Commonwealth funding from the dental
sector in late 2013. This resulted in the waiting time for
dentures being reduced from 2 years to no waiting time
and the General waiting list reduced from 5 years to 3
years, a significant improvement. This was achieved
through a strong partnership with the private dental
providers in Maryborough and surrounding towns.
Response to the Clinical Indicator report:
MDHS takes part in the statewide review of clinical
services undertaken by Dental Health Services Victoria.
(DHSV). The indicators review the treatment provided
within the clinic compared with other community dental
clinics in the Loddon Mallee region and from a statewide
perspective. In most areas the MDHS clinic performed
extremely well compared to its regional and statewide
colleagues. In some areas the numbers for review
were too small to be considered but overall the clinic
performed very well with minimal numbers of clients
requiring teeth to be retreated within the six-month period
of assessment. This highlights the calibre of the dental
team members.
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Doing it with
us not for us
is a Victorian Government strategic
policy on consumer, carer and
community participation. MDHS has
embraced this policy and is committed
to engage consumers, carers and
community members in decision
making regarding future planning and
care needs that are person centered.
There are a number of standards
that are required to be reported and
measured against:
Standard 1
The organisation demonstrates a commitment
to consumer, carer and community participation
appropriate to its diverse communities.
Indicator 1
MDHS met all of the 8 expected targets. This indicator
has been an area of focus over the past 12 months with
the review and development of Cultural Responsiveness
Plan, Disability Action Plan and Improving Care for
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders Patients programs.
Standard 2
Consumers, and where appropriate carers are involved
in decision making about their treatment, care and
wellbeing at all stages and with appropriate support.
Indicator 2.1
MDHS scored 87 % compliance for the Consumer
Participation Indicator against the required target of 75%
for acute patients in the last published Victorian Patient
Satisfaction Monitor Survey.
Indicator 2.2
Maternity Services Indicator There was insufficient data
provided to the Health Service to determine a score. Our
data from patient surveys has shown that women are

actively involved in labour/birth and that MDHS provides
a supportive and respectful environment for giving birth.
Indicator 2.5
Residential Aged Care Facilities
100% of residents and families/carers surveyed were
satisfied with their involvement in decision making about
care and treatment.
Standard 3
Consumers, and where appropriate, carers are provided
with evidence-based accessible information to support
key decision-making along the continuum of care.

Other Consumer Information

MDHS has a large number of brochures about services
and health promotion programs it provides. These are
readily available throughout the Health Service. Local
newspapers and community newsletters also provide
great support, publishing information from human
interest stories, through to important health issues.
Routinely articles relating to MDHS are published on a
range of topics relating to health promotion, fundraising,
service changes and staff achievements. Health
Happenings, our community newsletter is distributed free
of charge to all households in the catchment area three
times a year.

Indicator 3.1
MDHS has adopted the use of the 30 item checklist
for development and review of any consumer health
information. For the 25 brochures that have been
reviewed or developed 100% of these met the 30 item
checklist and have been reviewed by our consumers prior
to being published.

This year the Quality of Care Report is an integral
component of our Annual Report. Highlights of the
Quality of Care Report will also be published as an
insert in the Maryborough Advertiser and the Pyrenees
Advocate.

Indicator 3.2
MDHS rated a ‘mean’ score of 4.23 out of a total of 5 in
regards to consumer satisfaction with written information
provided to discharged patients on how to manage at
home.

Feedback is important

Standard 4
Consumers, carers and community members are active
participants in the planning, improvement, and evaluation
of services and programs on an ongoing basis.

In our endeavour to obtain community feedback, we
will be offering a small incentive in the two newspapers
to anyone who returns the feedback form! Each person
that sends us feedback in writing will receive a free coffee
voucher to the value of $5 dollars. We hope we are
inundated with the forms!

Indicator 4
MDHS has successfully achieved this indicator at
100% compliance with the six dimensions of involving
consumers in
1. Strategic Planning
2. Service, program and community development
3. Quality Improvement Activities
4. Developing and monitoring feedback (compliments/
complaints)
5. Involvement in clinical/corporate governance
committees
6. Involvement in development of consumer health
information
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Quality of Care Report
Clinical Governance (Patient Safety & Quality)

Effective Clinical Governance underpins the framework
delivering quality care. Clinical Governance is the system
by which the governing body (Board of Management),
managers, clinicians and staff share responsibility and
accountability for the quality of care, risk minimisation
and promoting an environment of excellent care
delivery for consumers, patients and residents. MDHS
Committee structures have been developed to support
our Clinical Governance Framework which ensures the
organisation meets its obligations in compliance with the
Victorian Clinical Governance Policy Framework.

The Care Standards Committee oversees all clinical
care and patient safety issues across the organisation.
This includes medication management; falls; pressure
ulcers; correct patient, correct procedure, correct site;
infection control; monitoring adverse and sentinel events;
maternity services; chronic conditions and all other
quality patient care issues. In our residential care facilities
all clinical care issues are reported via the Residential
Care Committee to the Care Standards Committee.
This information is also provided to the Quality Audit
Committee which is a Board of Management Sub
Committee.

Credentialing of our Visiting
Medical Officers

All Visiting Medical Officers (VMOs) and Visiting
Specialists are fully credentialed to practice at MDHS.
Credentialing is carried out by the Credentialing
Committee which has representation from the BoM,
the Director of Medical Services, representation from
senior doctors, the CEO and other senior executive. Each
VMO is evaluated thoroughly against strict professional
criteria that meet the needs of the National Registration
and professional bodies. The Credentialing process also
links to the process of determining the scope of practice
(tasks within the speciality) in which VMOs are able to
provide services at MDHS for example, areas within
General Practice, Obstetrics, Anaesthetics, Surgical
Services, Pathology, Medical Imaging.

Quality Improvement
Committee Structure

All areas of the Health Service have embraced
organisational quality improvement systems. Quality
improvement initiatives are reported through the Care
Standards and Management Systems committees and
are reported to the Quality Audit Committee, which is
a BoM sub-committee. The Quality Audit Committee
comprises of BoM and Executive Team members. Its
particular focus is overseeing all aspects of quality and
safety, risk management, meeting regulatory compliance,
achieving best practice and implementation of evidence
based care. The Quality Audit Committee links to the
BoM.

How We Measure Our Care

MDHS reviews the quality of care delivered to patients,
residents and clients in a number of ways, including
external quality indicator reviews.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Asthma management
Unexpected Return to theatre
Pressure ulcers
Falls
Medication errors
Anaesthetic adverse reactions
Warfarin (blood thinning drug) management
Blood transfusion reactions
Obstetric (Birthing) indicators
Admission to ward from Day Surgery

Clinical Incident Reviews
MDHS’ Senior Clinicians participate in clinical reviews of
patient histories. The criteria used for review are:
• Incident reviews and development of reporting
templates to relevant committees

Risk Management

• Reviews of clinical/ non clinical incidents
Residential Care Indicators
The following indicators for Residential Care, known as
PSRACS Indicators, are reported by all Public residential
Aged Care Providers to the Department of Health and
Ageing, and the MDHS Quality Audit Committee every
three months
• Unexpected Sustained Weight Loss

• Incidence of Falls
• Any Fractures related to Falls
• Any occasions of use of restraints on Residents

As our community demographics indicate, our
population is ageing. Statistics show that those most at
risk of falling are older, frailer people in the 75 – 85 year
old age group. Identification of those patients most at
risk has been a priority. This has been achieved through a
thorough risk assessment process. All patients aged 65
and over are risk screened as a mandatory assessment. A
mini mental test examines possible issues with cognition,
one of the causes of increased falls.
There are many factors that can cause falls. Medications
such as sleeping tablets or anti anxiety medications
can affect mental ability, confusion, physical weakness,
continence and poor nutrition. In 2013 the acute ward
implemented a patient flag system to assist in the
notification of awareness of at risk patients. This has
assisted in a further reduction in the number of falls in
the acute ward.
The three residential care facilities are collaborative in
falls management and developing strategies to maintain
independence, the residents are supported to take
risks if they wish to. The number of falls has increased
however the percentage of fractures relating to a fall has
decreased from the previous year. More support is given
to residents and families to provide a person centered
approach to their care, and their preferences are clearly
identified in care planning and assessments.

MDHS has an organisational Risk Management
Framework in place that meets the Australian/
New Zealand Risk Management Standards AS/NZ
ISO3100:2009. MDHS’ Clinical Governance Framework
and Organisational Risk Management Policy defines
our responsibility to reduce the risk to our patients. All
staff are educated in regards to their obligations under
the framework and risk management is a routine part
of the new staff induction program and mandatory
training. MDHS supports the principles of Open
Disclosure Framework where staff are encouraged to
report incidents and near misses in an environment of
“no blame”.

Falls Report

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

200

• Residents receiving more than 9 medications
• Occurrence of Pressure Ulcers

Falls Monitoring and Prevention

• Cancellation of procedure due to medical reasons
Once the data has been submitted MDHS receives a
report on its performance, which is discussed at the
Care Standards and Quality Audit Committee and
recommendations are made where appropriate
for follow up action.

• 6 monthly mortality and morbidity reviews conducted
by DMS. These are reported to the VMO group for
discussion.

How we
manage
our risks

Australian Council on Healthcare Standards (ACHS)
Clinical Indicators
MDHS contributes to the ACHS clinical indicator
program every six months. The ACHS clinical indicators
are placed in a national database that allows MDHS
to compare itself with other health services. The data
collected includes the following:

Sentinel Events

A sentinel event is a serious adverse event that results
in death or serious disability and is reportable to the
Department of Health. In the last financial year
there have been no sentinel events at MDHS.

150
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0

\
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Quality of Care Report

Medication Incidents

Blood Safety
Blood Matters is a blood safety program supported by the Department
of Health. MDHS has a dedicated part time Blood Matters Nurse
whose chief responsibility is to ensure MDHS is continually reviewing
its practices and adhering to evidence based practice. Staff education
on Blood Matters is available through an e-learning program which
100% staff have completed. MDHS has not had any transfusion related
adverse events in 2013/14.

140
120
100

Pressure Injuries

80

Pressure Injuries

Pressure injuries are preventable
localised injuries to skin and
underlying tissue that usually occur
over bony prominences as a result
of pressure.
Many patients that are prone to
pressure ulcers are in the terminal
stage of their life and have
multiple medical conditions. As
the graph above indicates there
are a number of patients who are
admitted with existing pressure
ulcers. All of the pressure injuries
that developed while in hospital
were stage 1 or 2 ulcers (being low
grade and easily managed). All
clinical staff complete an annual
e-learning program on pressure
injury prevention, screening and
management. Further equipment
to prevent pressure ulcers has been
purchased including air mattresses

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14
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20
15
10
5

Number Pressure Pressure Stage
of
Injuries on Injuries
1
during
Pressure Arrival
Admission
Injuries

with alternating pressures, Air Chairs
and pressure reducing cushions.
MDHS has also developed pressure
injury prevention plans for those
patients who are at risk of developing
pressure injuries, which is made with
the patient/family/carer to improve

Stage
2

Stage
3

External Cleaning Audits

2013/14

As indicated above the number of reported
medication errors has decreased since
2011/12. Medication incidents and
management of medications is a continual
focus. MDHS has been involved in rolling out a
Medication Reconciliation process, which allows
patients and their carers to provide up to date
information regarding medications. This enables
staff/patients to communicate medication
regimes with the treating doctors and reduce
errors at point of ordering.

25

0

2012/13

Risk
Stage
Assessments
4
complete

patient awareness and decrease risks
of pressure injury formation.

External Cleaning Audits are undertaken annually by an approved
auditor, in line with the Cleaning Standards for Victorian Health Facilities
Audits review the Very High Risk, High Risk, Moderate Risk and Low
Risk areas of the Acute Health Service. Key areas include the Acute
ward, Urgent Care Centre and Theatre.
External Cleaning Audits also undertake a review of MDHS Non
External Cleaning Audit documentation and schedule to ensure
compliance.
Maryborough Health Service External Cleaning Audit
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Hand Hygiene has been identified as a high priority for the prevention of healthcare associated infection (HAI) worldwide as
hand hygiene is the single most effective intervention for preventing HAI. The National Hand Hygiene Initiative has been set
up to develop a national hand hygiene culture-change program that will standardise hand hygiene practice and placement
of alcohol-based hand rub in every Australian hospital. At MDHS the use of alcohol based hand rub is one of the ways
staff maintain their compliance with hand hygiene (HH), though not the only way. Alcohol Hand rub is available throughout
our facilities in key locations such as public access corridors to encourage visitors to perform hand hygiene on entry to the
health service. HH is a key feature in our mandatory staff training program. Health care workers’ Hand Hygiene practices are
audited quarterly and the results are benchmarked nationally by VICNISS.
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Certain occupations, particularly those in healthcare are associated with an increased risk of vaccine preventable
diseases such as seasonal Influenza. MDHS staff health immunizers conduct an annual influenza campaign to ensure
that all health care workers have access to the seasonal influenza vaccine so that they minimize the spread of the
influenza virus within the health care environment. The vaccines are provided free as part of the Department of Health
annual campaign to encourage all health care workers to have the influenza vaccine. MDHS participates in the annual
campaign and the uptake for the vaccines is benchmarked by the VICNISS for the Department of Health. MDHS is
consistently above the state average for participation of their work force.

2014 Annual Report

57

Achieving through Partnering

Legislative Compliance
Attestations

Compliance Information

Attestation on Data Integrity

Building and Maintenance
All building works have been designed in accordance
with the Department of Health’s Capital Development
Guidelines and comply with the Building Act 1993,
Building Regulations 2006 and Building Code of
Australia, relevant at the time of works.

I, Glenis Beaumont, certify that Maryborough District Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and
processes to ensure that reported data reasonably reflects actual performance. Maryborough District Health Service has
critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year.

All contractors are appropriately qualified.
Glenis Beaumont
Accountable Officer
Maryborough District Health Service
15 July 2014

Attestation for compliance with the Ministerial Standing Direction 4.5.5.1 - Insurance
I, Glenis Beaumont, certify that Maryborough District Health Service has complied with Ministerial Direction 4.5.5.1 Insurance.

Glenis Beaumont
Accountable Officer
Maryborough District Health Service

Building Permits and Occupancy Permits
No building nor occupancy permits were issued during
the financial year 2013-14.

Recognition of Carers
MDHS recognises and values the unique relationship
between clients and their carer’s, and operates in an
environment responsive to all parties and applies the
overarching principles of the Carer’s Recognition Act
2012.

Competitive Neutrality
All competitive neutrality requirements were met in
accordance with Government costing policies for public
hospitals.

15 July 2014

Attestation for Compliance with the Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard
I, Wendy McIvor, certify that Maryborough District Health Service has risk management processes in place consistent with the
AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 (or an equivalent designated standard) and an internal control system is in place that enables the
executive to understand, manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures. The Audit Committee verifies this assurance and
that the risk profile of Maryborough District Health Service has been critically reviewed within the last 12 months.

Wendy McIvor
Accountable Officer
Maryborough District Health Service

Complaints
MDHS is committed to providing the best quality health
care in the region. We value and encourage feedback
from patients, clients and their families as well as visitors
to our service. In this way we understand how and where
we need to improve the way in which we deliver our
programs.
This year we received 81 compliments and suggestions
and 37 formal concerns. All issues were satisfactorily
resolved within MDHS.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
All necessary declarations have been completed and
none reported at Board meetings.

Employment and Conduct Principles
MDHS is an equal opportunity employer and upholds
the principles defined in the Public Administration Act
2004 as to how employees can expect to be treated when
applying for jobs, working together, seeking development
or resolving disputes. The MDHS Code of Conduct
reflects the public sector values of Responsiveness,
Integrity, Impartiality, Accountability, Respect, Leadership
and Human Rights.

Ex gratia Expenses
There were no Ex gratia expenses during the year.

Fees
Maryborough District Health Service charges fees in
accordance with the Commonwealth Department of
Health and Aged Care, the Commonwealth Department
of Family Services and the Department of Human
Services (Vic) directives, issued under Regulation 8 of
the Hospital and Charities (Fees) Regulations 1986, as
amended.

Financial Management Act 1994
In accordance with the Direction of the Minister for
Finance part 9.1.3 (iv), information requirements have
been prepared and are available to the relevant Minister,
Members of Parliament and the public on request.

Freedom of Information (FOI)
Access to documents and records held by MDHS may be
requested under the Freedom of Information Act 1982.
Members of the public wishing to access documents can
apply in writing to the FOI Principal Officer, Karen Laing at
MDHS. This year 24 requests were received.

Consultancies
In 2013-14, Maryborough District Health Service did not
engage consultants.

15 July 2014
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Legislative Compliance
Environmental Sustainability
MDHS is committed to achieving improvements in our environmental impact. Achievements to date reflect changes in
business practice and behaviour. A key change that has resulted in significant and sustained reduction in paper use has
been the introduction of electronic meeting support through a combination of tablet devices and lap tops for the Board of
Management, Executives and Department Heads. Focussing on meetings with high paper usage MDHS has been able to
achieve savings. In 2014-15 key targets have been set to reduce landfill through recycling activities, these will be dependent on
the readiness of partner industries to support our endeavours.

Electricity

2013-14 *Includes year to date estimates for June 14

2013-14
Consumption
(kWh)
Cost ($)

2012-13

1,743,333

1,985,975

1,887,194

76,301

88,507

83,255

2012-13

2013-14

2011-12

15,699

12,740

14,273

Consumption
(Gj)

8,877

9,952

10,517

Cost ($)

41,012

33,762

23,337

Cost ($)

68,128

70,203

29,821
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Hazardous Substances
The number of hazardous substances held on site has
been reviewed and minimised, with risk assessments
ongoing to ensure effective control of substances remaining
in use. There have been no incidents related to hazardous
substances or waste management practices for 2013 2014. All staff who come into direct contact with hazardous
substances receive training in the management of these
substances.
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Occupational Health and Safety
Valuing respect as a core business requirement,
staff, visitors and contractors are required to respect
themselves and those around them by ensuring they
have regard for health and safety. In line with legislative
requirements risks have been identified relating to MDHS’
business. A variety of process improvements, mechanical
aids and policies and procedures are in place to reduce
the potential of a staff member or visitor becoming ill or
injured at one of the Organisation’s campuses. Workplace
assessments twice yearly, analysis and action on findings,
on-line and face to face staff training all support a strong
OH&S workplace environment.

Consumtion (ltr)
2011/12

Cost ($)
2012/13

2013/14

Utilising the Victorian Health Incident Management
System (VHIMS) staff are encouraged to report all
incidents and near misses relating to their health and
safety while at work. Reports from this system are
presented to the OH&S Committee and Leadership &
Management Committee, which in turn report to the
BOM.

2014 Annual Report

61

Achieving through Partnering

Achieving through Partnering

Legislative Compliance
Protection Disclosure Act 2012
The Protection Disclosure Act enables people to make
disclosures about improper conduct within the public
sector without fear of reprisal. The Act aims to ensure
openness and accountability by encouraging people to
make disclosures and protecting them when they do.
MDHS complies with the requirements of Protected
Disclosure Act 2012 and did not receive any disclosures
in the 2013/14 financial year.

Glossary

Workforce Data
Labour
Category

JUNE
Current Month FTE

Nursing
Administration
and Clerical

JUNE
YTD FTE

2013

2014

2013

2014

131.35

130.05

138.9

127.68

27.76

22.45

28.32

Publications
MDHS publishes a range of publications for consumers
that is available on request at all campuses. The range
includes information on health promotion, Community
Services, the Annual and Quality of Care Report.
A community newsletter is delivered to most
householders in our catchment three times a year free of
charge.
All publications are available on our website:
www.mdhs.vic.gov.au

Victorian Industry Participation Policy
The Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003
aims to ensure that local suppliers can participate in
procurement and industry assistance activities across
Government, wherever they offer the best value for money.
MDHS complies with the requirements of this Act.

Hotel and Allied
Services

41.2

36.23

47.68

36.22

ACSAA

Aged Care Standards Accreditation Agency

HSRG

Health Service Reference Group

ATSI

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander

ICAP

Improving Care for Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Patients

BHS

Ballarat Health Services

BOM

Board of Management consisting of community members appointed by the Government in
Council

Burden of
Disease

DOH’s comprehensive information on health
issues in communities across Victoria and the
underlying risk factors

CALD

Sessional
Clinicians
Ancillary Staff
(Allied Health)

43.9

38.32

44.52

40.61

Workcover Claims
Average Incurred Cost
$140,000

2013/14

Claim Type
Minor

9

Major

LMMML

Loddon Mallee Region

MDHS project to enhance cancer services to
the community

LOS

Length of Stay

LWCEP

Living with Cancer Education Program

CT

Computed Tomography

MDHS

Maryborough District Health Service

CVPCP

Central Victorian PCP

MEC

Maryborough Education Centre

DHSV

Dental Health Services Victoria

PAC

Post Acute Care

DOH

Department of Health

PCP

Primary Care Partnership

DOS

Day of Surgery

RAC

Residential Aged Care

EGHS

East Grampians Health Service
Accreditation Program; assessment against
10 National Safety and Quality Health Standards, along with 5 EQuIPNational Standards
derived from key elements of the former EQuIP
program

ES

Environmental Sustainability

ESWL

Elective Surgery Waiting List

FOI

Freedom of Information

GML

Grampians Medicare Local

RPFANC
RPHS

GP

2
1
0
2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

Whilst the number of claims has increased, the average
cost has fallen markedly indicating a substantial
improvement in claims management.

Home and Community Care

HARP

Hospital Admission Risk Program

HH

Hand Hygiene

HS

Hotel Services

Rural Primary Health Services
State Services Authority

SRH

Stawell Regional Health

TCP

Transition Care Program

UCC

Urgent Care Centre

VCAL

Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning

General Practitioner

HACC

Regional Patient Flow and Nursing Collaborative

SSA

VHIMS

6
5

Loddon Mallee Murray Medicare Local

LMR

8
7

Life After Cancer Treatment

Consumer Participation Indicator

0
2012/13

LACT

CPI

EQuIP
National
2011/12

Key Performance Indicator

Long Stay Older Persons / Better Care for
Older People

$60,000

$20,000

KPI

LSOP /
BCOP

$80,000

$40,000

Information Communications Technology /
Information Technology

Culturally and Linguistically Diverse

$120,000
$100,000

ICT / IT

Health Purchasing Victoria

Central Goldfields Shire Council

CGSC

Hospital
Medical

3

Maryborough District Health Service

HPV

CancerCare

Medical
Officers

4
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Australian Council on Healthcare Standards

24.23

Medical
Support

Privacy
MDHS recognises and is committed to the protection
of the privacy of patient, resident, client and staff
information. The Health Service has in place policies to
ensure compliance with the Health Records Act (Victoria)
2001, Privacy Act 2000 and the Information Privacy Act
2000. Patients, residents and clients are informed of
their rights on first contact with the Health Service that all
health information collected and medical records held in
relation to their treatment is respected and confidentially
maintained.

ACHS

VICNISS

Victorian Health Incident Management System
Healthcare Associated Infection Surveillance
System

VMIA

Victorian Managed Insurance Authority

VMO

Visiting Medical Officer

WIES

Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separations

WoSSP

Whole of System Student Placement Program
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Disclosure Index
The Annual Report of Maryborough District Health Service is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation.
This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure
requirements.
LEGISLATION

REQUIREMENT

PAGE
REFERENCE

Ministerial Directions
Report of Operations
Charter & Purpose
FRD 22D

Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers

4 & 13

FRD 22D

Objectives, functions, powers and duties

14

FRD 22D

Nature and range of services provided

4

Management and structure
FRD 22D

Organisational structure

18

Financial and other information
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LEGISLATION

PAGE
REFERENCE

REQUIREMENT

Financial Statement
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
SD 4.2(a)

Statement of changes in equity

FR

SD 4.2(b)

Comprehensive operating statement

FR

SD 4.2(b)

Balance sheet

FR

SD 4.2(b)

Cash flow statement

Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2
SD 4.2(a)

Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative
pronouncements

FR

SD 4.2(c)

Accountable officer’s declaration

FR

SD 4.2(c)

Compliance with Ministerial Directions

FR

SD 4.2(d)

Rounding of amounts

FR

FRD 10

Disclosure index

64

Legislation

FRD 11A

Disclosure of ex gratia expenses

59

Freedom of Information Act 1982

59

FRD 12A

Disclosure of Major Contracts

59

Protected Disclosure Act 2001

62
59

FRD 21B

Responsible person and executive officer disclosures

FR

Carers Recognition Act 2012

FRD 22E

Application and operation of Protected Disclosure 2012
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Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003
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59
59

FRD 22E

Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012

59

Building Act 1993

FRD 22E

Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982

59

Financial Management Act 1994

FRD 22E

Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993

59

FRD 22E

Details of consultancies over $10,000

59

FRD 22E

Details of consultancies under $10,000

59

FRD 22E

Employment and conduct principles

59

FRD 22E

Major changes or factors affecting performance

FR

FRD 22E

Occupational health and safety

61

FRD 22E

Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives

FRD 24C

Reporting of office-based environmental impacts

60

FRD 22E

Significant changes in financial position during the year

FR

FRD 22E

Statement of availability of other information
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FRD 22E

Statement on National Competition Policy

59

FRD 22E

Subsequent events

FR

FRD 22E

Summary of the financial results for the year

FR

FRD 22E

Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement on the application of
employment and conduct principles

59

FRD 25B

Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures

62

FRD 29

Workforce Data disclosures

62

SD 4.2(j)

Sign-off requirements

13

SD 3.4.13

Attestation on data integrity

58

SD 4.5.5.1

Ministerial Standing Direction 4.5.5.1 compliance attestation

58

SD 4.5.5

Risk management compliance attestation
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Maryborough District Health Service

FR & 6

Additional information (FRD 22D)
In compliance with the requirements of FRD 22C Standard
Disclosures in the Report of Operations, details in respect of
the items listed below have been retained by Maryborough
District Health Service and are available to the relevant
Ministers, Members of Parliament and the public on request
(subject to the freedom of information requirements, if
applicable):
(a) A statement of pecuniary interest has been completed;
(b)		Details of shares held by senior officers as nominee or
held beneficially;
(c) Details of publications produced by the Department
about the activities of the Health Service and where they
can be obtained;
(d) Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and
levies charged by the Health Service;
(e) Details of any major external reviews carried out on the
Health Service;
(f) Details of major research and development activities
undertaken by the Health Service that are not otherwise
covered either in the Report of Operations or in a

document that contains the financial statements and
Report of Operations;
(g) Details of overseas visits undertaken including a
summary of the objectives and outcomes of each visit;
(h) Details of major promotional, public relations and
marketing activities undertaken by the Health Service
to develop community awareness of the Health Service
and its services;
(i) Details of assessments and measures undertaken
to improve the occupational health and safety of
employees;
(j) General statement on industrial relations within the
Health Service and details of time lost through industrial
accidents and disputes, which is not otherwise detailed
in the Report of Operations;
(k) A list of major committees sponsored by the Health
Service, the purposes of each committee and the extent
to which those purposes have been achieved;
(l) Details of all consultancies and contractors including
consultants/contractors engaged, services provided, and
expenditure committed for each engagement.
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Achieving through Partnering

Contact Details
Maryborough District
Health Service
Maryborough District Health Service
PO Box 155
75-87 Clarendon Street
Maryborough, Victoria 3465
Phone: +61 3 5461 0333
Fax: +61 3 5461 4489

Incorporating
Avoca Campus
10 Templeton Street
PO Box 75
Avoca, Victoria 3467
Phone: +61 3 5465 1202
Fax: +61 3 5465 3533

Dunolly Campus
20 Havelock Street
Dunolly, Victoria 3462
Phone: +61 3 5468 2900
Fax: +61 3 5468 1188

Community Services
PO Box 155
75-87 Clarendon Street
Maryborough, Victoria 3465
Phone: +61 3 5461 0400
Fax: +61 3 5461 4828

Email: mdhs@mdhs.vic.gov.au
Internet: www.mdhs.vic.gov.au
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If the Financial Report is not attached and you
would like a copy, please contact MDHS on
phone 5461 0333 or go to MDHS’
website www.mdhs.vic.gov.au to view
and download.
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Maryborough District Health Service
Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the financial year ended 30 June 2014
Note

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

Revenue from Operating Activities
Revenue from Non-operating Activities
Employee Expenses
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies and Consumables
Other Expenses
Net Result Before Capital and Specific Items

2
2
3
3
3
3

29,422
223
(20,653)
(2,918)
(1,911)
(3,967)
196

29,049
232
(21,353)
(2,635)
(1,535)
(4,007)
(249)

Capital Purpose Income
Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Depreciation

2
3
4

506
(67)
(3,079)

992
(267)
(3,222)

(2,444)

(2,746)

11,237

3,266

8,793

520

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Changes in Physical Asset revaluation surplus

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR

15a

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Maryborough District Health Service
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2014
Note

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Investments and other financial assets
Inventories
Other assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Total non-current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
Current liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

5
6
7
8
9

1,317
722
4,841
61
241
7,182

1,554
948
4,220
69
54
6,845

6
10
11

406
44,414
689
45,509
52,691

496
35,568
927
36,991
43,836

12
13
14

1,883
5,416
1,402
8,701

1,453
5,447
1,761
8,661

13

714
714
9,415

692
692
9,353

43,276

34,483

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus
Restricted specific purpose surplus
Contributed capital
Accumulated surpluses

15a
15a
15b
15c

22,551
486
13,776
6,463

11,314
486
13,776
8,907

TOTAL EQUITY

15d

43,276

34,483

Commitments
Contingent assets & contingent liabilities

18
19

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Maryborough District Health Service
Statement of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

Note
Balance at 1 July 2012
Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

15a

Balance at 30 June 2013
Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 30 June 2014

15a

Property, plant
& equipment
Restricted
revaluation
specific purpose Contribution Accumulated
surplus
surplus
by owners
surpluses
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
8,048

486

3,266

-

11,314

486

11,237

-

22,551

486

Total
$'000

13,776

11,653

33,963

-

(2,746)
-

(2,746)
3,266

13,776

8,907

34,483

-

(2,444)
-

(2,444)
11,237

13,776

6,463

43,276

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Maryborough District Health Service
Cash Flow Statement
For the financial year ended 30 June 2014
Note

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating grants from government
Patient and resident fees received
Private practice fees received
GST received from/(paid to) ATO
Interest received
Other receipts
Total receipts
Employee expenses paid
Non salary labour costs
Payments for supplies and consumables
Other payments
Total payments

25,248
2,244
1,215
(14)
225
798
29,716
(20,662)
(2,918)
(1,610)
(3,885)
(29,075)

Capital grants from government
Capital donations and bequests received

432
222

796
109

1,295

78

NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

16

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
Transfer to Monies Held in Trust
Payments for non-financial assets
Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

5

24,249
2,402
1,114
(7)
229
481
28,468
(21,178)
(2,635)
(1,808)
(3,674)
(29,295)

(967)
(575)
11
(1,531)

(515)
(1,243)
(292)
22
(2,028)

(236)

(1,950)

1,496

3,446

1,260

1,496

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
NOTE 1 : SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Maryborough District
Health Service for the period ended 30 June 2014. The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about
Maryborough District Health Service's stewardship of resources entrusted to it.
(a)

Statement of compliance
These financial statements are a general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance
with the Financial Management Act 1994 , and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AASs) issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). They are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements
of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements .
The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the
Department of Treasury and Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the
Minister for Finance.
Maryborough District Health Service is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs
applicable to"not-for-profit" Health Services under the AAS's.
The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Maryborough District Health Service on
29th August 2014.

(b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other
events is reported.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2014, and the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013.

The going concern basis was used to prepare the financial statements. The Board of Management has considered factors
impacting on Maryborough District Health Service’s going concern status and has determined that this basis is appropriate.
Such factors include the excess of current liabilities over current assets of $1,519 ($'000) as of 30 June 2014
(30 June 2013: $1,816($'000)). Mitigating these factors is the continuing financial support of the Department of Health in
relation to which an undertaking has been given to provide adequate cash flow support to enable the health service to meet
its current and future obligations as and when they fall due for a period up to September 2015.
These financial statements are presented in Australian Dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the Health
Service.
The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the
definitions and recognition criteria for those items, that is they are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate,
regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for:

• Non-current physical assets, which subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a revalued amount being their fair value
at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations
are made and are re-assessed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from their
fair values.
• Derivative financial instruments, managed investment schemes, certain debt securities, and investment properties
after initial recognition, which are measured at fair value with changes reflected in the comprehensive operating statement; and
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Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
(b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement (Continued)
• Available-for-sale investments which are measured at fair value with movements reflected in equity until the asset
is derecognised.
• The fair value of assets other than land is generally based on their depreciated replacement value.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional
judgements derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, Maryborough District Health Service determines the policies and
procedures for both recurring fair value measurements such as property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
financial instruments, and for non-recurring fair value measurements such as non-financial physical assets held for sale, in
accordance with the requirements of AASB 13 and the relevant FRDs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
• Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable
• Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Maryborough District Health Service has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.
In addition, Maryborough District Health Service determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Maryborough District Health Service’s independent valuation agency.
Maryborough District Health Service, in conjunction with VGV monitors the
changes in the fair value of each asset and liability through relevant data sources to determine whether revaluation is required.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision, and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Judgements and assumptions made
by management in the application of AASs that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates, with a
risk of material adjustments in the subsequent reporting period, relate to:
• the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 1(k);
• actuarial assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims,
future salary movements and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(l)).
(c)

Reporting Entity
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of Maryborough District Health Service.
Its principal address is:
75-87 Clarendon Street
Maryborough VIC 3465
A description of the nature of Maryborough District Health Service's operations and its principal activities is included in the
report of operations, which does not form part of these financial statements.
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Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
(c)

Reporting Entity (Continued)
Objectives and funding
Maryborough District Health Service's overall objective is to provide outstanding local care, as well as improve the quality
of life to Victorians.
Maryborough District Health Service is predominately funded by accrual based grant funding for the provision of outputs.

(d) Principles of Consolidation
Intersegment Transactions
Transactions between segments within Maryborough District Health Service have been eliminated to reflect
the extent of Maryborough District Health Service's operations as a group.
Associates and joint ventures
Associates and joint ventures are accounted for in accordance with the policy outlined in Note 1(k) Financial Assets.
Jointly controlled assets or operations
Interest in jointly controlled assets or operations are not consolidated by Maryborough District Health Service, but are
accounted for in accordance with the policy outlined in Note 1(k) Financial Assets.
(e)

Scope and presentation of financial statements
Fund Accounting
Maryborough District Health Service operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds:
Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital Funds. Maryborough District Health Service's Capital and
Specific Purpose Funds include unspent capital donations and receipts from fundraising activities conducted solely
in respect of these funds.
Services Supported by Health Services Agreement and Services Supported by Hospital
and Community Initiatives.
Activities classified as Services Supported by Health Services Agreement (HSA) are substantially
funded by the Department of Health and include Residential Aged Care Services (RACS)
and are also funded from other sources such as the Commonwealth, patients and residents,
while Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives (H & CI) are funded by the
Health Service's own activities, Residential Aged Care Services (RACS) or local initiatives
and/or the Commonwealth.
Residential Aged Care Service
The Residential Aged Care Service operations are an integral part of Maryborough District Health Service
and share its resources. An apportionment of land and buildings has been made based on floor space. The results of the
two operations have been segregated based on actual revenue earned and expenditure incurred by each operation in Note 2b
to the financial statements.
The Residential Aged Care Service has a separate Committee of Management and is substantially funded from
Commonwealth bed-day subsidies.
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Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
(e)

Scope and presentation of financial statements (Continued)
Comprehensive operating statement
The Comprehensive operating statement includes the subtotal entitled 'Net result Before Capital & Specific Items' to
enhance the understanding of the financial performance of Maryborough District Health Service. This subtotal reports
the result excluding items such as capital grants, assets received or provided free of charge, depreciation, expenditure using
capital purpose income and items of an unusual nature and amount such as specific income and expenses. The exclusion
of these items is made to enhance matching of income and expenses so as to facilitate the comparability and consistency
of results between years and Victorian Public Health Services. The 'Net result Before Capital & Specific Items' is used by the
management of Maryborough District Health Service, the Department of Health and the Victorian Government to measure
the ongoing performance of Health Services in operating hospital services.
Capital and specific items, which are excluded from this sub-total, comprise:
*
Capital purpose income, which comprises all tied grants, donations and bequests received for the purpose of
acquiring non-current assets, such as capital works, plant and equipment or intangible assets. Consequently the
recognition of revenue as capital purpose income is based on the intention of the provider of the revenue at the
time the revenue is provided.

*

Specific income/expense, comprises the following items, where material:
* Voluntary departure packages
* Write-down of inventories
* Non-current asset revaluation increments/decrements
* Diminution/impairment of investments
* Reversals of provisions
* Voluntary changes in accounting policies (which are not required by an accounting standard
or other authoritative pronouncement of the Australian Accounting Standards Board)

*

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets, includes all impairment losses (and reversal of previous
impairment losses), which have been recognised in accordance with note 1 (j)

*

Depreciation as described in note 1 (h)

*

Expenditure using capital purpose income, comprises expenditure which either falls below the asset capitalisation
threshold or does not meet asset recognition criteria and therefore does not result in the recognition
of an asset in the balance sheet, where funding for that expenditure is from capital purpose income.

Balance sheet
Assets and liabilities are categorised either as current or non-current (non-current being those assets or liabilities expected
to be recovered/settled more than 12 months after reporting period), are disclosed in the notes where relevant.
Statement of changes in equity
The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of each non-owner and owner changes in equity opening from
opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period. It also
shows separately changes due to amounts recognised in the comprehensive result and amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income.
Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating activities, investing activities, or financing
activities. This classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows .
For the cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafts, which are
included as current borrowings in the balance sheet.
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Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
(e)

Scope and presentation of financial statements (Continued)
Rounding
All amounts shown in the financial statements are expressed to the nearest $1,000 unless otherwise stated.
Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.
Comparative Information
There have been no changes to comparative information which require additional disclosure.

(f)

Change in Accounting Policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies which have impacted on the presentation of the financial statements.
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance for all fair value measurements. AASB 13 does not change when a health
service is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under Australian Accounting
Standards when fair value is required or permitted. The health service has considered the specific requirements relating to
highest and best use, valuation premise, and principal (or most advantageous) market. The methods, assumptions,
processes and procedures for determining fair value were revised and adjusted where applicable. In light of AASB 13, the
health service has reviewed the fair value principles as well as its current valuation methodologies in assessing the fair value,
and the assessment has not materially changed the fair values recognised.
AASB 13 has predominantly impacted the disclosures of Maryborough District Health Service. It requires specific
disclosures about fair value measurements and disclosures of fair values, some of which replace existing disclosure
requirements in other standards, including AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
The disclosure requirements of AASB 13 apply prospectively and need not to be provided for comparative periods, before
initial application. Consequently, comparatives of these disclosures have not been provided for 2012-13, except for financial
instruments, of which the fair value disclosures are required under AASB 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures.
AASB 119 Employee Benefits
In 2013-14, Maryborough District Health Service has applied AASB 119 Employee Benefits (Sep 2011, as amended), and
related consequential amendments for the first time.
The revised AASB 119 changes the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change
relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets. As the current accounting policy is for the
Department of Treasury and Finance to recognise and disclose the State’s defined benefit liabilities in its financial statements,
changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets will have limited impact on the health service.
The revised standard also changes the definition of short-term employee benefits. These were previously benefits that were
expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related
service, however, short-term employee benefits are now defined as benefits expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service. As a result, accrued annual leave
balances which were previously classified as short-term employee benefits no longer meet this definition and are now classified
as long-term employee benefits. This has resulted in a change of measurement for the annual leave provision from an
undiscounted to discounted basis.
Maryborough District Health Service considers the change in classification has not materially altered its measurement of
the annual leave provision.
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Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
(g) Income from transactions
Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to Maryborough District Health Service and the income can be reliably measured at fair value.
Unearned income at reporting date is reported as income received in advance.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.
Government Grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, government grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions
by owners) are recognised as income when Maryborough District Health Service gains control of the underlying assets
irrespective of whether conditions are imposed on Maryborough District Health Service's use of the contributions.
Contributions are deferred as income in advance when the Health Service has a present obligation to repay them and
the present obligation can be reliably measured.
Indirect Contributions from the Department of Health
Insurance is recognised as revenue following advice from the Department of Health.
Long Service Leave (LSL) - Revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL
Liability in line with the arrangements set out in the Metropolitan Health and Aged Care Services Division
Hospital Circular 05/2014.
Patient and Resident Fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.
Private Practice Fees
Private Practice fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.
Revenue from commercial activities
Revenue from commercial activities such as provision of meals to external users is recognised at the time the invoices
are raised.
Donations and Other Bequests
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. If donations are for a special
purpose, they may be appropriated to a reserve, such as specific restricted purpose reserve.
Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial asset.
(h) Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.
Cost of Goods Sold
Costs of good sold are recognised when the sale of an item occurs by transferring the cost or value of the item/s from
inventories.
Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
• Wages and salaries;
• Annual leave;
• Sick leave;
• Long service leave; and
• Superannuation expenses which are reported differently depending upon whether employees are members of
defined benefit or defined contribution plans.
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Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
(h) Expense Recognition (Continued)

Defined contribution plans
In relation to defined contributions (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the employer
contributions that are paid or payable in respect of employees who are members of these plans during the reporting period.
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.

Defined benefit plans
The amount charged to the comprehensive operating statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation
plans represents the contributions made by the Health Service to the superannuation plans in respect of the
services of current Health Service staff during the reporting period. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans
based on the relevant rules of each plan, and are based upon actuarial advice.
Employees of the Maryborough District Health Service are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and
Maryborough District Health Service contributes to both the defined benefit and defined contribution plans.
The defined benefit plans provide benefits based on years of service and final average salary.
The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by Maryborough
District Health Service disclosed in note 14: Superannuation.
Depreciation
All buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets that have finite useful lives are depreciated
(i.e. excludes land assets held for sale, and investment properties). Depreciation begins when the asset is available for
use, which is when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in a manner intended
by management.
Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any estimated
residual value over its estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and depreciation method for all
assets are reviewed at least annually, and adjustments made where appropriate. This depreciation charge is not funded
by the Department of Health.
The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the depreciation charges
are based.
2014
2013
Buildings
- Structure Shell Building Fabric
10 to 40 years
45 to 60 years
- Site Engineering Services and Central Plant
10 to 40 years
20 to 30 years
- Fit Out
10 to 40 years
20 to 30 years
- Trunk Reticulated Building Systems
10 to 40 years
30 to 40 years
Plant and Equipment
5 to 20 years
5 to 20 years
Medical Equipment
3 to 10 years
3 to 10 years
Computers and Communication
3 to 10 years
3 to 10 years
Furniture & Fittings
5 to 14 years
5 to 14 years
Motor Vehicles
10 years
10 years
As part of the buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each component assessed for its
useful life which is represented above.
Intangible produced assets with finite lives are depreciated as an expense on a systematic basis over the asset's useful life.
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Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
(h) Expense Recognition (Continued)
Finance Costs
Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
Finance costs include:
interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings;
amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings;
amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings; and
finance charges in respect of finance leases recognised in accordance with AASB 117 Leases .
Grants and Other Transfers
Grants and other transfers to third parties (other than contribution to owners) are recognised as an expense in the reporting
period in which they are paid or payable. They include transactions such as: grants, subsidies and personal benefit payments
made in cash to individuals.
Other Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and include:
Supplies and Consumables
Supplies and consumables costs which are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are
incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held for distribution are expenses when distributed.
Bad and Doubtful Debts
Refer to note 1 (k) Impairment of Financial Assets.
Fair Value of Assets, Services and Resources Provided Free of Charge or for Nominal Consideration
Contributions of resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value
when the transferee obtains control over them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed
over the use of the contributions, unless received from another agency as a consequence of a restructuring of
administrative arrangements. In the latter case, such a transfer will be recognised at its carrying value.
Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the
services would have been purchased if not donated.
(i)

Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income measure the change in volume or value of assets or liabilities that do not result from transactions.
Net Gain / (Loss) on Non-Financial Assets
Net gain / (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:
Revaluation gains / (losses) of non-financial physical assets
Refer to Note 1(k) Revaluations of non-financial physical assets.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (and intangible assets not available for use) are tested
annually for impairment and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Refer to Note 1 (k) Assets.
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(j)

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of Maryborough District Health Service's activities,
certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial
liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation. For
example, statutory receivables arising from taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the definition of financial instruments as
they do not arise under contract.
Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes, a distinction is made between those financial assets and financial liabilities
that meet the definition of financial instruments in accordance with AASB 132 and those that do not.
The following refers to financial instruments unless otherwise stated.

Categories of non-derivative financial instruments
Reclassification of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial instrument assets that meet the definition of loans and receivables may be reclassified out of the fair value
through profit and loss category into the loans and receivables category, where they would have met the definition of loans
and receivables had they not been required to be classified as fair value through profit and loss. In these cases, the financial
instrument assets may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit and loss category, if there is the intention and ability
to hold them for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted on an
active market. These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.
Loans and receivables category includes cash and deposits (refer to Note 1(j)), term deposits with maturity greater than
three months, trade receivables, loans and other receivables, but not statutory receivables.
Reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for sale financial instrument assets that meet the definition of loans and receivables may be classified into the loans
and receivables category if there is the intention and ability to hold them for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial instrument liabilities are initially recognised on the date they originated. They are initially measured at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured
at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised
in profit and loss over the period of the interest- bearing liability, using the effective interests rate method.
Financial instrument liabilities measured at amortised cost include all of Maryborough District Health Service's contractual
payables, deposits held and advances received, and interest-bearing arrangements other than those designated at fair value
through profit and loss.
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(k) Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and
highly liquid investments (with an original maturity of less than three months or less), which are held for the purpose of
meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are included as
liabilities on the balance sheet.
Receivables
Receivables consist of:
- Contractual receivables, which includes mainly debtors in relation to goods and services, loans to third parties,
accrued investment income, and finance lease receivables; and
- Statutory receivables, which includes predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government and Goods and
Services Tax ("GST") input tax credits recoverable.
Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and receivables. Statutory
receivables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not
classified as financial instruments because they do not arise from a contract.
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method, less any accumulated impairment.
Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of recognition.
Collectability of debts is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off.
A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred.
Bad debts are written off when identified.
Investments and Other Financial Assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Investments are classified in the following categories:
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
- Loans and receivables; and
- Available-for-sale financial assets.
Maryborough District Health Service classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based
on the purpose for which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its other
financial assets at initial recognition.
Maryborough District Health Service assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.
All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit and loss are subject to
annual review for impairment.
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(k) Assets (Continued)
Inventories
Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale, consumption or for distribution at no or nominal
cost in the ordinary course of business operations. It excludes depreciable assets.
Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential. All
other inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories acquired for no cost or nominal considerations are measured at current replacement cost at
the date of acquisition.
The bases used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held for distribution include current replacement
cost and technical or functional obsolescence. Technical obsolescence occurs when an item still functions for
some or all of the tasks it was originally acquired to do, but no longer matches existing technologies. Functional
obsolescence occurs when an item no longer functions the way it did when it was first acquired.
Cost for all other inventory is measured on the basis of weighted average cost.
Non-financial Physical Assets Classified as Held for Sale
Non-financial physical assets and disposal groups and related liabilities are treated as current and are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset's sale (or disposal group) is expected
to be completed within 12 months from the date of classification, and the asset is available for immediate use in the
current condition.
Non-financial physical assets (including disposal groups) classified as held for sale are treated as current and are
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, and are not subject to depreciation.
Property, Plant and Equipment
All non-current physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value
less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its
fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part of a merger / machinery of government are transferred
at their carrying amount.
More details about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of non-financial physical assets
are discussed in Note 10 P roperty, plant and equipment .

Crown Land is measured at fair value with regard to the property's highest and best use after due consideration is made
for any legal or physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the
intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken into
account until it is virtually certain that any restriction will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current
use of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best uses.

Land and Buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.

Plant, Equipment and Vehicles are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Depreciated historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for depreciated
replacement cost because of the short lives of the assets concerned.
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(k) Assets (Continued)
Revaluations of Non-current Physical Assets
Non-Current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103E Non-current
physical assets. This revaluation process normally occurs at least every five years, based upon the asset's Government
Purpose Classification but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values.
Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim revaluations are determined
in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or decrements arise from differences
between an asset's carrying value and fair value.
Revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation surplus except that, to the extent that
an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset previously recognised as
an expense in net result, the increment is recognised as income in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the net result, except that, to the extent
that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of assets, they are
debited directly to the asset revaluation surplus.
Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset
against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes.
Revaluation surplus is not transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.
In accordance with FRD 103E Maryborough District Health Service's non-current physical assets were assessed to determine
whether revaluation of the non-current physical assets was required.
Investment Properties
Investment properties represent properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment properties
exclude properties held to meet service delivery objectives of Maryborough District Health Service.
Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when
it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will flow to
Maryborough District Health Service.
Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investments properties are revalued to fair value, determined annually be
independent valuers. Fair values are determined based on a market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties. Investment properties are neither depreciated nor tested for impairment.
Rental revenue from leasing of investment properties is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement in the periods
in which it is receivable on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Prepayments
Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services
or that part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.
Disposal of Non-Financial Assets
Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial assets is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement.

16

Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to Financial Statements
30 June 2014
(k) Assets (Continued)
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives (and intangible assets not yet available for use) are tested annually
for impairment (as described below) and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
All other non-financial assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment, except for:
•
inventories;
•
investment properties that are measured at fair value,
•
non-current physical assets held for sale; and
•
assets arising from construction contracts.
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their possible
recoverable amount. Where an asset's carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is written-off as am expense
except to the extent that the write-down can be debited to an asset revaluation reserve amount applicable to that same class
of asset.
If there is an indication that there has been a reversal in the estimate of an asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount. This reversal of the
impairment loss occurs only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years.
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or destruction of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of
the asset will be unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made. The recoverable amount for most assets is
measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held
primarily to generate net cash inflows is measured at the higher of the present value of future cash flows expected to be
obtained from the asset and fair value less costs to sell.
Investments in jointly controlled assets and operations
In respect of any interest in jointly controlled assets, Maryborough District Health Service recognises in the financial statements:
- its share of jointly controlled assets;
- any liabilities that it had incurred;
- its share of liabilities incurred jointly by the joint venture;
- any income earned from the selling or using of its share of the output from the joint venture; and
- any expenses incurred in relation to being an investor in the joint venture.
For jointly controlled operations Maryborough District Health Service recognises;
- the assets that it controls;
- the liabilities that it incurs;
- expenses that it incurs; and
- the share of income that it earns from selling outputs of the joint venture.
Impairment of Financial Assets
At the end of each reporting period Maryborough District Health Service assesses whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial asset is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value
through profit and loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.
Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Bad debts considered as written off and allowances
for doubtful receivables are expensed.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
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(k) Assets (Continued)
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments
Net Gain/(Loss) on financial instruments includes:
- realised and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations of financial instruments that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss or held-for-trading;
- impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost; and
- disposals of financial assets.
Revaluations of Financial Instruments at Fair Value
The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value excludes dividends or interest earned on financial
assets.
(l)

Liabilities
Payables
Payables consist of:
- contractual payables which consist predominantly of accounts payable representing liabilities for goods and services
provided to the health service prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise when Maryborough
District Health Service becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services. The
normal credit terms for accounts payable are usually Nett 30 days.
- statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.
Contractual payables are initially recognised at fair value, and then subsequently carried at amortised cost. Statutory
payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and
not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when Maryborough District Health Service has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of
economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows, using a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the provision.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be received from a third party,
the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
Employee Benefits
This provision arises for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long
service leave for services rendered to the reporting date.

Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave, Sick Leave and Accrued Days Off
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave, and accumulating sick leave are all
recognised in the provision for employee benefits as ‘current liabilities’, because Maryborough District Health Service
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.
Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
are measured at:
• Undiscounted value – if Marborough District Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
• Present value – if Maryborough District Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
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(l)

Liabilities (Continued)
Long Service Leave (LSL)
Liability for LSL is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the health service
does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
• Undiscounted value – if the health service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; and
• Present value – if the health service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. This non-current LSL liability is measured at
present value.
Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction,
except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in bond interest rates for which it is then recognised as
an other economic flow.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee
decides to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.
The health service recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.
On-Costs
Provision for on-costs, such as payroll tax, workers compensation, superannuation are recognised together
with provisions for employee benefits.
Superannuation Liabilities
Maryborough District Health Service does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of the
superannuation plans because Maryborough District Health Service has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due.

(m) Leases
A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment. Leases are classified at their inception
as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.
Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
For service concession arrangements, the commencement of the lease term is deemed to be the date the asset is
commissioned. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance Leases
Entity as lessor
Maryborough District Health Service does not hold any finance lease arrangements with other parties.
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(m) Leases (Continued)

Operating Leases
Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the comprehensive
operating statement on a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset.

Lease Incentives
All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral
part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive's nature
or form or the timing of payments.
In the event that lease incentives are received by the lessee to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished.
Leasehold Improvements
The cost of leasehold improvements are capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the remaining term of
the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements, whichever is the shorter.
(n) Equity
Contributed Capital
Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned
Public Sector Entities and FRD 119 Contributions by Owners , appropriations for additions to the net asset
base have been designated as contributed capital. Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions
or distributions, that have been designated as contributed capital are also treated as contributed capital.
Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as contributions by owners. Transfers of net
liabilities arising from administrative restructures are to go through the comprehensive operating statement.
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of
non-current physical assets.
Financial Asset Available-for-Sale Revaluation Surplus
The available-for-sale revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets.
Where a revalued financial asset is sold that portion of the reserve which relates to that financial asset is
effectively realised, and is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement. Where a revalued financial
asset is impaired that portion of the reserve which relates to that financial asset is recognised in the
comprehensive operating statement.
General Reserves
No General Reserves are in existence at the date of this report.
Restricted Specific Purpose Reserve
A specific restricted purpose reserve is established where Maryborough District Health Service has possession or title to the
funds but has no discretion to amend or vary the restriction and/or condition underlying the funds received.
(o) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These
commitments are disclosed by way of a note (refer to note 18) at their nominal value and are inclusive of the goods and
services tax ("GST") payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information
to users, the net present values of significant individual projects are stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed
as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet.
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(p) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of
note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented
inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.
(q) Goods and Services Tax
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating
cash flow.
Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.
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(r)

AASs issued that are not yet effective
Certain new Australian accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2014 reporting
period. DTF assesses the impact of all these new standards and advises the Health Service of their applicability and early
adoption where applicable.
As at 30 June 2014, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by the AASB but were not yet effective.
They become effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the stated operative dates
as detailed in the table below. Maryborough District Health Service has not and does not intend to adopt these standards early.

Standard /
Interpretation

Summary

AASB 9 Financial Instruments This standard simplifies
requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial
assets resulting from Phase 1 of
the IASB’s project to replace IAS
39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
(AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement).

AASB 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements

This Standard forms the basis for
determining which entities should
be consolidated into an entity's
financial statements. AASB 10
defines 'control' as requiring
exposure or rights to variable
returns and the ability to affect
those returns through power over
an investee, which may broaden
the concept of control for public
sector entities. The AASB has
issued an exposure draft ED 238
Consolidated Financial Statements Australian Implementation
Guidance for Not-for-Profit
Entities that explains and
illustrates how the principles in the
Standard apply from the
perspective of not-for-profit
entities in the private and public
sectors.
This Standard deals with the
concept of joint control, and sets
out a new principles-based
approach for determining the type
of joint arrangement that exists
and the corresponding accounting
treatment. The new categories of
joint arrangements under AASB
11 are more aligned to the actual
rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangement.

Applicable for
reporting periods
beginning on
1 January 2017

Impact on Health
Service's Annual
Statements
The preliminary assessment has
identified that the financial impact of
available for sale (AFS) assets will now
be reported through other
comprehensive income (OCI) and no
longer recycled to the profit and loss.
While the preliminary assessment has
not identified any material impact
arising from AASB 9, it will continue
to be monitored and assessed.

1 Jan 2014
(not-for-profit
entities)

For the public sector, AASB 10 builds
on the control guidance that existed
in AASB 127 and Interpretation
112 and is not expected to change
which entities need to be consolidated.

Ongoing work is being done to
monitor and assess the impact of this
standard.

1 January 2014
(not-for-profit
entities)

Based on current assessment, entities
already apply the equity method when
accounting for joint ventures. It is
anticipated that there would be no
material impact. Ongoing work is
being done to monitor and assess the
impact of this standard.
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Standard /
Summary
Interpretation

Applicable for
reporting periods
beginning on
1 January 2014
(not-for-profit
entities)

Impact on Health
Service's Annual
Statements
The new standard is likely to require
additional disclosures and ongoing
work is being done to determine the
extent of additional disclosure required.

AASB12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

This Standard requires disclosure
of information that enables users
of financial statements to evaluate
the nature of, and risks associated
with, interests in other entities and
the effects of those interests on the
financial statements. This Standard
replaces the disclosure
requirements in AASB127
Separate Financial Statements and
AASB131 Interests in Joint
Ventures.

AASB127 Separate
Financial Statements

This revised Standard prescribes
the accounting and disclosure
requirements for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates when an entity prepares
separate financial statements.

1 January 2014
(not-for-profit
entities)

Current assessment indicates that there
is limited impact on Victorian Public
Sector entities. Ongoing work is being
done to monitor and assess the impact
of this standard.

AASB128 Investments in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

This revised Standard sets out the 1 January 2014
requirements for the application of (not-for-profit
the equity method when
entities)
accounting for investments in
associates and joint ventures.

Current assessment indicates that there
is limited impact on Victorian Public
Sector entities. Ongoing work is being
done to monitor and assess the impact
of this standard.
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AASs issued that are not yet effective (Continued)
In addition to the new standards above, the AASB has issued a list of amending standards that are not effective for the
2013-14 reporting period (as listed below). In general, these amending standards include editorial and references changes
that are expected to have insignificant impacts on public sector reporting. The AASB Interpretation in the list below is also
not effective for the 2013-14 reporting period and is considered to have insignificant impacts on public sector reporting.
- AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010).
- AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint
Arrangements Standards.
- 2013-1 Amendments to AASB 1049 – Relocation of Budgetary Reporting Requirements.
- 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets.
- 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting.
- 2013-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Investment Entities
- 2013-6 Amendments to AASB 136 arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements
- 2013-7 Amendments to AASB 1038 arising from AASB 10 in relation to consolidation and interests of policy holders
- 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments
- AASB Interpretation 21 Levies.

(s)

Category Groups
Maryborough District Health Service has used the following category groups for reporting purposes for the
current and previous financial years.
Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients) comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure
on admitted patient services, where services are delivered in public hospitals, or free standing day hospital
facilities, or alcohol and drug treatment units or hospitals specialising in dental services, hearing and ophthalmic aids.
Outpatient Services (Outpatients) comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure on public hospital type outpatient services,
where services are delivered in public hospital outpatient clinics, or alcohol and drug treatment units or palliative care.
Emergency Department Services (EDS) comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure on emergency department services
that are available to public patients.
Aged Care comprises revenue/expenditure from Home and Community Care (HACC) programs,
allied Health, Aged Care Assessment and support services.
Primary Health comprises revenue/expenditure for Community Health Services including health promotion
and counselling, physiotherapy, speech therapy, podiatry and occupational therapy.
Off Campus, Ambulatory Services (Ambulatory) comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure on public
hospital type services including palliative care facilities and rehabilitation facilities and rehabilitation facilities,
as well as services provided under the following agreements: Services that are provided or received by hospitals
(or area health services) but are delivered/received outside a hospital campus, services which have moved from a
hospital to a community setting since June 1998, services which fall within the agreed scope of inclusions under the new
system, which have been delivered within hospital's i.e. in rural/remote areas.
Residential Aged Care including Mental Health (RAC incl. Mental Health) referred to in the past as psycho geriatric
residential services, comprises those Commonwealth-licensed residential aged care services in receipt of
supplementary funding from DH under the mental health program. It excludes all other residential services funded
under the mental health program, such as mental health funded community care units (CCUs)
and secure extended care units (SECs).
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(s)

Category Groups (Continued)
Other Services excluded from Australian Health Care Agreement (AHCA) (Other)
comprises revenue/expenditure for services not separately classified above, including: Public
health services including Laboratory testing, Blood Borne Viruses/ Sexually Transmitted Infections
clinical services, Kooris liaison officers, immunisation and screening services, Drugs services including
drug withdrawal, counselling and the needle and syringe program, Dental Health services, including
general and specialist dental care, school dental services and clinical education. Disability services
including aids and equipment and flexible support packages to people with a disability, Community Care
programs including sexual assault support, early parenting services, parenting assessment and skills
development, and various support services. Health and Community Initiatives also falls in this category group.
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Note 2: Revenue
HSA
2013
$'000

HSA
2014
$'000
Revenue from Operating Activities
Government Grants
- Department of Health
- Victorian Health Funding Pool
- Dental Health Services Victoria
- State Government - Other
- Other
- Commonwealth Government
- Residential Aged Care Subsidy
- Other
Total Government Grants
Indirect Contributions by Department of Health
- Insurance
- Long Service Leave
Total Indirect Contributions by Department of Health
Patient and Resident Fees
- Patient and Resident Fees
- Residential Aged Care
Total Patient and Resident Fees
Commercial Activities and Specific Purpose Funds
- Private Practice and Other Patient Activities Fees
- Property Income
- Catering

H&CI
2014
$'000

H&CI
2013
$'000

Total
2014
$'000

Total
2013
$'000

4,787
14,004
1,162

8,211
9,299
675

-

-

4,787
14,004
1,162

8,211
9,299
675

231

712

-

-

231

712

3,779
1,159
25,122

3,833
1,363
24,093

-

-

3,779
1,159
25,122

3,833
1,363
24,093

31
(90)
(59)

251
163
414

-

-

31
(90)
(59)

251
163
414

495
1,840
2,335

656
1,778
2,434

-

-

495
1,840
2,335

656
1,778
2,434

-

-

1,215
227
98

1,114
227
120

1,215
227
98

1,114
227
120

Total Commercial Activities and Specific Purpose Funds
1,540
1,461
1,540
Other Revenue from Operating Activities
458
345
26
302
484
Total Revenue from Operating Activities
27,856
27,286
1,566
1,763
29,422
Revenue from Non-Operating Activities
Interest & Dividends
223
232
223
223
232
223
Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities
Capital Purpose Income
State Government Capital Grants
432
667
114
432
- Other
(refer to note 2b)
Residential Accommodation Payments
(refer to note 11)
(158)
80
(158)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on investment properties
(refer to note 2c)
10
11
10
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-financial Assets
222
120
222
Donations and Bequests
Total Capital Purpose Income
432
667
74
325
506
(refer to note 2a)
28,511
28,185
1,640
2,088
30,151
Total Revenue
Indirect contributions by Department of Health
Department of Health makes certain payments on behalf of Maryborough District Health Service. These amounts have been brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording
them as revenue and expenses.This note relates o revenues above the net result line only, and does not reconcile to comprehensive income.

1,461
647
29,049

(refer to note 2b)
(refer to note 2b)

232
232

781
80
11
120
992
30,273
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Note 2a: Analysis of Revenue by Source
Admitted
Patients
2014
$'000

Outpatients
2014
$'000

EDS
2014
$'000

RAC
2014
$'000

Aged Care
2014
$'000

Primary
Health
2014
$'000

Other
2014
$'000

Revenue from Services Supported by Health Services Agreement
12,767
755
1,287
5,980
1,273
1,898
Government Grants
(59)
Indirect Contributions by Department of Health
271
16
1,840
147
23
Patient and Resident Fees
(refer to note 2b)
2
9
5
Other Revenue from Operating Activities
Interest and Dividends
Capital Purpose Income
(refer to note 2)
Total Revenue from Services Supported by Health Services Agreement
12,979
771
1,289
7,820
1,429
1,926
Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives
Commercial Activities and Specific Purpose Funds
Capital Purpose Income
(refer to note 2)
Total Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives
Total Revenue
12,979
771
1,289
7,820
1,429
1,926
Indirect contributions by Department of Health
Department of Health makes certain payments on behalf of Maryborough District Health Service. These amounts have been brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording
them as revenue and expenses.

Total
2014
$'000

1,162
38
442
223
432
2,297

25,122
(59)
2,335
458
223
432
28,511

1,566
74
1,640
3,937

1,566
74
1,640
30,151

Note 2a: Analysis of Revenue by Source
Admitted
Patients
2013
$'000

Outpatients
2013
$'000

EDS
2013
$'000

RAC
2013
$'000

Aged Care
2013
$'000

Primary
Health
2013
$'000

Other
2013
$'000

Total
2013
$'000

Revenue from Services Supported by Health Service Agreement
12,124
705
1,334
6,229
1,908
1,068
725
Government Grants
24,093
241
7
28
85
35
7
11
414
Indirect Contributions by Human Services
328
25
1,778
208
33
62
(refer to note 2b)
2,434
Patient and Resident Fees
7
2
2
19
315
Other Revenue from Operating Activities
345
40
192
Interest and Dividends
232
667
(refer to note 2)
667
Capital Purpose Income
Total Revenue from Services Supported by Health Services Agreement
12,693
744
1,364
8,132
2,153
1,127
1,972
28,185
Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives
Commercial Activities and Specific Purpose Funds
1,763
1,763
Capital Purpose Income
(refer to note 2)
325
325
Total Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives
2,088
2,088
Total Revenue
12,693
744
1,364
8,132
2,153
1,127
4,060
30,273
Indirect contributions by Human Services
Department of Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of the Health Service. These amounts have been brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses.
expenses.
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Note 2b: Patient and resident fees raised
Total
2013
$'000

Total
2014
$'000
Patient and Resident Fees
Acute (incl rehabilitation and other acute care types)
- Inpatients
- Outpatients
Residential Aged Care
- Residential Accommodation payments
Aged Care
Primary Care
Other Fees
Total Patient and Resident Fees

Capital Purpose Income
- Residential Accommodation payments
Total Capital Purpose Income

271
16

328
25

1,840
147
23
38
2,335

1,778
208
33
62
2,434

-

-

Total
2014
$'000

Total
2013
$'000

Note 2c: Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets

Proceeds from Disposals of Non-Current Assets
Plant and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Total Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets

11
11

22
22

Less: Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets
Plant and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Total Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold
Net gain/(loss) on Disposal of Non-Financial Assets

1
-

1
10

11
11
11

28

Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2014

Note 3: Expenses
HSA
2013
$'000

HSA
2014
$'000
Employee Expenses
Salaries and Wages
WorkCover Premium
Departure Packages
Long Service Leave
Superannuation
Total Employee Expenses

H&CI
2014
$'000

H&CI
2013
$'000

Total
2013
$'000

Total
2014
$'000

17,824
214
408
1,777
20,223

17,821
139
59
523
1,697
20,239

375
4
12
39
430

989
8
19
98
1,114

18,199
218
420
1,816
20,653

18,810
147
59
542
1,795
21,353

Non Salary Labour Costs
Fees for Visiting Medical Officers
Contractors and Consultants
Total Non Salary Labour Costs

1,872
606
2,478

1,725
494
2,219

40
400
440

27
389
416

1,912
1,006
2,918

1,752
883
2,635

Supplies and Consumables
Drug Supplies
Medical, Surgical Supplies and Prosthesis
Food Supplies
Total Supplies and Consumables

156
1,205
522
1,883

146
666
508
1,320

24
4
28

170
45
215

156
1,229
526
1,911

146
836
553
1,535

490
488
268
142
332
181
155
42
27
1,155

529
466
251
116
438
190
125
18
25
1,095

11
7
14
88
530

19
12
30
38
613

501
495
268
142
346
269
155
42
27
1,685

548
478
251
116
468
228
125
18
25
1,708

17
20
3,317

16
26
3,295

650

712

17
20
3,967

16
26
4,007

-

-

67
67

267
267

67
67

267
267

Other Expenses
Domestic Services and Supplies
Fuel, Light, Power and Water
Insurance costs funded by Department of Health
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Maintenance Contracts
Patient Transport
Bad and Doubtful Debts
Advertising Expenses
Other Administrative Expenses
Audit Fees
- VAGO - Audit of Financial Statements
- Internal Auditors
Total Other Expenses
Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Other
Total Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Depreciation
Total Expenses

-

-

3,079

3,222

3,079

3,222

27,901

27,073

4,694

5,946

32,595

33,019

This note relates to revenues above the net result line only, and does not reconcile to comprehensive income
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Note 3a: Analysis of expenses by source
Admitted
Patients
2014
$'000
Services Supported by Health Services Agreement
Employee Expenses
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies and Consumables
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations
Total Expenses from Services Supported by Health Services Agreement

10,168
2,416
1,633
2,527
16,744

Outpatients
2014
$'000
443
11
10
464

EDS
2014
$'000

RAC
2014
$'000

Aged Care
2014
$'000

1,112
91
60
1,263

6,230
28
121
603
6,982

864
7
19
17
907

Primary
Health
2014
$'000

Total
2014
$'000

Other
2014
$'000

1,406
27
8
100
1,541

-

20,223
2,478
1,883
3,317
27,901

Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives
Employee Expenses
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies and Consumables
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations
Total Expenses from Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

430
440
28
650
1,548

430
440
28
650
1,548

Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Other Expenses
Total Expenses using Capital Purpose Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

67
67

67
67

Depreciation (refer to note 4)

Total Expenses

-

16,744

-

464

-

-

1,263

6,982

-

907

-

3,079

3,079

1,541

4,694

32,595

Note 3a: Analysis of expenses by source

Services Supported by Health Services Agreement
Employee Expenses
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies and Consumables
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations
Total Expenses from Services Supported by Health Services Agreement

Admitted
Patients
2013
$'000

Outpatients
2013
$'000

7,202
2,116
753
1,463
11,534

335
1
20
50
406

EDS
2013
$'000

RAC
2013
$'000

Aged Care
2013
$'000

Primary
Health
2013
$'000

Other
2013
$'000

Total
2013
$'000

1,819
6
159
228
2,212

7,772
53
280
1,160
9,265

1,964
38
91
255
2,348

1,147
5
17
139
1,308

-

20,239
2,219
1,320
3,295
27,073

Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives
Employee Expenses
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies and Consumables
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations
Total Expenses from Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,114
416
215
712
2,457

1,114
416
215
712
2,457

Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Other Expenses
Total Expenses using Capital Purpose Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

267
267

267
267

2,212

9,265

2,348

1,308

3,222
5,946

3,222
33,019

Depreciation (refer to note 4)
Total Expenses

11,534

406
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Note 4: Depreciation
2014
$'000
Depreciation
Buildings
Computers and Communication
Medical Equipment
Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Fittings
Motor Vehicles
Total Depreciation

2,569
78
267
61
49
55
3,079

2013
$'000

2,631
65
286
54
40
146
3,222

Note 5: Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash assets includes cash on hand and in banks, and short-term deposits which are readily convertible to cash on hand, and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.
2014
$'000

2013
$'000

Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Total
Cash at bank - Joint Venture
Total

1
1,302
1,303
14
1,317

2
1,521
1,523
31
1,554

Represented by:
Cash for Health Service Operations
Cash for Monies Held in Trust
Cash for Health Service Operations (as per Cash Flow Statement)
Cash for Monies Held in Trust
Cash for Joint Venture Operations
Total

1,260
1,260
43
14
1,317

1,496
1,496
27
31
1,554
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Note 6: Receivables
2013
$'000

2014
$'000
CURRENT
Contractual
Trade Debtors
Patient Fees
Accommodation Bond Debtors
Accrued Revenue
Receivables - LMRHA
Accrued Investment Income
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Trade Debtors
Patient Fees
Statutory
GST Receivable
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES
NON CURRENT
Statutory
Long Service Leave - Department of Health
TOTAL NON CURRENT RECEIVABLES
TOTAL RECEIVABLES

(a) Movement in the Allowance for doubtful debts
Balance at beginning of year
Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in net result
Balance at end of year
(b) Ageing analysis of receivables
Please refer to note 17(b) for the ageing analysis of receivables.
(c)Nature and extent of risk arising from receivables
Please refer to note 17(b) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from receivables.

175
247
171
127
5
21

347
156
95
181
142
23

(29)
(40)
677

(19)
(8)
917

45
45
722

31
31
948

406
406
1,128

496
496
1,444
2013
$'000

2014
$'000
27
42
69

9
18
27
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Note 7: Investments & Other Financial Assets
Operating Fund

2014
$'000
CURRENT
Loans and Receivables
Term Deposits
Australian Dollar Term Deposits > 3 Months
Total Current
Represented by:
Health Service Investments
Accommodation bonds
Joint Venture Investments
TOTAL
(a) Ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 17(b) for the ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets.
(b)Nature and extent of risk arising from other financial assets
Please refer to note 17(b) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from investments and other financial assets.

2013
$'000

Total

Total

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

4,841
4,841

4,220
4,220

4,841
4,841

4,220
4,220

3,340
1,188
313
4,841

2,373
1,639
208
4,220

3,340
1,188
313
4,841

2,373
1,639
208
4,220

Note 8: Inventories
2013
$'000

2014
$'000
CURRENT
Pharmaceuticals - at cost
Medical and Surgical Lines - at cost
TOTAL INVENTORIES

17
44
61

18
51
69

Note 9: Other Current Assets
Prepayments
Prepayments - LMRHA

TOTAL PREPAYMENTS

2014
$'000
228
13
241

2013
$'000
41
13

54
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Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
2014
$'000
Land
- Land at Cost
- Land at Valuation 30/06/2009
- Land at Valuation 30/06/2014
Total Land

2013
$'000

767
767

Buildings
- Buildings Under Construction
- Buildings at Cost

1
-

164
1,119
1,283
3
110

- Buildings at Valuation 30/06/2013
- Buildings at Valuation 30/06/2014
- Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Buildings

40,783
40,784

31,428
31,541

Plant and Equipment
- Plant and Equipment at Fair Value
- Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment

620
231
389

593
189
404

2,625
1,067
1,558

2,415
801
1,614

Computers and Communications
- Computers and Communication at Fair Value
- Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Computers and Communications

427
212
215

309
134
175

Furniture and Fittings
- Furniture and Fittings at Fair Value
- Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Furniture and Fittings

619
157
462

523
107
416

Motor Vehicles
- Motor Vehicles at Fair Value
- Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Motor Vehicles

239
239

693
558
135

44,414

35,568

Medical Equipment
- Medical Equipment at Fair Value
- Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Medical Equipment

TOTAL PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation (Continued)

Land
$'000
Balance at 1 July 2012
Additions
Disposal
Revaluation Increments(Decrements)
Net Transfers between classes
Depreciation (refer note 4)

Balance at 30 June 2013

WIP
$'000

Buildings
$'000

1,283

16

-

97
(110)
-

1,283

Additions
LMRHA additions
Transfer from Investment Property
Revaluation Increments(Decrements)
Net Transfers between classes
Depreciation (refer note 4)

80
(596)
-

Balance at 30 June 2014

767

3
(2)
-

1

Computers
Plant and
Medical
Furniture
and
Equipment Equipment Commnctns and Fittings
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

30,989

309

3,069
111
(2,631)

87
55
7
(54)

31,538

404

111
11,701
2
(2,569)

13
33
(61)

40,783

389

1,851
31
17
1
(286)

1,614
211
(267)

1,558

Motor
Vehicles
$'000

Total
$'000

176

355

256

35,235

44
29
(9)
(65)

5
96
(40)

36
(11)
(146)

300
(11)
3,266
(3,222)

175

416

135

35,568

118
(78)

95
(49)

27
132
(55)

575
33
80
11,237
(3,079)

215

462

239

44,414

Land and buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of Maryborough District Health Service's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. The valuation is
at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2014.
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Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
( c ) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2014
Carrying
amount as
at 30 June
2014

$'000
Land at fair value
Specialised land
Total of land at fair value

Fair value measurement at end of
reporting period using:
(1)

Level 1

$'000
767

(1)

Level 2

$'000
-

(1)

Level 3

$'000
-

767

767

-

-

767

Buildings at fair value
Specialised buildings

40,783

-

-

40,783

Total of building at fair value

40,783

-

-

40,783

Plant and equipment at fair value
Plant equipment and vehicles at fair value
- Vehicles (ii)
- Plant and equipment

239
1,066

-

239
-

1,066

Total of plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value

1,305

-

239

1,066

Medical equipment at fair value

1,558

-

-

1,558

Total medical equipment at fair value

1,558

-

-

1,558

(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1
(ii) Vehicles are categorised to Level 2 assets as a market approach is appropriate for vehicles with an active resale market available.

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
( c ) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2014 (Continued)
Specialised land and specialised buildings
The market approach is used for specialised land and specialised buildings although is adjusted for the community service obligation (CSO) to reflect the specialised nature of the assets being valued.
Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market based direct comparison approach.
The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that is also equally applicable to market participants. This approach is in light of
the highest and best use consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO
are considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets.
For the health services, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation. As depreciation adjustments are considered as
significant and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.
An independent valuation of the Maryborough District Health Service’s specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria. The valuation was performed using the
market approach adjusted for CSO. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.
Vehicles
Maryborough District Health Service acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life. The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is managed by
Maryborough District Health Service who set relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles. The fair value of the vehicles reflects revaluation based on a an active resale market.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is held at carrying value (depreciated cost). When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is
used to estimate the fair value. Unless there is market evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely that depreciated replacement
cost will be materially different from the existing carrying value.
There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2014.
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.
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Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
2014

Opening Balance
Purchases (sales) & reclassifications

Land
Buildings
$'000
$'000
1,283
31,538
80
113

Plant and
equipment
$'000
995
259

Medical
equipment
$'000
1,614
211

Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation
- Impairment loss
Subtotal

0
0
1,363

(2,569)
0
29,082

(188)
0
1,066

(267)
0
1,558

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation
Subtotal
Closing Balance

(596)
(596)
767

11,701
11,701
40,783

0
0
1,066

0
0
1,558

0

0

0

0

767

40,783

1,066

1,558

Unrealised gains/(losses) on non-financial assets

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
( e) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations:

Valuation
technique

Specialised land

Market
Approach

Significant
unobservable
inputs
Community
Service
Obligation
(CSO)
adjustment

Direct cost per
square metre

Specialised buildings

Depreciated
replacement
cost
Useful life of
specialised
buildings

Medical equipment at fair value

A Significant increase or
decrease in the CSO
20% (20%) adjustment would result in a
significantly lower (higher) fair
value

$101 $2,020/m²
($1,391)

A significant increase or
decrease in direct cost per
square meter adjustment
would result in a significantly
higher or lower fair value

A significant increase or
decrease in the estimated
10 - 40 years
useful life of the asset would
(30 years)
result in a significantly higher
or lower valuation
A significant increase or
decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly
higher or lower fair value

Useful life of
PPE

5 - 20 years
(15 years)

A significant increase or
decrease in estimated useful
life of the asset would result
in a significantly higher or
lower valuation

Cost per unit

$1,000 $516,283
($8,077)

A significant increase or
decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly
higher or lower fair value

Depreciated
replacement
cost

Depreciated
replacement
cost

Sensitivity of fair value
measurement to changes in
significant unobservable
inputs

$1,000 $68,931
($2,008)

Cost per unit

Plant and equipment at fair value

Range
(weighted
average)

A significant increase or
decrease in estimated useful
Useful life of 3 - 10 years (7
life of the asset would result
years)
PPE
in a significantly higher or
lower valuation
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Note 11: Investment Properties
(a) Movements in carrying value for investment properties as at 30 June 2014
2014
$'000
Balance at Beginning of Period
Additions
Transfers to/(from) Investment Properties
Net Gain/(Loss) from Fair Value Adjustments
Balance at End of Period

927
(80)
(158)
689

2013
$'000
847
80
927

Note 12: Payables
2014
$'000
CURRENT
Contractual
Trade Creditors
Payables - LMRHA
Accrued Expenses
Statutory
Department of Health

TOTAL PAYABLES

2013
$'000

734
41
284
1,059

575
38
142
755

824
824
1,883

698
698
1,453

(a) Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 17(c) for the ageing analysis of contractual payables.
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from payables
Please refer to Note 17(c) for the nature and extent of risks arising from payables.
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Note 13: Provisions
2013
$'000

2014
$'000
CURRENT
Employee Benefits (Note 13 (a))
Annual Leave (Note 13 (a))
- unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
- unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
Accrued Wages and Salaries (Note 13 (a))
- unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
- unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
Accrued Days Off (Note 13 (a))
- unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
- unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
Long Service Leave (Note 13 (a))
- unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
- unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)

Provision Related to Employee Benefit On-Costs
- unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
- unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
TOTAL CURRENT PROVISIONS
NON CURRENT
Employee Benefits (i) (Note 13 (a))
Provisions Related to Employee Benefit On-Costs (Note 13 (a)) and (Note 13 (b))
TOTAL NON CURRENT PROVISIONS

1,375
226

1,673
-

643
-

716
-

38
-

39
-

294
2,248

531
1,976

4,824

4,935

273
319
592
5,416

307
205
512
5,447

631
83
714

627
65
692

1,771
727
43
2,875

1,847
790
43
2,767

714
6,130

692
6,139

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND RELATED ON-COSTS
Annual Leave entitlements
Accrued Wages and Salaries
Accrued Days Off
Unconditional Long Service Leave entitlements
NON CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND RELATED ON-COSTS
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements (iii)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND RELATED ON-COSTS

Notes:
(i) Employee benefits consist of annual leave and long service leave accrued by employees. On-costs such as payroll tax and worker's compensation insurance are not employee benefits and are reflected as a separate provision.
(ii) The amounts disclosed are at nominal values
(iii) The amounts disclosed are at present values
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Note 13: Provisions (Continued)
(b) Movements in provision
2014
$'000
Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at start of year
Provision made during the year
Settlement made during the year
Balance at end of year

2013
$'000

3,459
420
(290)
3,589

3,221
542
(304)
3,459

Employees of the Health Service are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the Health Service contributes to both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plan(s) provides
benefits based on years of service and final average salary.
The Health service does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation
is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the State's defined benefits liabilities in its disclosure for administered items.
However superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of the Health Service. The name, details and
amounts expense in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by the Health Service are as follows:
Paid Contribution for the
Year
2013
$'000

2014
$'000
(i) Defined benefit plans:
Health Super
Defined contribution plans:
Health Super
HESTA
Total

Contribution Outstanding
at Year End
2013
$'000

2014
$'000

51

80

-

-

1,508
257
1,816

1,486
229
1,795

-

-

(i) the bases for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the defined benefit superannuation plans.
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Note 14: Other Liabilities
2014
$'000

2013
$'000

CURRENT
Monies Held in Trust
- Patient Monies Held in Trust
- Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees)
Total Other Liabilities

43
1,359
1,402

27
1,734
1,761

* Total Monies Held in Trust Represented by the following assets:
- Receivables (refer note 6)
- Cash Assets (refer note 5)
- Other Financial Assets (refer note 7)
- Investments & Other financial assets (refer note 7)
TOTAL

171
43
1,188
1,402

95
27
1,639
1,761

Note 15: Equity
2014
$'000
(a) Surpluses
Physical Asset Revaluation Surplus
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)
- Land
- Buildings
- Plant & Equipment
- Motor Vehicles

2013
$'000

11,314

8,048

(596)
11,701
132
11,237
22,551

3,069
197
3,266
11,314

254
21,968
132
197
22,551

850
10,267
197
11,314

Restricted Specific Purpose Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

486

486

Balance at the end of the reporting period

486

486

Balance at end of reporting period*
*Represented by:
- Land
- Buildings
- Motor Vehicles
- Plant and Equipment

Total Surpluses

23,037

11,800

(b) Contributed Capital
Balance at beginning of the reporting period

13,776

13,776

Balance at the end of the reporting period

13,776

13,776

(c) Accumulated Surpluses
Balance at beginning of the reporting period
Net Result for the Year

8,907
(2,444)

11,653
(2,746)

Balance at the end of the reporting period

6,463

8,907

(d) Total Equity at end of financial year

43,276

34,483
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Note 16: Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities
2014
$'000

2013
$'000

Net Result for the Year
Depreciation
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Net (Gains)/Loss from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Unrealised (gain)/loss on investment properties
Joint Venture Net Result (net of Depreciation)
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Benefits

(2,444)
3,079
42
(10)
158
18

(2,746)
3,222
18
(11)
(80)
(74)

213
8
(187)
427
(9)

(180)
41
(7)
(280)
175

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1,295

78
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Note 17: Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Maryborough District Health Service's principal financial instruments comprise of:
- Cash Assets
- Term Deposits
- Receivables
- Payables
- Accommodation Bonds
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised,
with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.
Maryborough District Health Service's main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Health Service manages these financial risks in accordance with its financial risk
management policy.
Maryborough District Health Service uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed. Primary responsibility for the identification and management of financial risks
rests with the financial risk management committee of the Health Service.

The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage Maryborough District Health Service's financial risks within government policy parameters.
Categorisation of financial instruments
Details of each categories in accordance with AASB 139, shall be disclosed either on the face of the balance sheet or in the notes.

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and Receivables
Total Financial Assets (i)
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Total Financial Liabilities (ii)

2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and Receivables
Total Financial Assets (i)
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Total Financial Liabilities (ii)

Contractual
financial assets Financial
loans and
liabilities at
receivables
amortised cost

Total
$'000

1,317
5,518
6,835

-

1,317
5,518
6,835

-

2,461
2,461

2,461
2,461

Contractual
financial assets Financial
loans and
liabilities at
receivables
amortised cost

Total
$'000

1,554
5,137
6,691

-

1,554
5,137
6,691

-

2,516
2,516

2,516
2,516

(i) The total amount of financial assets disclosed here excludes statutory receivables (i.e. Amounts owing from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable)

45

Maryborough District Health Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2014

(ii) The total amount of financial liabilities disclosed here excludes statutory payables (i.e. Taxes payable)

Note 17: Financial Instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Continued)
Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category
Net
holding Total interest
gain/(loss)
income/
Fee income /
2014
(expense)
(expense)
$'000
$'000
$000
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i)

Impairment
loss
$'000

Total
$'000

Loans and Receivables (i)
Total Financial Assets

-

112
111
223

-

-

112
111
223

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost (ii)
Total Financial Liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i)
Loans and Receivables (i)
Total Financial Assets

-

121
111
232

-

-

121
111
232

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost (ii)
Total Financial Liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

(i) For cash and cash equivalents, loans or receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest revenue, plus or minus foreign exchange gains or losses arising from revaluation
of the financial assets, and minus any impairment recognised in the net result.
(ii) For financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest expense, plus or minus foreign exchange gains or losses arising from the revaluation of financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost
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Note 17: Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of Maryborough District Health Service, which comprise cash and deposits and non-statutory receivables . Maryborough District Health Service's
exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of a counter party on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to Maryborough District Health Service. Credit risk is measured at fair
value and is monitored on aregular basis.
Credit risk associated with Maryborough District Health Service's contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian Government.
In addition, Maryborough District Health Service does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual financial assets that are on fixed interest, except for cash assets,
which are mainly cash at bank. Maryborough District Health Service's policy is to only deal with banks with high credit ratings.
Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that Maryborough District Health Service will not be able to collect a receivable. Objective evidence
includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, debts which are more than 60 days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.
Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents Maryborough District
Health Service's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.
Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables (i)
- Term Deposits
Total Financial Assets
2013
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables (i)
- Term Deposits
Total Financial Assets

Financial Government Government
Other
(min BBB
Institutions
agencies
agencies
(AAA credit (AAA credit (BBB credit credit rating)
rating)
rating)
rating)
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

Total

$'000

1,317

-

-

-

1,317

4,220
5,537

-

-

146
589
735

146
589
4,220
6,272

1,554

-

-

-

1,554

4,220
5,774

-

-

328
589
917

328
589
4,220
6,691

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable).
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Note 17: Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Credit Risk (Continued)
Ageing analysis of financial assets as at 30 June

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
- Term Deposits
Total Financial Assets
2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
- Term Deposits
Total Financial Assets

Carrying
$'000

Not Past Due
and Not

$'000

Past Due But Not Impaired
Less than 1 1-3 Months 3 months - 1-5 Years
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

1,317

1,317

-

328
589
4,841
7,075

294
597
4,841
7,049

-

1,554

1,554

-

328
589
4,220
6,691

294
597
4,220
6,665

-

7

7

7

7

Over 5
$'000

Impaired
$'000

-

-

-

-

-

18
18

28
28

-

-

(19)
(8)
(27)

-

-

-

-

-

18
18

28
28

-

-

(19)
(8)
(27)

(i) Ageing analysis of financial assets excludes statutory financial assets (i.e GST input tax credit)
Contractual financial assets that are either past due or impaired
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired. Currently the Maryborough District Health Service does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements
relating to any of its financial assets.
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and they are stated at their carrying amounts as indicated. The ageing analysis
table above discloses the ageing only of contractual financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk Maryborough District Health Service would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Maryborough District Health Service's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet.
Maryborough District Health Service manages its liquidity risk as follows:
- Term Deposits and cash held at financial institutions are managed with variable maturity dates and take into consideration cash flow requirements of the Health Service from month to month.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Maryborough District Health Service's financial liabilities.
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Note 17: Financial Instruments (Continued)
(c) Liquidity Risk (Continued)
Maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at 30 June

2014
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Patient Trust
- Accommodation Bonds
Total Financial Liabilities
2013
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Patient Trust
- Accommodation Bonds
Total Financial Liabilities

Carrying
Amount
$'000

Nominal
Amount

$'000

Maturity Dates
Less than 1 1-3 Months 3 months Month
1 Year
$'000
$'000
$'000

1-5 Years
$'000

1,059

1,059

1,059

-

-

-

43
1,359
2,461

43
1,359
2,461

1,059

-

43
1,359
1,402

-

755

755

755

-

-

-

27
1,734
2,516

27
1,734
2,516

755

-

27
1,734
1,761

-

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes the types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable)
(d) Market Risk
Maryborough District Health Service's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to foreign currency and other price risks. Objectives, policies and processes
used to manage each of these risks are disclosed in the paragraphs below.

Currency Risk
Maryborough District Health Service is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk through its payables relating to purchases of supplies and consumables from overseas. This is because of a limited amount of
purchases denominated in foreign currencies and a short timeframe between commitment and settlement.

Interest Rate Risk
Exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily through the Maryborough District Health Service's interest bearing liabilities. Minimisation of risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing
financial instruments. For financial liabilities, Maryborough District Health Service mainly undertake financial liabilities with relatively even maturity profiles.
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Note 17: Financial Instruments (Continued)
(d) Market Risk (Continued)
Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
- Term Deposits

Weighted
Average
Effective
Interest
Rate (%)
1.40

3.05

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
- Patient Trust
- Accommodation Bonds

2013
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
- Term Deposits
Financial Liabilities (i)
At amortised cost
Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
- Patient Trust
- Accommodation Bonds

2.47

3.95

Carrying
Amount

$'000

Interest Rate Exposure
Fixed
Variable
Non
Interest
Interest
Interest
Rate
Rate
Bearing
$'000
$'000
$'000

1,317

-

1,315

2

328
589
4,841
7,075

4,841
4,841

1,315

328
589
919

1,059

-

-

1,059

43
1,359
2,461

-

-

43
1,359
2,461

1,554

-

1,552

2

328
589
4,220
6,691

4,220
4,220

1,552

328
589
919

755

-

-

755

27
1,734
2,516

-

-

27
1,734
2,516

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e GST input tax credit and GST payable)
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Note 17: Financial Instruments (Continued)
(d) Market Risk (Continued)

Sensitivity Disclosure Analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the financial markets, the Maryborough District Health Service believes the following
movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (Base rates are sourced from the Australian and New Zealand Banking Group Limited).
- A shift of 100 basis points up and down in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 3.05%;
- A parallel shift of +1% and -1% in inflation rate from year-end rates of 2%; and
The following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument held by Maryborough District Health Service at year end as presented to key management personnel, if
changes in the relevant risk occur.
Interest Rate Risk

Carrying

-1%

Amount
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
- Term Deposits
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Patient Trust
- Accommodation Bonds

2013
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
- Term Deposits
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Patient Trust
- Accommodation Bonds

$'000

Profit
$'000

+1%
Equity
$'000

Profit
$'000

Equity
$'000

1,317

(13)

(13)

13

13

328
589
4,841

(48)

(48)

48

48

1,059

-

-

-

-

43
1,359

(62)

(62)

62

62

1,554

(16)

(16)

16

16

328
589
4,220

(42)

(42)

42

42

-

-

-

-

(58)

(58)

58

58

755
27
1,734

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e GST input tax credit and GST payable)
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Note 17: Financial Instruments (Continued)
(e) Fair Value
The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows

· Level 1 - the fair value of financial instruments with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; and
· Level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the financial asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
· Level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using unobservable market inputs.
Maryborough District Health Service considers that the carrying amount of financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements to be a fair approximation of their fair values,
because of the short-term natureof the financial instruments and the expectation that they will be paid in full.
The following table shows that the fair values of most of the contractual financial assets and liabilities are the same as the carrying amounts.
Comparison between carrying amount and fair value
Carrying
Amount
2014
$000

Fair Value
2014
$000

Carrying
Amount
2013
$000

Fair Value
2013
$000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
- Term Deposits
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Patient Trust
- Accommodation Bonds
Total Financial Liabilities

1,317

1,317

1,554

1,554

328
589
4,841
7,075

328
589
4,841
7,075

328
589
4,220
6,691

328
589
4,220
6,691

1,059

1,059

755

755

43
1,359
2,461

43
1,359
2,461

27
1,734
2,516

27
1,734
2,516

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e GST input tax credit and GST payable)
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Note 18: Commitments for Expenditure
There are no known commitments for expenditure as at the 30 June 2014

Note 19: Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
There are no known contingent assets or liabilities as at the 30 June 2014

Note 20: Operating Segments
RACS
2014
$'000
REVENUE
External Segment Revenue
Intersegment Revenue
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
External Segment Expenses
Unallocated Expenses
Total Expenses
Net Result from ordinary activities
Interest Income
(Gain)/Loss on the revaluation of Investment Properties
Net Result for Year
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets
Unallocated Assets
Total Assets
Segment Liabilities
Unallocated Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Investments in associates and joint venture partnerships
Acquisition of property plant and equipment
Depreciation

2013
$'000

Radiology
2013
2014
$'000
$'000

Other
2014
$'000

Total
2013
$'000

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

7,820
7,820

8,092
8,092

1,215
1,215

1,114
1,114

21,131
21,131

20,755
20,755

30,166
30,166

29,961
29,961

6,982
6,982
838
838

9,265
9,265
(1,173)
(1,173)

898
898
317
317

888
888
226
226

24,715
24,715
(3,584)
223
238
(3,599)

22,866
22,866
(2,111)
192
(80)
(1,839)

7,880
24,715
32,595
(2,429)
223
238
(2,444)

10,153
22,866
33,019
(3,058)
192
(80)
(2,786)

18,295
18,295

14,695
14,695

1,208
1,208

970
970

35,126
35,126

28,171
28,171

19,503
35,126
54,629

15,665
28,171
43,836

3,202
3,202
69
521

3,181
3,181
29
834

89
89
39

88
88
63

6,124
6,124
313
506
2,519

6,084
6,084
208
271
2,507

3,291
6,124
9,415
313
575
3,079

3,269
6,084
9,353
208
1,194
3,404

The major products/services from which the above segments derive revenue are:
Business Segments
Services
Nursing Home, Hostel and Respite services
Residential Aged Care Services (RACS)
X-Ray and Ultrasound services
Radiology
Acute, Primary Care, and other Aged Care services
Other
Geographical Segment

Maryborough District Health Services operates predominantly in the district of Maryborough, Victoria. More than 90% of revenue, net surplus from ordinary activities and segment
assets relate to operations in the district of Maryborough, Victoria
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Note 21: Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets
Name of Entity

Principal Activity

Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance

Information Systems

Ownership Interest
2014
2013
%
%
6.81
6.90

Maryborough District Health Service interest in assets employed above jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below. The amounts are included in the financial statements
under their respective asset categories:
2014
$'000

2013
$'000

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

14
313
4
21
352

31
208
155
6
400

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Total Non Current Assets
Total Assets

32
32
384

8
8
408

Current Liabilities
Trade Creditors
Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilities
Net Assets

41
12
53
331

36
2
38
370

Maryborough District Health Service interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below:
2014
$'000

2013
$'000

Revenues
Revenue from Operating Activities
Capital Purpose Income
Total Revenue

231
48
279

275
114
389

Expenses
Information Technology and Administrative Expenses
Expenditure Using Capital Purpose Income
Depreciation
Total Expenses
(Loss)

490
10
500
(221)

499
9
508
(119)

Commitments for Expenditure
There are no known commitments for expenditure as at 30 June 2014.
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
There are no known contingent assets or liabilities as at 30 June 2014.
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Note 22: Responsible Persons Disclosures
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
Responsible Ministers:
The Honourable David Davis, MLC, Minister for Health and Ageing
The Honourable Mary Wooldridge, MLA, Minister for Mental Health

Period
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014

Governing Board
Mrs. J. K. Anderson
Mr. P. J. Silver
Mr R.G. Hannan
Mrs. W. A. McIvor
Mr. R.J. Osborne
Ms. F.J. Lindsay
Mr D. J. Murrell
Mrs. L. A. Symons

Period
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014

Accountable Officer
Mrs G. Beaumont

Period
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014

2013
No.

2014
No.
Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands;

Income Band
$0 - $9,999
$220,000 - $229,999
$230,000 - $239,999

8
-

1

Total Numbers

9

9
2013
$'000

2014
$'000
Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the reporting entity amounted to:

8
1

-

231

237

Amounts relating to Responsible Minister are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties
Maryborough District Health Service entered into the following transactions with Board Members and their related parties within normal customer
relationships on terms and conditions no more favourable than those available in similar arms length dealings.
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Note 23: Executive Officer Remuneration
The numbers of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the first two columns in the table below in their relevant income bands.
The base remuneration of executive offices is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long-service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.

$120,000 - $129,999
$140,000 - $149,999
$150,000 - $159,999
Total
Total annualised employee equivalents (AEE) (i)
Total Remuneration

Total Remuneration
Base Remuneration
2013
2013
2014
2014
No.
No.
No.
No.
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
2
2
2
1
1
$ 275,544 $ 283,276 $ 275,544 $ 279,703

(i) Annualised employee equivalent is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary hours per week over the 52 weeks for a reporting period.

Note 24: Remuneration of auditors
2013
$'000

2014
$'000
Victorian Auditor-General's Office
Audit of financial statements
Total

17
17

16
16

Note 25: Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
There are no known events occurring after the balance sheet date which would require adjustment in this financial report.

Note 26: Economic Dependency
Maryborough District Health Service is wholly dependent on the continued financial support of the State Government and in particular, the Department of Health. The Department of Health has provided confirmation
that it will continue to provide Maryborough District Health Service adequate cash flow support meet its current and future obligations as and when they fall due for a period up to September 2015.
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Appendix A
STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES - PART B
Financial performance - Operating Result
Annual Operating result ($m)

Target
0

2013-14 actuals
0.2

WIES activity performance

Target

2013-14 actuals

100

93.8

Target

2013-14 actuals

Creditors

< 60 days

67 days

Debtors

< 60 days

20 days

Target

2013-14 actuals

Health service accreditation

Full compliance

Full compliance

Residential aged care accreditation

Full compliance

Full compliance

Cleaning standards (Overall)

Full compliance

Full compliance

Cleaning standards (AQL-A)

90

96

Cleaning standards (AQL-B)

85

94.5

Cleaning standards (AQL-C)

75

97

Health Care Worker Immunisation - Influenza

85

71.2

Full compliance

Full compliance

No Outliers

No Outliers

75

85.4

<2/10,000

0.04/10,000

Victorian Patient Satisfaction Monitor (OCI)(Jul-Dec 2013)

73

87.5

Consumer Participation Indicator (Jul-Dec 2013)

75

85

Victorian Hospital Experience Measurement
Instrument (Jan-June 2014)
People Matter Survey

Full compliance

Full compliance

Full compliance

Full compliance

Target

2013-14 actuals

100

100

Target

2013-14 actuals
2,084

WlES (public and private) performance to target (%)
Cash management/liquidity

Service performance - Quality and Safety

Submission of data to VICNISS
Hospital Acquired Infection Surveillance
Hand Hygiene (rate)
SAB rate per occupied bed days

Maternity
Women with pre-arranged post natal home care (%)

STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES - PART C
Activity - Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separations
(WIES)
WIES Public
WIES Private

2,192
185

146

2,377

2,230

WIES DVA

87

56

WIES TAC

6

1

2,470

2,287

Total WIES (Public and Private)

WIES TOTAL
Subacute, Non-acute Admitted & Aged Care
Maintenance Public
Residential Aged Care

314

54

33,990

29,395

HACC

28,587

15,789

211

144

5,006

2,607

Mental Health and Drug Services & Primary Health
Drug Services
Community Health/Primary Care Programs
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Appendix B
FIVE YEAR STATISTICAL INFORMATION
2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

Total Revenue

30,151

30,273

30,171

28,286

27,664

Total Expenses

32,595

33,019

31,902

30,988

30,228

Net Results for year (inc Capital and Specific Items)

(2,444)

(2,746)

(1,731)

(2,702)

(2,564)

6,463

8,907

11,653

13,384

16,086

52,691

43,836

43,345

43,196

45,424

9,415

9,353

9,382

7,502

7,027

Net Assets

43,276

34,483

33,963

35,694

38,397

Total Equity

43,276

34,483

33,963

35,694

38,397

Retained Surplus
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
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Maryborough District Health Service
PO Box 155
75-87 Clarendon Street
Maryborough, Victoria 3465
Phone: +61 3 5461 0333
Fax: +61 3 5461 4489
mdhs@mdhs.vic.gov.au
mdhs.vic.gov.au

Incorporating:
Community Services
PO Box 155
75-87 Clarendon Street
Maryborough, Victoria 3465
Phone: +61 3 5461 0400
Fax: +61 3 5461 4828
Avoca Campus
10 Templeton Street
PO Box 75
Avoca, Victoria 3467
Phone: +61 3 5465 1202
Fax: +61 3 5465 3533
Dunolly Campus
20 Havelock Street
Dunolly, Victoria 3462
Phone: +61 3 5468 2900
Fax: +61 3 5468 1188

growing a healthy community

